
 
COUNCIL 6. 12. 2012 

 
 

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 
28. 11. 2012 

 
 

A meeting of the Corporate and Financial Committee 
was held in Committee Room 1 

on Wednesday 28 November 2012 at 9am 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Broughton (Chairperson),  
Councillor Tim Carter, Councillor Jimmy Chen, Councillor Jamie Gough and 
Councillor Yani Johanson. 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillor Ngaire Button. 

Councillor Jimmy Chen from 10am onward.  
 
 
The Committee reports that: 
 
PART A - MATTERS REQUIRING A COUNCIL DECISION 
 
1. 2012 ANNUAL REPORTS FOR COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS (CCOS): CIVIC 

BUILDING LIMITED, VBASE LIMITED, TUAM LIMITED, CHRISTCHURCH AGENCY FOR ENERGY 
TRUST, RICCARTON BUSH TRUST, ROD DONALD BANKS PENINSULA TRUST AND THE 
WORLD BUSKERS’ FESTIVAL TRUST 

 
General Manager responsible: General Manager Corporate Services, DDI 941-8528 

Officer responsible: Corporate Finance Manager 

Author: Patricia Christie – External Reporting and Governance Manager 

 
 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 1. The purpose of this report is to present to the Council the annual reports for Council Controlled 

Organisations (CCOs) for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 2. The 2012 annual reports from the following organisations are attached for information: 
 

 Civic Building Limited (CBL) (Attachment 1) 
 Vbase Limited (Attachment 2) 
 Tuam Limited (Attachment 3) 
 Christchurch Agency for Energy Trust (Attachment 4) 
 Riccarton Bush Trust (Attachment 5) 
 Rod Donald Banks Peninsula Trust (Attachment 6) 
 The World Buskers’ Festival Trust (Attachment 7). 

 
 3. The CCOs are required under Section 67 of the Local Government Act 2002 to submit an 

annual report to the Council within three months after the end of the financial year. 
 
 4. An annual report must contain the information that is necessary to enable an informed 

assessment of the operations of the CCOs to be made, including audited financial statements 
and an auditor’s report on those financial statements, and the performance targets and other 
measures by which performance was judged. 

 
 5. All the above annual reports were approved by their boards and provided to the Council prior to 

30 September 2012. 

Sticky Note
Please refer to the Council's minutes for the decision.
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Entity Summaries 
 

Civic Building Limited (CBL) 
 
 6. CBL is 100 per cent owned by the Council and is a joint partner along with Ngai Tahu Property 

in the Christchurch Civic Centre Joint Venture (joint venture) which was formed to develop and 
own the Civic Building. 

 
 7. The CBL made a profit of $1.3 million for the year to 30 June 2012 compared to a loss in 2011 

of $2.4 million.  This increase was principally the result of an additional $3.4 million of material 
damage insurance proceeds being received in 2011/12 and $1.4 million of subvention income 
accrued. 

 
 8. The statement of financial position shows that the CBL is in a net liability position.  This is a 

result of the accounting treatment of the lease of the Civic Building and does not indicate that it 
is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due. 

 
 9. Both CBL and the joint venture have received unqualified audit opinions. 
 

Vbase Limited (Vbase) 
 
 10. Vbase is 100 per cent owned by the Council and was set up to own and manage CBS 

Canterbury Arena, AMI Stadium, Convention Centre and the Christchurch Town Hall. 
 
 11. Vbase made a profit of $71.8 million for the year to 30 June 2012 compared to a loss in 2011 of 

$19.5 million.  This increase was principally the result of $166.6 million of insurance recoveries 
in relation to the Convention Centre, Town Hall and AMI stadium being recognised in the 
financial statements.  Vbase undertook an independent valuation of all its land and building at 
30 June 2012 this resulted in a reduction in the value of the assets of $84.2 million.  
$20.0 million was deducted from the asset revaluation reserve and $64.2 million was 
recognised as a loss in the statement of financial performance. 

 
 12. The statement of financial position shows a significant increase in assets notwithstanding the 

reduction in the value of Vbase’s buildings; this is a result of a $178 million insurance 
recoveries receivable which it has recognised. 

 
 13. Vbase received a disclaimer audit opinion from Audit New Zealand as the auditors were unable 

to form an opinion on the carrying value of Vbase’s land and buildings.  Vbase revalued its land 
and buildings at 30 June 2012; the valuation was based on limited market evidence and 
assumptions which were subject to signficant uncertainties.  This resulted in the auditors 
determining that the valuation could not support a reliable fair value for the land and buildings 
for accounting purposes. 

 
Tuam Limited (Tuam) 

 
 14. Tuam is 100 per cent owned by the Council and owns land and buildings on Tuam Street 

including the former Civic building. 
 
 15. Tuam made of profit of $197,000 for the year to 30 June 2012 compared to a loss in 2011 of 

$532,000.  Expenses decreased from $2,223,000 in 2011 to $895,000 in 2012 due to lower 
interest and earthquake costs.  Revenue also decreased from $1,933,000 to $943,000 due to 
lower rental revenues, insurance recoveries and subvention income. 

 
 16. The statement of financial position shows that Tuam has net assets of $5.7 million.  Tuam holds 

its land and buildings as investment property which accounting standards require to be revalued 
annually.  An independent valuation was sought, but the assumptions underlying the valuation 
were considered unrealistic, and as such, the land and buildings were not revalued. 
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 17. Audit New Zealand has issued a disclaimer opinion on the basis that due to the earthquake 

they cannot form an opinion on the value of the investment property and the associated current 
and deferred tax balances.  This is a direct result of being unable to get an appropriate market 
valuation. 

 
Christchurch Agency for Energy Trust (CAfE) 

 
 18. CAfE was formed by the Council to: 
 

 raise awareness in Christchurch and promote energy efficiency initiatives and the use of 
renewable energy by providing information and advice to a wide range of parties 

 encourage the use of renewable energy 
 introduce initiatives to address the negative health and social impacts of fuel poverty and 

energy affordability issues in Christchurch. 
 
 19. CAfE had total comprehensive income for the year to 30 June 2012 of $23,694 compared to 

$904,645 in 2011. 
 
 20. This reduction in income is principally due to an $858,877 increase in expenses reflecting the 

increased activities of CAfE during the year.  Expenses included $373,295 for consultancy 
costs associated with the District Energy feasibility study, an additional $100,939 for public and 
media relations, an additional $127,093 for consulting costs and an additional $257,550 for 
contractor, financial, legal, marketing, administration and project costs. 

 
 21. The only significant change in the financial position of CAfE is the $109,959 increase in current 

trade and other receivables.  This is due to the $166,750 invoice to the Energy Efficiency and 
  Conservation Authority (EECA) for 2012/13 contributions, which remains outstanding at year 

end. 
 
 22. CAfE received an unqualified audit opinion on its financial statements from Audit New Zealand. 
 

The Riccarton Bush Trust (RBT) 
 
 23. RBT was formed by an Act of Parliament in 1914.  The Trust adminsters Riccarton House and 

its 5.41 hectares of grounds together with a 6.373 hectare native bush remnant gifted by the 
Deans family to the people of Canterbury.  Part of Riccarton House is licensed to a commercial 
caterer and is used as a restaurant and event centre.  Riccarton House is currently closed for 
earthquake repairs which are expected to be completed in 2012/13. 

 
 24. RBT made a total comprehensive surplus for the year to 30 June 2012 of $479,216 compared 

to $560,517 in 2011.  This difference is principally due to RBT recognising $1,713,270 of 
insurance recoveries in 2011 as income and incurring an impairment charge in the statement of 
comprehensive income for earthquake damage of $452,163; these events have not occurred in 
2012.  In addition, in 2012 RBT recognised a $270,000 gain on the revaluation of the land. 

 
 25. The only significant change in the financial position is the result of the revaluation of the land 

and buildings which resulted in an overall increase of $424,224. 
 
 26. RBT received an unqualified audit opinion on its financial statements from Audit New Zealand. 
 

Rod Donald Banks Peninsula Trust (RDBPT) 
 
 27. RDBPT was formed by the Council with the objective of promoting sustainable management 

and conservation of Banks Peninsula’s natural environment and associated recreation. 
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 28. RDBPT made a profit for the year to 30 June 2012 of $134,184 compared to $3,565,010 in 

2011.  The insurance settlement of $3.5 million on the RDBPT in 2011 was the original 
settlement and was accounted as income. 

 
 29. There has been no significant change in the financial position of the Trust. 
 
 30. RDBPT received an unqualified audit opinion on its financial statements from Audit New 

Zealand. 
 

The World Buskers’ Festival Trust (WBFT) 
 
 31. WBFT was established by Council to: 
 

 devise, manage and hold an annual buskers festival in Christchurch with a view to providing 
a national and international profile and identity for New Zealand street theatre 

 provide opportunities for local buskers to reach a wider audience; and  
 provide a street theatre festival that is accessible to the public including the provision of free 

events and a commitment to maintain low ticket prices for performances where charges are 
made. 

 
 32. WBFT had total comprehensive income for the year to 30 June 2012 of $85,482 compared to 

$1,180 in 2011.  Total revenue increased $707,301 for the year across all revenue classes, 
compared to a $622,413 increase in expenses again across all expense classes, with the 
exception of audit fees which have remained flat. 

 
 33. The financial position of WBFT has improved with net assets increasing from $1,180 to 

$86,662.  On 30 June 2011 the Trust had both a large amount of cash and receivables and a 
large payables balance.  All these balances have decreased at 30 June 2012. 

 
 34. WBFT received a qualified audit opinion on its financial statements from Audit New Zealand as 

it did in 2011.  The qualification arises as Audit New Zealand cannot confirm that all door 
donation revenue was properly recorded.  This relates to $75,158 of door donations, which 
were collected when “the buckets” was presented on entry to venues. 

 
 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 35. None. 
 
 LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 36. CCOs are required under Section 67 of the Local Government Act 2002 to submit an annual 

report to Council within three months after the end of the financial year.  All financial statements 
were signed and provided to Council by 30 September 2012 (three months after 30 June 2012). 

 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That the Council receive the annual reports for the following Council Controlled Organisations: 
 

 Civic Building Limited (CBL) 
 Vbase Limited  
 Tuam Limited  
 Christchurch Agency for Energy Trust  
 Riccarton Bush Trust  
 Rod Donald Banks Peninsula Trust  
 The World Buskers’ Festival Trust. 
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 COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION 
 
 Civic Building Limited 
 
 The Committee decided on the motion of Councillor Johanson, seconded by Councillor Chen, to 

express its concern at the current insurance arrangements for Civic Offices and requested that the 
three Council directors of Civic Building Limited take up the issue with the joint venture. 

 
Tuam Limited 

 
Staff were requested to provide advice clarifying the process for director appointments; specifically 
whether recommendations for appointments should be brought to the Committee for consideration 
before going to the Council for decision.  

 
 The World Buskers’ Festival Trust 
 

The Committee decided on the motion of Councillor Carter, seconded by Councillor Broughton, to 
request staff to report back on whether tickets and associated entertainment expenses provided to 
the Council organisation should be recorded as related party transactions. 
 
VBase Limited 
 
The Committee decided on the motion of Councillor Carter, seconded by Councillor Broughton, to 
request staff to report back on whether tickets and associated entertainment expenses provided to 
the Council organisation should be recorded as related party transactions. 
 
The Committee decided on the motion of Councillor Carter, seconded by Councillor Broughton, to 
further request that all Committee members are provided with a copy of the Knight Frank valuation of 
VBase Limited’s land and buildings dated 30 June 2012 referred to in the report. 

 
  

Note: Councillor Gough took no part in consideration and voting on the recommendation insofar as it 
related to Civic Building Limited and VBase Limited. 

 
 Note: Councillor Chen took no part in consideration and voting on the recommendation insofar as it 

related to the Riccarton Bush Trust.  
 
 
 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
 That the staff recommendation be adopted.  
 
 
2. INSURANCE PLACEMENT AND CLAIMS MANAGEMENT 
 

General Manager responsible: General Manager, Corporate Services, DDI 941-8528 

Author: Paul Anderson, General Manager Corporate Services 

 
 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 1. The purpose of this report is to outline the measures in place to manage insurance claims and 

the placement of insurance policies on behalf of the Council.  The report recommends a change 
to the existing staff delegation for the placement of insurance cover and outlines the processes 
put in place to manage the involvement of the Chief Executive in decisions regarding insurance 
claims and cover.  This responds to a Corporate and Financial Committee resolution for staff to 
report back to the Committee on the steps and policies in place to ensure there is no conflict 
between the Chief Executive’s dual roles. 
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 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 Process to Manage Insurance Claims 
 
 2. From 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011 the Council’s above-ground assets were insured through a 

policy with the New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund (LAPP), 
which is a charitable trust set up to provide insurance for local authority infrastructural assets.  
Decisions regarding LAPP payments are made by its trustees under the LAPP Trust Deed. 

 
 3. Civic Assurance, which is the company on which Mr Marryatt is a member of the board, is a 

separate legal entity from LAPP.  Civic Assurance provides a service as fund administrator for 
LAPP and in this role, it processes payments to claimants after a decision is made by the LAPP 
trustees under the LAPP Trust Deed.  Civic Assurance manages the claims process for LAPP 
and is the entity the Council deals with on a day-to-day basis in relation to the claims that have 
been made. 

  
 4. Civic Assurance also acts as a reinsurer to the LAPP above-ground policy with LAPP assuming 

the first $7.2 million of a claim, Civic Assurance the next $3.6 million and reinsurers the balance 
of the claim.  Civic Assurance has paid its full deductible of $10.8 million, being $3.6 million for 
three claimable events to the Council. 

 
 5. The Office of the Auditor-General (OAG) reported on this matter in a report dated 19 April 2012.  

Specifically, the OAG inquired into: 
 

 whether Mr Marryatt was involved in any decisions about the Council’s insurance after he 
became a Director of Civic Assurance, and 

 
 whether Mr Marryatt’s roles as a Director of Civic Assurance and as Chief Executive of the 

Council are compatible. 
 
 6. The OAG report notes that “there are few areas of overlap between his roles as Chief Executive 

of the Council and Director of Civic Assurance.  The potential conflict of duties is not so 
pervasive that the two roles are incompatible.  In our view, there is no reason for him not to 
continue in both roles, if the Council puts in place better arrangements to manage his 
involvement in decisions about insurance.” 

 
 7. Mr Marryatt has stated both publicly and to the CEO Performance Review and Remuneration 

Subcommittee that his primary role is Chief Executive Officer of the Council.  Potential conflict 
of interest between his role as Chief Executive Officer of the Council and Director of Civic 
Assurance is managed through the processes put in place at Civic Assurance. 

 
 8. Civic Assurance’s Board operates under a written Board Charter that is reviewed by the board 

biennially and was last reviewed in May 2012.  The relevant section of Civic Assurance’s Board 
Charter reads: 

 
“Where a Director has an interest in a matter under consideration, he or she should consider 
the nature of the interest and whether it is appropriate for the Director to participate in  
discussion on the matter.   In some cases, the Director may feel that such participation is 
inappropriate, and should request the Chair’s permission to withdraw from that part of the 
meeting.”  

 
 9. In addition, Civic Assurance has confirmed that the following steps have been put in place to 

manage any such potential conflict of interest: 
 

 no Board papers are provided to Mr Marryatt regarding specific aspects of the Council 
insurance claim 
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 no discussion regarding specific aspects of the Council insurance claim other than 
reinsurance recoveries are discussed with Mr Marryatt present 

 
 the only information provided or considered when Mr Marryatt is present regarding the 

Council's insurance claim is a high level financial summary, the amount of claims paid and a 
broad estimate of the amount of all the earthquake claims outstanding (so the Council claims 
are combined amongst other with Environment Canterbury and Waimakariri District Council). 

 
 10. This approach represents a stronger management process than the process used by the 

Council elected members where they declare a potential conflict of interest and opt to play no 
part in a decision made by the Council. 

 
 11. This approach is consistent with the guidance set out in the OAG’s guidelines for managing 

conflicts of interest.  The OAG suggests that there are two aspects to dealing with potential 
conflicts of interest: 

 
 identifying and disclosing the conflict of interest (primarily the responsibility of the member 

or official concerned) 
 

 deciding what action (if any) is necessary to best avoid or mitigate any effects of the conflict 
of interest (primarily the responsibility of the public entity). 

 
 Insurance Placement 
 
 12. The OAG report dated 19 April 2012 also suggested that the Council should alter the existing 

staff delegation with regards to insurance placement so as to specifically exclude Mr Marryatt 
from this decision while he remains a director of Civic Assurance.  The OAG noted that 
“Mr Marryatt was right to identify, in June 2009, that he would have a conflict of interest 
because of his role as a Director of Civic Assurance and should not be involved in decisions 
about insurance cover”.  It further noted that the risk of a conflict of interest in the placement of 
insurance cover in 2009 and 2010 was managed by ensuring that he was not personally 
involved with insurance decisions. 

 
 13. In August 2003 the Council resolved to delegate its power to purchase insurance cover to the 

Chief Executive and the Director of Strategic Investments.  The latter position was 
disestablished in 2007 and replaced by the General Manager Corporate Services. 

 
 14. The reason for this delegation is to ensure timely placement of insurance cover.  The OAG 

noted in its report that decisions about insurance cover need to be made quickly.  Brokers 
provide advice on options and prices for cover but sometimes this advice may only be available 
shortly before the existing cover is due to expire.  A decision is usually required within 24 hours.  
In such a case there would not be time to put a decision to the Council or a committee.  The 
OAG says that “delegating the decision to senior staff, along with an obligation to report back to 
the Council, is a practical response to this situation”. 

 
 15. It is recommended that the existing delegation is rescinded and replaced with an updated 

delegation that recognises that Mr Marryatt takes no part in decisions regarding the Council’s 
placement of insurance due to his position on the Civic Assurance Board.  

 
 16. It is recommended that the Committee recommend that Council resolve that the General 

Manager Corporate Services and one other General Manager jointly be granted delegated 
authority to enter into arrangements for the placement of all the Council’s insurance policies, 
subject to the exercise of such delegated power being reported back to the Council in each 
case. 
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 17. Other options available to the Council would be to not delegate this decision or to delegate it to 
a committee.   As noted above, the OAG views the delegation of the power to place insurance 
cover to senior staff as a practical response to the fact that decisions about insurance cover 
often need to be made within days.  The Council reporting requirements mean that it is 
impractical to report this to the Council or to a committee before a decision is required.  If the 
Council went for this option, it would need to accept the risk that its assets may be uninsured for 
the time between when an offer of insurance is made and the Council is able to convene a 
meeting. 

 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 It is recommended that the the Council: 
 
 (a) Rescind its decision of 28 August 2003 to delegate the power to place Council’s insurance 

cover to the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Strategic Investments. 
 

(b) Resolve that the General Manager Corporate Services and one other General Manager 
jointly be granted delegated authority to enter into arrangements for the placement of all the 
Council’s insurance policies, subject to the exercise of such delegated power being reported 
back to the Council in each case. 

 
COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION 
 
Councillor Carter moved that the Committee note that it received staff advice that there are no further 
steps being taken to avoid Mr Marryatt having access to any Council information relating to insurance 
claims that is not provided to Civic Assurance. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Broughton and on being put to the meeting was declared 
carried on Division number 1 by 3 votes to 1, the voting being as follows: 
 
For (3):   Councillors Broughton, Carter and Johanson. 
 
Against (1):  Councillor Gough.  
 
The Committee decided on the motion of Councillor Carter, seconded by Councillor Johanson to note 
that it expressed some concern about the above note, and asked staff to report back on what other 
steps could be taken to manage this potential conflict. 
 
Councillor Broughton moved that the staff recommendation be adopted subject to the following 
amendment to clause (b): 
 
(b) Delegate to the Committee: 

 
(i)  the authority to enter into arrangements for the placement of all the Council’s insurance 

policies, subject to the exercise of such delegated power being reported back to the full 
Council in each case. 

 
(ii)  the ability to sub-delegate its authority for decisions/sign-off in (b)(i) to the General 

Manager Corporate Services and one other General Manager. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Carter, and when put to the meeting was declared carried.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the Council: 
 
(a) Rescind its decision of 28 August 2003 to delegate the power to place Council’s insurance 

cover to the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of Strategic Investments. 
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(b) Delegate to the Committee: 
 

(i)   the authority to enter into arrangements for the placement of all the Council’s insurance 
policies, subject to the exercise of such delegated power being reported back to the full 
Council in each case. 

 
(ii)  the ability to sub-delegate its authority for decisions/sign-off in (b) to the General 

Manager Corporate Services and one other General Manager. 
 
 
PART B - REPORTS FOR INFORMATION  
 
3. DEPUTATIONS BY APPOINTMENT 
 

Nil. 
 
 
4. PROPERTY FILE VIEWING LEVELS OF SERVICE 
 
 The Committee received a briefing from Tracey Weston, Customer and Business Support Unit 

Manager, and Sue Chappell, Corporate Support Unit Manager, on property file viewing levels of 
service. 

 
 As part of the briefing, the Committee discussed the viewing by the public of residential and 

commercial property files, progress on digitisation of property files, and the demand and capacity of 
the viewing service provided by the Council. 

 
 
PART C – DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 
 
5. RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC 
 
 

The Committee resolved to exclude the public for Clauses 7 and 8 on the grounds set out on page 
224 of the agenda. 

 
 
The public were readmitted at 12.50pm, at which point the meeting concluded. 
 
 
CONSIDERED THIS 6TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2012 
 
 
 
 
 MAYOR 
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Directory and Statutory Disclosures 

 

Registered Office 53 Hereford Street 
Christchurch 

  

    
Directors  J T Gough 
 W G Cox (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 C K Doig (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 D F Dowding (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 A J Keegan (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 S G Mortlock (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 T M Treacy (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 R Parker (appointed 8 September 2011) 
 N Button (appointed 8 September 2011) 
    
CEO - to 29 July 2011 Bryan Pearson 
    
Company Secretary  Brent Ford (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 Diane Brandish  
    
Bankers Westpac Bank 

Christchurch 
  

    
Solicitors Lane Neave 

Christchurch 
  

    
Auditors Audit New Zealand on behalf of the Office of the Auditor 

General 
Christchurch 

 
 
NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
Civic Building Ltd (“the Company”) was established on 12 October 2007 in order to carry out the 
development of the new civic building for the Christchurch City Council (“Council”).  On 26 October 
2007 the Company entered into an agreement to develop the new civic building on the NZ Post site 
with Ngai Tahu.  The agreements provided that this was carried out by Tuam 2 Ltd (“Tuam 2”) as 
50:50 shareholders with Ngai Tahu Properties Limited (“Ngai Tahu Properties”).  These arrangements 
were changed on 27 June 2008 subsequent to Council approval of the 2009 Annual Plan, leaving the 
Company as party to the unincorporated joint venture with Ngai Tahu Properties.  The Annual Plan 
approved the creation of an unincorporated joint venture structure to carry out the development.  As a 
result Tuam 2 was made 100% subsidiary of the Company and Tuam 2 settled the purchase of a half 
share of the NZ Post building on 30 June 2008 as party to the unincorporated joint venture with Ngai 
Tahu Properties, that has undertaken the development.  On 30 June 2009, Tuam 2 was amalgamated 
into the Company. 
 
Construction of the civic building was completed in August 2010 and the tenants moved in to the 
building.  The building was damaged in the September 2010, February 2011, and June 2011 
earthquakes.  The tenants vacated the building while repairs were being carried out and moved back 
into the building at the beginning of November 2011. 
 
The Company appoints three representatives to the unincorporated joint venture Board.  The 
Company representatives on the joint venture board are Robert Parker, Ngaire Button and Jamie 
Gough. 
 
The Company does not have any staff, rather it is managed by the Council. 
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DIRECTORS 
The persons holding office as Directors of the Company on 30 June 2012 were: 

R Parker 
N Button 
J T Gough 

 
 
DIRECTOR'S INTERESTS 
The following Directors have made general disclosures of interest with respect to any transaction that 
may be entered into with certain organisations on the basis of their being a Director, Partner, Trustee 
or Officer of those organisations during the year: 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
June 2012) 

Director Vbase Ltd 
Director Gough Gough & Hamer 

Investments Ltd 
Director Gough Holdings Ltd 
Director Gough Gough & Hamer Ltd 
Director Gough Gough & Hamer Properties 

Ltd 
Director Transport Wholesale Ltd 
Director Transport Specialists Ltd 
Director Gough Finance Ltd 
Director Gough Transport Supplies Ltd 
Director AMI Stadium Ltd 
Director Gough Group Ltd 
Trustee Antony Gough Trust 

Jamie Gough 

Councillor 
 

Christchurch City Council 

Mayor Christchurch City Council 
Director Parker New Media Ltd 

Robert Parker 
(appointed 8 September 
2011) Director Stewart Properties Ltd 
 Director Bob Parker Ltd 
 Director Christchurch City Holdings Ltd 
 Director Vbase Ltd 
 Director 

 
Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
June 2012) 
 

Deputy Mayor Christchurch City Council 

Director Canterbury Development 
Corporation 

Director CEDF Trustee Ltd 
Director Vbase Ltd 
Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 

June 2012) 
Director Canterbury Development 

Corporation Holdings Ltd 
Director CRIS Ltd 

Ngaire Button 
(appointed 8 September 
2011) 

Director Randolph Sunglasses NZ Ltd 
 

Director  Elastomer Products Ltd  
Director  Mainpower NZ Ltd  
Director  Transwaste Canterbury Ltd 
Director  Coolpak Coolstores Ltd 
Director  Talbot Technologies Ltd  
Director  Barlow Brothers NZ Ltd 
Director  Independent Fisheries Ltd 
Director  Vbase Ltd (resigned 29 July 2011) 

Wynton Gill Cox  
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director  Mcauley Property Ltd 
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Director  J.A. Lovett Trustees No 2 Ltd 
Director  Hilton Leasing Ltd 
Director  A.R. Lovett Trustees No 2 Ltd 
Director  Claridge Trustees Ltd (resigned 30 

Sept 2011) 
Director  AMI Stadium Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
Director  Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 

July 2011) 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
July 2011) 

Director Southern Opera Charitable Trust 
(resigned) 

Director Christopher Doig Promotions 
Limited (resigned 3 Nov 2011) 

Director Solvam Ltd (resigned 13 Oct 2011) 
Director Vbase Ltd (resigned 29 July 2011) 

Christopher Keith Doig 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director New Zealand Rugby Promotions 
Ltd (resigned 13 Oct 2011) 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
July 2011) 

Director Dowding & Associates Ltd 
Director The Sales Bureau Ltd 
Director Human Intellectual Technologies 

Ltd 
Director Evolution Technologies Ltd 
Director CPI Ltd 
Director Barry Doody Tours Ltd 
Director Studio Properties (2007) Ltd 
Director Studios of New Zealand  Ltd 
Director Basheba Ltd 
Director Vbase Ltd (resigned 29 July 2011) 

Dominique Fiona Dowding 
(resigned 29 July 2011)  

Director NZCU South 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 
July 2011) 

Director Mortlock McCormach Law Ltd 
Director Danne Mora Holdings Ltd 
Senior Partner Mortlock McCormach Law Ltd 
Director Vbase Ltd (resigned 29 July 2011) 
Director Phantom Bill Stickers Ltd 
Director WFH Properties Ltd 
Director WFH Properties (No 2) Ltd 
Director Westmoreland Nominees Ltd 
Director Worsley Farm Ltd 
Director Franco Farm Ltd 
Director Cashmere Lakes Ltd 
Director Flaxmere Ltd 
Director Stallions Australasia (NZ) Ltd 
Director Timely Knight Stud Ltd 
Director Gamble Property Trust Ltd 
Director Mortlock McCormach Insurance 

Trust Co Ltd 
Director Boyden Hanover Stud Ltd 
Director Spreydon Lodge Ltd 
Director Nevele R Stud Ltd 

Simon George Mortlock 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director MML Consulting Ltd 
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Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
July 2011) 

Director Addington Raceway Ltd 
Director Cavell Leitch Pringle & Boyle 

Nominees Ltd 
Director Cavell Leitch Operations Ltd 
Director New Zealand Metropolitan 

Properties Limited 
Director Vbase Ltd (resigned 29 July 2011) 
Director Sardinero Trustees Ltd 
Director Otakaro Trustees Ltd 
Director Chesterfield Trustees Ltd 
Director Rostock Trustees Ltd 
Director Wroxton Mortgage Company Ltd 
Director Wroxton Nominees Ltd 
Director Pont Trustees Ltd 
Director Euston Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Oxford Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Regent Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Website Law Ltd 
Director Clarendon Trustees Ltd 
Director O’Neill LHD Trustees Ltd 
Director Cashel Trustees Ltd 
Director Camel Trustees Ltd 
Director Turnham Green Trust Ltd 
Director Ninfield Trustee Company Ltd 
Director Bond Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Waimairi Trustees Ltd 
Director Waimairi Trustees 2007 Ltd 
Director New Zealand Metropolitan 

Properties Management Ltd 
Director Patchworx Builders Ltd 
Director Arts Management Ltd 

Arthur James Keegan 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director Cavell Leitch Pringle & Boyle 
Solicitors 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
July 2011) 

Director Vbase Ltd (resigned 29 July 2011) 
Director Verona Fruit Pty Ltd 
Director Fruitology Pty Ltd 
Director LaManna Bananas Pty Ltd 
Director Ballina Lodge Ltd 

Thomas Michael Treacy 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 
 
 
 
 
 

 Director United Flower Growers Ltd 
(resigned 20 June 2011) 

 
 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
Total remuneration and other benefits paid or due and payable to directors for services as a director 
during the year were as follows: 
 
W G Cox (Chairman) $1,875  (2011: $22,500) 

 
 
USE OF COMPANY INFORMATION 
During the year, the Board received no notices from members or directors of Company requesting to 
use Company information received in their capacity as Members or Directors which would not 
otherwise have been available to them. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011
 Note $000 $000

Revenue 2(a) 12,836 9,575

Finance costs 2(b) 5,474 5,460
Other expenses 2(b) 6,696 6,434

12,170 11,894

Profit (loss) before income tax expense 666 (2,319)

Income tax expense/(income) 3 (668) 36

Profit (loss) for the period 1,334 (2,355)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total Comprehensive income 1,334 (2,355)

 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011
Note $000 $000

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 4,601 5,196

Trade and other receivables 5 5,924 4,926
Current tax assets 3(b) 2 1,753

Total current assets 10,527 11,875

Non-current assets 

Investment property 7 4,480 4,480
Trade and other receivables 6 48,549 48,626

Total non-current assets 53,029 53,106

Total assets 63,556 64,981

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 8 793 2,884

Total current liabilities 793 2,884

Non-current liabilities 

Borrowings 9 59,288 59,288
Deferred tax liabil ities 3(c) 8,461 9,129

Total non-current liabilities 67,749 68,417

Total liabilities 68,542 71,301

Net assets (4,986) (6,320)

Equity 

Capital and other equity instruments 10 6,188 6,188
Retained earnings (11,174) (12,508)

Total equity 11 (4,986) (6,320)

 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

Capital

Retained 

Earnings Total

$000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 2010 6,188 (10,153) (3,965)

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss - (2,355) (2,355)

Total comprehensive income for the period - (2,355) (2,355)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly 

in equity

Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - -

Balance at 30 June 2011 6,188 (12,508) (6,320)

Balance at 1 July 2011 6,188 (12,508) (6,320)

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit or loss - 1,334 1,334

Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - 1,334 1,334

Transactions with owners, recorded directly 

in equity

Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - -

Balance at 30 June 2012 6,188 (11,174) (4,986)

 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Cashflow Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2012  
 

2012 2011
 Note $000 $000

Cash flows from operating activities 

Operating revenue 4,245 2,442
Subvention received 1,867 1,380

Insurance proceeds received 6,857 2,953
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,422) (615)

Payments for remedial works regarding 
earthquake claim (7,135) (1,828)

Income tax received (paid) 447 (70)
Net GST movement (110) 654
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating 

activ ities 14 4,749 4,916

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 116 239

Payment for investment property - (3,986)
Proceeds from sale of  investments - -
Purchase / maturity of deposits - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing 
activ ities 116 (3,747)

Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid (5,460) (5,445)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing 
activ ities (5,460) (5,445)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (595) (4,276)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 
year 5,196 9,472

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,601 5,196

 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
1. Accounting policies 
 
Reporting Entity 
These are the financial statements of Civic Building Limited (the “Company”) 
  
The Company is registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is domiciled in New Zealand.  The 
Company is a Council Controlled Trading Organisation as defined by section 6 of the Local 
Government Act 2002. 
 
Until 25 June 2008 Tuam 2 Limited (‘Tuam 2”) was 50% owned by the Company and 50% owned by 
Ngai Tahu Property Limited (“Ngai Tahu Property”).  Tuam 2 was the company tasked with the design, 
construct and ownership the new Civic Offices on Worcester Street, pursuant to the proposal 
approved by the Christchurch City Council on Thursday 11 October 2007.  On 25 June 2008, the 
Council approved a change in the structure for the new Civic Offices project and this resulted in Tuam 
2 being 100% owned by the Company.  The new Civic Offices project in now carried out by an 
unincorporated joint venture, which is 50% owned by Tuam 2 and 50% by Ngai Tahu Property.  
Accordingly, the Company has designated itself as a profit orientated entity for the purposes of New 
Zealand Equivalent to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). 
 
On 30 June 2009, the Company and Tuam 2 amalgamated with the assets and liabilities of Tuam 2 
brought into the Company.  Tuam 2 no longer exists and the Company directly owns 50% of the 
unincorporated joint venture with Ngai Tahu Property. 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Act 1993, the Companies Act 1993 and the Local Government Act 2002. 
 
The financial statements of the Company are for the year ended 30 June 2012.  The financial 
statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2012. 
 
 
Basis of financial statement preparation 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP.  They comply with NZ 
IFRS and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis except for the revaluation of 
investment properties. 
 
The functional and presentation currency is New Zealand dollars.  All values are rounded to the 
nearest thousand dollars ($000). 
 
In preparing these financial statements the Company has been required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  These 
estimates and assumptions form the basis for making judgements about the carrying values of assets 
and liabilities, where these are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.   
 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are regularly reviewed.  Any change to estimates is recognised 
in the year if the change affects only that year, or into future years if it also affects future years.  In the 
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgements estimates and assumptions that have had the most significant impact on the amounts 
recognised in these financial statements.  The determination of the fair value of investment property is 
regarded as a critical estimate and is valued at least on an annual basis.  This requires the estimation 
of current market values by an independent registered valuer, refer to note 7. 
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The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements.   
 
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been adopted for the year ended 
30 June 2012 which have only had presentational or disclosure effect: 

 

• NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009) effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 - This Standard makes amendments to New Zealand 
Accounting Standard NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.  The amendments simplify the 
definition of a related party and provide a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements 
for government-related entities. 

 

• Improvements to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures effective for accounting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 – The amendments add an explicit statement 
that qualitative disclosure should be made in the content of the quantitative disclosures to 
better enable users to evaluate an entity’s exposure to risks arising from financial instruments.  
. 

 

• Improvements to NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective for accounting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 – Clarification was provided in that entities may 
present the required reconciliations for each component of other comprehensive income either 
in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.  

 
• Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments effective for accounting periods beginning 

on or after 1 July 2011 – The amendments introduce new disclosure requirements about 
transfers of financial assets including disclosures for:  

o Financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety; and 
o Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but for which the entity retains 

continuing involvement. 
 

• NZ FRS 44 – NZ Additional Disclosures effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2011 – The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the New Zealand-specific 
disclosures such as: 

o Where an entity’s financial statements comply with NZ IFRSs they shall make an 
explicit and unreserved statement of such compliance in the notes; 

o An entity shall disclose in its notes its reporting framework and for the purposes of 
complying with NZ GAAP, it is a profit-oriented or public benefit entity; 

o An entity shall disclose fees to each auditor or reviewer, including any network firm, 
separately for an Audit/Review of the Financial Statements and all other services 
during that period; 

o An entity shall disclose the amount of imputation credits available for use in 
subsequent reporting periods; 

o Where a Statement of Service Performance is presented the entity must disclose the 
outputs of an entity and information on the effects on the community of the entity’s 
existence and operations. 

 
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been issued but are not yet 
effective for the year ended 30 June 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these financial 
statements: 

 

• Amendments to NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective for accounting 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 - The amendments require that an entity present 
separately the items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss 
in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit 
or loss; do not change the existing option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income in two statements; and a change of title of ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ to 
‘Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income’ to emphasise the two 
components.  However, an entity is still allowed to use other titles. 
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• NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – replacing NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement – effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2015.  NZ 
IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at 
amortised cost or fair value.  Entities are required to classify financial assets based on the 
objectives of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets. Where the 
financial assets are eligible to be measured at amortised cost due to the business model, the 
entity shall use the characteristics of the contractual cash flows to measure cost. 

 

• Amendments to NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes effective for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2012 – The amendments introduce an exception to the general measurement 
requirements of NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes in respect of investment properties measured at fair 
value.  The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities, in this limited circumstance, is 
based on a rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of the investment property will be 
recovered entirely through sale. The presumption can be rebutted only if the investment 
property is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to consume 
substantially all of the asset’s economic benefits over the life of the asset. 

 

• NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities effective for accounting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2013 – NZ IFRS 12 contains the disclosure requirements for entities that 
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements (i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), 
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities, aiming to provide information to enable 
users to evaluate: 

o the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities; and 
o the effects of those interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance 

and cash flows. 
 

• NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2013 – NZ IFRS 13 replaces the fair value measurement guidance contained in 
individual IFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement guidance. It defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair 
value measurements. It explains how to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by 
other IFRSs. It does not introduce new requirements to measure assets or liabilities at fair 
value, nor does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that 
currently exist in certain standards. 

 
Other than for the general descriptions provided above, the Company has not yet determined the 
potential impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments for those standards not 
effective at 30 June 2012. 
 
a. Financial Assets 

Term deposits with maturities greater than three months are measured at cost and have been 
designated as loans and receivables. 

 
b. Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 
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c. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits, and other short-term highly 
liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.  Bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows, and in 
current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

 
d. Investment Property 

The land leased to third parties under operating leases is classed as investment property. 
 
Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.  After initial 
recognition, the investment property is measured at fair value as determined annually by an 
independent valuer.   
 
Gains or losses arising from a change in fair value of the investment property is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 
 

e. Share capital 
(i) Ordinary share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  
 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a 
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

 
(ii) Preference share capital 

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable and any dividends are 
discretionary, or is redeemable but only at the company’s option. Dividends on preference 
share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity. 
 
Preference share capital is classified as a liability if it provides for mandatory redemption by 
the issuer for a specific amount at a specific date (or gives the holder the right to requires such 
redemption from the issuer), or if it gives the holder the right to put it back to the issuer for 
cash or another financial asset.  Dividends thereon are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income as interest expense. 

 
f. Interest-bearing borrowings 

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. 

 
g. Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of 
expenditures, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle the 
obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
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h. Leases 
(i) Finance leases 

Leases in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset transfer to 
the lessee are classified as finance leases whether or not title is eventually transferred.  At 
inception, finance leases are recognised in the statement of financial position at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments plus the present value of any unguaranteed residual 
value expected to accrue at the end of the lease term. 
 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables.  Finance lease 
payments are allocated between interest revenue and reduction of the lease receivable over 
the term of the lease in order to reflect a constant rate of return on the net investment 
outstanding in respect of the lease. 

 
(ii) Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset. 

 
i. Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. 
 
(i) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues, using 
the effective interest method. 

 
(ii) Finance lease income 

Finance lease income is allocated over the lease term on a systematic and rational basis.  
This income allocation is based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic return on the 
Company’s net investment in the finance lease. 
 

(iii) Operating lease income 
Operating lease income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

 
(iv) Insurance proceeds 

Insurance proceeds are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the 
compensation become receivable. 

 
j. Financing costs 

Financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest 
rate method.  All interest payable on borrowings is recognised as an expense in the statement of 
comprehensive incomes as it occurs. 

 
k. Income tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.  Temporary differences arising from the 
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit are not 
provided for. 
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The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement 
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the balance date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the asset can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 
l. Goods and Services Tax 

The financial statements are prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and 
payables that are shown inclusive of GST.  Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax it is 
recognised as part of the related asset or expense.  The net amount of GST recoverable from, 
payable to, the Inland Revenue Department is included as part of receivables or payable in the 
statement of financial position. 
 
 

2 Profit from operations 
 
(a) Revenue 

2012 2011
$000 $000

Rental revenue:

Operating lease rental revenue - Investment Property 350 153
Loss of rent insurance proceeds received 128 1,314

Loss of rent insurance proceeds receivable 400 1,588
Recovery of property expenses 825 357

1,703 3,412

Interest revenue:
Finance lease interest revenue 3,709 3,405
Bank deposits 110 214

3,819 3,619

Material damage and insurance proceeds received / 
receivable 5,903 2,544
Subvention income 1,411 -
Total revenue 12,836 9,575
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(b) Profit before income tax 

2012 2011
Note $000 $000

Finance costs:
Interest on loans 5,474 5,460

5,474 5,460

Direct operating expenses of investment properties:

Audit fees 4 20 9
Directors fees 2 23

Management f ees 52 165
Property management costs 653 116

Building remediation costs 5,440 2,608
Rental income lost 528 2,902
Other 1 143

6,696 5,966

Loss on revaluation - 468

- 468

Total expenses 12,170 11,894

 
 
3 Income taxes 
 
a. Income tax recognised in profit or loss 

2012 2011
$000 $000

Tax expense/(income) comprises:

Current tax expense/(income) - (1,304)
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the 

current tax of prior years - (3)
Deferred tax expense/(income) (668) 1,343

Total tax expense/(income) (668) 36
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2012 2011

$000 $000

Profit/(loss) from operations 666 (2,319)

Income tax expense calculated at 28% (2011: 30%) 186 (696)

Correction to prior year tax calculation - (3)

Non-deductible expenses 148 -
Revaluation of land - 140
Subvention income recognised (395) -
Effect of building depreciation being removed in future 

years - 645
Effect of future years tax rate change - 43
Deferred tax adjustment (588) -
Building lease classified as operating lease for tax 

purposes (19) (93)

(668) 36

 
 
(b)  Current tax assets and liabilities 

2012 2011

$000 $000
Current tax assets:

Tax refund receivable - RWT 2 449
Subvention Receivable - 1,304

2 1,753

 
 
(c)  Deferred tax balances 

2012 2011

$000 $000
Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary differences 8,461 9,129

8,461 9,129
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Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following:  

Year ended 30 June 2012

Opening 

balance

Charged 

to income

Closing 

balance

$000 $000 $000

Deferred tax liabilities:

Investment Property 9,129 (668) 8,461

9,129 (668) 8,461

Deferred tax assets:

Investment property - - -

- - -

Net deferred tax balance 9,129 (668) 8,461

 

Year ended 30 June 2011

Opening 

balance

Charged 

to income

Closing 

balance

$000 $000 $000

Deferred tax liabilities:

Investment Property 7,786 1,343 9,129

7,786 1,343 9,129

Deferred tax assets:

Investment property - - -

- - -

Net deferred tax balance 7,786 1,343 9,129

 
 
(d) Imputation credit account balances 
 

2012 2011
$000 $000

Imputation credits available for use in
subsequent periods - -

 
 
4 Remuneration of auditors 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Auditor of the entity:
Audit of the financial statements 16 6

Audit of the financial statements - other auditor 4 3

20 9

 
 
The 2012 audit expense includes $6,000 relating to the audit of the 2011 financial statements. 
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5 Current trade and other receivables 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Finance lease receivable - current portion 3,644 2,382
Trade receivables 2 8

Related party receivable 81 42
Insurance receivable 1,349 2,494

Subvention receivable 848 -
5,924 4,926

 
The carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximate their fair value. 
 
The carrying value of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have 
been renegotiated amount to $nil (2011: $nil) 
 
 
6 Finance lease receivable 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 
$000 $000 $000 $000

No later than one year 3,786 3,786 3,644 3,644

Later than one year and not later than five 
years 16,674 16,160 13,471 13,041

Later than f ive years 89,870 94,170 35,078 35,585
Minimum lease payments 110,330 114,116 52,193 52,270

Unguaranteed residual - - - -
Gross finance lease receivables 110,330 114,116 52,193 52,270

Less unearned finance income (58,137) (61,846) - -
Present value of  minimum lease payments 52,193 52,270 52,193 52,270

Future rent lost - (1,262)
Revised carrying value 52,193 51,008

Included in the financial statements as:

Current trade and other receivables 3,644 2,382
Non-current trade and other receivables 48,549 48,626

52,193 51,008

Minimum future 

lease payments

Present value of 

minimum future 

 
The Company and Ngai Tahu Property (CCC-JV) have leased the Civic Building at 53 Hereford Street 
to the Council.  The lease commenced on 24 August 2010 and is for a period of 24 years, with three 
rights of renewal, giving a total lease life of 96 years. 
 
Rental on the building (including land) is initially set at $8,233,776 per annum, with the following rental 
increases specified in the contract: 

1. a 3 per cent increase on the third anniversary of commencement, compounded on an annual 
basis. 

2. a further 3 per cent increase on every sixth anniversary of the first percentage increase, 
compounded on an annual basis. 

3. a market rental increase on every sixth anniversary of commencement, set at the greater of 
five per cent or market rental. 
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No contingent rent is payable under the lease. 
 
For the 2011/12 financial year as was the case in the 2010/2011 financial year, earthquake repairs to 
the building have interrupted Council's occupation.  In accordance with the contract Council has not 
paid rent for the period which it is unable to occupy the building, and the joint venture is required to 
make good all earthquake damage at no cost to the Council.  The joint venture has claimed the rent 
loss from its insurers. 
 
 
7 Investment property 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Balance at beginning of financial year 4,480 53,429

Additions - 3,692
Reclassification as finance lease - (52,173)

Revaluation - (468)

Balance at end of financial year 4,480 4,480

 
On entering into the lease with the Council for the Civic Building, the building has been reclassified as 
a finance lease receivable.  The land portion remains classified as investment property. 
 
The carrying value of investment property is the fair value of the property as determined by an 
independent valuation report prepared by registered valuers Colliers International Limited as at 30 
June 2012 combining discounted future cash flows and capitalising the potential income that the 
properties can generate. 
 
The fair value of the Joint Venture’s investment property at 30 June 2012 has been arrived at on the 
basis of the valuations performed by Colliers International Limited, who have an appropriate 
recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the 
properties being valued. 
 
Colliers International Limited (Valuation) 
The valuations prepared by Colliers International Limited have been prepared in accordance with 
International Valuation Standards IVA 1 – Valuation for Financial reporting, API/PINZ Valuation 
Guidance Notes NZVGN1 – Valuation for Use in New Zealand Financial Reports, and the New 
Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants NZ IAS 40 Investment Properties. 
 
The valuation has been prepared by capitalising the potential income that the property can generate. 
This is tested against a discounting of future cash flows arising from the property.  The potential future 
earnings have been capitalised using a yield rate of 8.25% (2011: 7.75%).  The discounted cash flow 
rate used was 10.5% (2011: 10.0%). 
 
The valuer has provided for a subdued investment market in the Christchurch CBD following the 
Canterbury Earthquakes in 2010 and 2011.   This is reflected in a softening of the capitalisation rate 
by 50 basis points from 7.75% in June 2011 to 8.25% at balance date, reflecting an estimate of the 
changed market conditions in a post-earthquake environment.  
 
The quality of the tenant and the lease terms mitigate a further increase to the capitalisation rate.  
Similarly, the discount rate applied to future cash flows softened from 10.0% to 10.5% for the same 
reasons. 
 
Insurance and Remediation Costs 
Insurance proceeds received and receivable for the year are $11,806,891 (2011: $5,088,94)  under 
the Joint Venture Material Damage policy for earthquake building remediation claims following the 
2010 and 2011 Canterbury Earthquakes.  This amount comprises insurance proceeds received of 
$9,908,875 (2011: $3,277,287) and insurance proceeds receivable of $1,898,016 (2011: $1,811,657), 
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following insurance claim submission at balance date. Earthquake building remediation costs are 
claimed under the Joint Venture Material Damage insurance policy. 
 

Insurance proceeds have been received to date of $2,780,370 (2011: $2,628,319) for loss of rents 
suffered as a result of the 2010 and 2011 Canterbury earthquakes.  At balance date, there was an 
insurance debtor for earthquake loss of rents of $800,036 (2011:$651,155), following insurance claim 
submission.  The Joint Venture insurance policy provides cover for the loss of rents situation arising 
from natural disaster events such as earthquakes.  There is insurance cover for a period of 36 months, 
following the date of the event, for loss of rents cover (gross rentals) under the Joint Venture 
insurance policy effective to 31 July 2012.   
 

Earthquake building remediation costs of $10,879,420 (2011:$5,216,167) have been incurred at 
balance date.  The Earthquake remediation project is now fully completed and it is estimated that 
$378,000 is remaining to be paid which is fully accrued at balance date. 
 
Sensitivity analysis for investment property 
A change of 50 basis points higher/lower on the capitalisation rate would result in the following change 
to the total value of the investment property valuation: 

• the investment property would decrease by ($5,860,000) following a 50 basis point increase in 
the capitalisation rate and increase by $6,616,129 following a 50 basis point decrease in the 
capitalisation rate. 

 
Half of the above amounts relating to the Joint Venture are attributable to the Company and reflected 
in these financial statements.  A further $1,261,957 insurance debtor was recognised by the Company 
in the 2010/11 financial statements for recovery of rent expected to be lost in the 2011/12 financial 
year before the building was reopened. 
 
 
8 Current trade and other payables 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Trade payables 559 2,472

Related party payables 219 361
GST payable 15 51

793 2,884

 
 
9 Non-current borrowings 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Unsecured:
Loans from Parent entity 59,288 59,288

59,288 59,288

 
The Company has entered into a cash advance facility agreement with Council.  Repayment will be 
made in 2038.  Interest is payable at a weighted average of 9.21% quarterly (2011: 9.21% quarterly). 
 
The fair value of the borrowings is $110,961,344 (2011: $62,001,063) based on cash flows discounted 
using the market rate of 3.9475% (2011: 8.76%).  The fair value was calculated on the basis that the 
loan will be paid back at the end of the loan agreement in 2038. 
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10 Capital and other equity instruments 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Fully paid ordinary shares - -

Fully paid redeemable preference shares (A) 6,188 6,188
6,188 6,188

Fully paid ordinary shares
Issue of shares 10,000 10,000

Less: unpaid shares - -
Less: uncalled portion of shares issued (10,000) (10,000)

Closing balance of paid up capital - -

Fully paid redeemable preference shares (A)
Balance at beginning of financial year 6,188 6,188

Issue of shares - -
Balance at end of financial year 6,188 6,188

 
Redeemable preference shares do not carry entitlement to vote at general meetings of the Company, 
and are not transferable.  The shares are redeemable at the option of the Company in its sole 
discretion or upon the winding up of the Company or on expiry at 20 June 2038.  In all other respects 
redeemable preference shares rank pari passu with ordinary shares.   
 
The shares do not carry fixed dividend rights. 
 
 
11 Equity 
 

2012 2011
$000 $000

 Balance at 1 July (6,320) (3,965)

 Net shares issued - -

 Total comprehensive income 1,334 (2,355)

 Balance at 30 June (4,986) (6,320)

 
 
12 Commitments for expenditure 
 
There were no commitments for development expenditure that were not otherwise accrued at 30 June 
2012 (2011: $1,010,267).  
 
 
Earthquake building remediation costs for work still to be completed to fully reinstate the Civic Building 
property are estimated at $0 (2011: $3,900,000).  There is an accrual of costs for $189,000 (2011: 
$779,468) relating to earthquake building remediation work completed but not yet invoiced at balance 
date.  The above figures are 50% of the capital committed / accrued by the Joint Venture. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 

28. 11. 2012



Civic Building Limited 
Annual Report Year Ended 30 June 2012 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

Page 24 

13 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
There are no contingent assets at 30 June 2012 (2011: $3,900,000) in respect of insurance proceeds 
that are expected to be recovered once insurance claims have been submitted and paid by the insurer 
for estimated earthquake remediation repairs still to be completed on the Civic Building property.  The 
above amount is 50% of the contingent asset recorded by the joint venture. 
 
 
14 Notes to the cash flow statement 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 4,601 5,196

4,601 5,196

Reconciliation of profit for the period to net cash 

flows from operating activities
Net profit for the period 1,334 (2,355)

Changes in net assets and liabilities

Increase / (decrease) in current tax balances 1,752 3
(Increase) / decrease in receivables (949) (1,228)

Increase / (decrease) in payables (1,947) 20

Capital portion of payables / receivables (117) 294

Interest received classed as investing (116) (239)
Interest paid c lassed as financing 5,460 5,445

Non cash items:

Loss / gain on revaluation of investment property - 468
Increase / decrease in deferred tax (668) 1,343

Finance lease income - 1,165

Net changes in net assets and liabilities 3,415 7,271

Net cash from operating activities 4,749 4,916
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15 Related-party transactions 
 
Council is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.  The following transactions were carried out 
with related parties during the year: 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Christchurch City Council ("Council")
Receipts from related parties:

Rent received from Council 2,434 2,380
Recovery of property expenses from Council 826 205

Subvention payments received/receivable from Council group
entities 1,411 1,381

Loss of fset given to Council group entities 3,494 3,222

Payments to related parties
Interest paid to Council 5,474 5,460

Fees paid to Council - 12
Management fees charged by Vbase 42 165

Operating costs / purchases from Vbase - 132
Rates paid to Council 221 139

Te Runanga O Ngai Tahu

Management fees charged to the Joint Venture by group
entities 82 800

Other charges to the Joint Venture by group entities - 4

Year end balances (GST exclusive)
Accounts payable to Vbase - 190

Accounts received from Council 81 42
Loan advances from Council 59,288 59,288

Accrued interest payable to Council 165 150
Subvention payments receivable f rom group companies 849 1,304

 
 
Key Management Personnel 
 
All transactions occurred on normal trading terms and conditions. 
 
Key management personnel includes the Directors. 
 
The Company paid Directors fees to W Gill Cox of $1,875 (2011: $22,500) exclusive of GST.  None 
was unpaid at 30 June 2012 (2011: $6,469).  
 
The Company paid joint venture board fees to Hanlin Johnstone of $1,250 (2011: $15,000) exclusive 
of GST.  None was unpaid at 30 June 2012 (2011: $15,000). 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 TO CLAUSE 3 
CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 

28. 11. 2012



Civic Building Limited 
Annual Report Year Ended 30 June 2012 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

Page 26 

16 Operating Leases 
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Operating lease as lessor

Within one year 357 357
Between 1 and 5 years 1,574 1,426

Over 5 years 8,523 6,419

10,454 8,202

Minimum Lease 

Payments

 
The terms of the lease are detailed in note 6. 
 
 
17 Financial instruments  
 
Classification of financial instruments 
 

2012

Loans & 

receivables

Other amortised 

cost

Total  carrying 

amount

$000 $000 $000
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,601 - 4,601
Trade and other receivables 5,924 - 5,924

10,525 - 10,525

Non current assets

Other (finance lease receivable) 48,549 - 48,549
48,549 - 48,549

Total Financial Assets 59,074 - 59,074

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables - 793 793
Borrowings - - -

- 793 793

Non current liabilities

Borrowings - 59,288 59,288
- 59,288 59,288

Total Financial Liabilities - 60,081 60,081
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2011

Loans & 

receivables

Other amortised 

cost Total carrying amount
$000 $000 $000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,196 - 5,196
Trade and other receivables 4,926 - 4,926

10,122 - 10,122

Non current assets
Finance lease receivable 48,626 - 48,626

48,626 - 48,626
Total Financial Assets 58,748 - 58,748

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables - 2,884 2,884

- 2,884 2,884

Non current liabilities
Borrowings - 59,288 59,288

- 59,288 59,288
Total Financial Liabilities - 62,172 62,172

 
 
Contractual Maturity Analysis 

as at 30 June 2012

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cashflows

Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

3 - 5 

years

More than 

5 years
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,601 4,603 4,603 - - -

Trade receivables 5,924 6,064 6,064 - - -
Finance lease receivables 48,549 106,542 - 8,240 8,434 89,868

59,074 117,209 10,667 8,240 8,434 89,868

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 793 628 628 - - -

Related party borrowings 59,288 201,323 5,459 5,459 16,393 174,012
60,081 201,951 6,087 5,459 16,393 174,012

.

 

as at 30 June 2011

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cashflows

Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

3 - 5 

years

More than 

5 years
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,196 5,207 5,207 - - -

Trade receivables 4,926 5,068 5,068 - - -
Finance lease receivables 48,626 110,330 - 3,786 12,374 94,170

58,748 120,605 10,275 3,786 12,374 94,170

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,884 2,864 2,864 - - -

Related party borrowings 59,288 206,694 5,460 5,460 16,378 179,396
62,172 209,558 8,324 5,460 16,378 179,396
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Financial instrument risk 
 
The Company has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments.  The 
Company is risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its financing activities. 
 
Credit risk management  
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to Standard and Poor’s credit ratings (if available) or to historic information about 
counterparty default rates.  
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash and accounts receivable.  The Company places its cash with banking institutions 
that have a Standard and Poor's rating of AA-.   
 

2012 2011 
$000 $000

Counterparties with credit ratings
Cash at bank and term deposits

AA - 5,196
AA- 4,601 -

Accrued interest on term deposits

AA - 8

AA- 2 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,603 5,204

Finance Lease Receivable

AA 52,193 52,270

 
 
Liquidity risk management 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall 
due. 
 
The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and 
maintaining adequate reserves with the maturity profile of financial assets being matched to the 
financial liabilities. 
 
Market risk management  
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates 
and market prices, will affect the Company’s profit or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. 
 
Interest rates 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.  Borrowings and investments issued at variable interest rates expose 
the Company to interest rate risk. 
 
The Company’s borrowing liability with its parent is at a weighted fixed interest rate of 9.21% (2011: 
9.21%).  The Company is not sensitive to movements in interest rates in respect of its borrowing 
obligations.  Interest rate movements would, however, affect the amount of interest income received 
by the Company on surplus cash.  A 1% movement either way would have the effect of 
increasing/decreasing the Company's profit before tax by $30,906 or $22,253 after tax (2011: $52,627 
or $37,891 after tax). 
 
Foreign exchange  
The Company has no exposure to foreign exchange risk. 
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18 Capital Management 
 
The Company’s capital comprises share capital and retained earnings.  The Company manages its 
revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings prudently and in a 
manner that promotes the current and future interest of the community.   
 
 
19 Events after balance date 
 
There have been no material events known to the Directors occurring subsequent to balance date that 
would have a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
 
20 Legislative requirements 
 
The Local Government Act 2002 requires the Trust to submit half year accounts and a Statement of 
Intent to its Board and to its shareholder within specified timeframes.  For the 2011/12 financial year 
the Trust did not meet the specified timeframes as set out in the legislation for the submission of 
documents to its shareholder. 
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Statement of Service Performance 
 
Reporting against the Statement of Intent 
 
 

Key performance targets 
To ensure that the Company meets the financial targets contained within the Statement of Intent. 
 

Financial performance targets 

Target Actual Variance
$000 $000 $000

Income

Lease income 4,067 4,059 (8)
Other income 3,885 8,777 4,892

Total Income 7,952 12,836 4,884

Expenses

Interest 5,459 5,474 15

Other expenses 4,166 6,696 2,530

Total Expenses 9,625 12,170 2,545

Net Surplus (deficit) before tax (1,673) 666 2,339
Taxation (1,266) (668) 598

Net Surplus (deficit) after tax (407) 1,334 1,741

Capital Structure

Uncalled capital 10,000 10,000
RPS Shares 6,200 6,188

Debt 59,200 59,288
Total assets 61,400 63,556  
 
Other income is $4.9 million higher than target due to receipt of insurance proceeds during the year 
that were not included in the target measure. 
 
Other expenses are $2.5 million higher than target as a result of the Company’s share of the 
earthquake repair expenses for the civic building. 
 
 
Performance Measures 
 
Operational Performance Targets 
 
Objective and Strategy Performance Measure Result 
Manage the investment in a 
commercially astute and 
prudent manner. 

Ensure a comprehensive 
management agreement is in 
place for management of the 
new Civic Building. 
 

A comprehensive management 
agreement is in place with Ngāi 
Tahu Property Limited. 

 
Environmental and Social Performance Targets 
Performance Target Performance Measure Result 
The Civic Building will be 
designed to achieve a high 
standard in terms of 
environmental and energy 
sustainability. 
 

Ensure the Civic Building 
operates in a manner that 
preserves Green Star 6 
accreditation features. 

Green star 6 accreditation 
features have been achieved. 
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Ratio of Shareholders funds to total assets 
 
The forecast ratio of Shareholders funds to total assets is: 
 

Target Actual 
3.4% (7.8%) 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the readers of 
Civic Building Limited’s 

financial statements and statement of service performance 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Civic Building Limited (the company). The Auditor-General 
has appointed me, Ian Lothian, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry 
out the audit of the financial statements and statement of service performance of the company 
on her behalf.  

We have audited: 

 the financial statements of the company on pages 7 to 29, that comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on 
that date and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and 
other explanatory information; and 

 the statement of service performance of the company on pages 30 to 31. 

Opinion  

Financial statements and statement of service performance 

In our opinion: 

 the financial statements of the company on pages 7 to 29: 

 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; 

 give a true and fair view of the company’s: 

 financial position as at 30 June 2012; and 

 financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that 
date; and 

 the statement of service performance of the company on pages 30 to 31: 

 complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

 gives a true and fair view of the company’s service performance 
achievements measured against the performance targets adopted for the 
year ended 30 June 2012. 
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Other legal requirements 

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 we report that, in our opinion, proper 
accounting records have been kept by the company as far as appears from an examination of 
those records. 

Our audit was completed on 25 September 2012. This is the date at which our opinion is 
expressed. 

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the 
Board of Directors and our responsibilities, and explain our independence. 

Basis of opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and statement of service 
performance are free from material misstatement.  

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would 
affect a reader’s overall understanding of the financial statements and statement of service 
performance. If we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have 
referred to them in our opinion. 

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service performance. The procedures 
selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements and statement of service performance whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the preparation 
of the company’s financial statements and statement of service performance that give a true 
and fair view of the matters to which they relate. We consider internal control in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. 

An audit also involves evaluating: 

 the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been 
consistently applied; 

 the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by 
the Board of Directors; 

 the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service 
performance; and 

 the overall presentation of the financial statements and statement of service 
performance. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the 
financial statements and statement of service performance. In accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Act 1993, we report that we have obtained all the information and explanations we 
have required. We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing financial statements and a statement of 
service performance that: 

 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;  

 give a true and fair view of the company’s financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows; and 

 give a true and fair view of its service performance. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements and a statement of service performance that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the Local Government Act 2002 and the 
Financial Reporting Act 1993. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and 
statement of service performance and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. Our 
responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 69 of the Local 
Government Act 2002. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the 
Auditor-General, which incorporate the independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute 
of Chartered Accountants. 

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the company. 

 

 

Ian Lothian 
Audit New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Christchurch, New Zealand 
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Directory and Statutory Disclosures 

REGISTERED OFFICE 53 Hereford Street 
Christchurch 

  

    
DIRECTORS   

B Parker (appointed 10 June 2011) 
 N Button (appointed 10 June 2011) 
 T Marryatt (appointed 10 June 2011) 
 J T Gough (appointed 16 December 2010) 
 W G Cox (Chairman) (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 G S Campbell (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 C K Doig (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 D F Dowding (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 J A Keegan (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 S G Mortlock (resigned 29 July 2011) 
 T M Treacy (resigned 29 July 2011) 
    
CEO - to 29 July 2011 Bryan Pearson 
    
COMPANY SECRETARY  Diane Brandish from 30 July 2011 
 Brent Ford to 29 July 2011   
    
BANKERS Westpac Bank 

Christchurch 
  

    
SOLICITORS Lane Neave 

Christchurch 
  

    
AUDITORS Audit New Zealand on behalf of the Office of the Auditor General 

Christchurch 
    
    
Statutory Disclosures  For the year ended 30 June 2012   
    
SHAREHOLDER    
Christchurch City Council Ordinary Shares  100,136,204 
 Redeemable Preference Shares – equity   89,500,000 
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NATURE OF BUSINESS 
Vbase Limited (the ‘Company’) is a 100% subsidiary of the Christchurch City Council (‘Council’). The 
Council has entrusted the Company with ownership and management of the four premier 
entertainment and event venues – AMI Stadium, Christchurch Town Hall for Performing Arts, 
Christchurch Convention Centre and CBS Arena. 
 
The Company also owns 100% of the shares in Jet Engine Facility Ltd (JEFL), which owns and leases 
the jet engine test cell facility located at Christchurch International Airport, a joint venture between Air 
New Zealand and Pratt & Whitney.  On 29 June 2012 the Company sold 100% of its shareholding in 
JEFL to Annzes Engines Christchurch Limited and Pratt & Whitney Holdings SAS. 
 
The Canterbury earthquakes of 2010/2011 have had a significant impact on the business. Refer to 
note 2 for further details. 
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS 
The following Directors have made general disclosures of interest with respect to any transaction that 
may be entered into with certain organisations on the basis of their being a Director, Partner, Trustee 
or Officer of those organisations during the year: 
 

Councillor 
 

Christchurch City Council 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
June 2012) 

Director Civic Building Ltd 
Director Gough Gough & Hamer Investments 

Ltd 
Director Gough Holdings Ltd 
Director Gough Gough & Hamer Ltd 
Director Gough Gough & Hamer Properties Ltd 
Trustee Antony Gough Trust 
Director Transport Wholesale Ltd 
Director Transport Specialists Ltd 
Director Gough Finance Ltd 
Director Gough Group Ltd 
Director Gough Transport Supplies Ltd 

Jamie Gough 

Director AMI Stadium Ltd 
 

Robert Parker Mayor Christchurch City Council 
 Director Parker New Media Ltd 
 Director Stewart Properties Ltd 
 Director Bob Parker Ltd 
 Director Christchurch City Holdings Ltd 
 Director Civic Building Ltd 
 Director 

 
Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
June 2012) 
 

Ngaire Button Deputy Mayor Christchurch City Council 

 Director Canterbury Development Corporation 
Holdings Ltd 

 Director Canterbury Development Corporation 
 Director CEDF Trustee Ltd 
 Director Civic Building Ltd 
 Director CRIS Limited 
 Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 

June 2012 
 Director 

 
Randolph Sunglasses NZ Ltd 
 

Tony Marryatt Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 
June 2012 

 Director AJM Holdings Ltd 
 Director Tuam Ltd 
 Director New Zealand Local Government 

Insurance Corporation Ltd 
 Director 

 
Local Government Mutual Funds 
Trustee Ltd 

 Director 
 

Canterbury Development Corporation 
Holdings Ltd (resigned 1 July 2012) 
 

Director  Elastomer Products Ltd  
Director  Mainpower NZ Ltd  
Director  Transwaste Canterbury Ltd 
Director  Coolpak Coolstores Ltd 
Director  Talbot Technologies Ltd  

Wynton Gill Cox         
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director  Barlow Brothers NZ Ltd 
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Director  Independent Fisheries Ltd 
Director  Civic Building Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
Director  Mcauley Property Ltd 
Director  J.A. Lovett Trustees No 2 Ltd 
Director  Hilton Leasing Ltd 
Director  A.R. Lovett Trustees No 2 Ltd 
Director  Claridge Trustees Ltd (resigned 30 Sept 

2011) 
Director  AMI Stadium Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
Director  Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 July 
2011) 

Director Southern Opera Charitable Trust 
(resigned)  

Director Christopher Doig Promotions Limited 
(resigned 3 Nov 2011) 

Director Solvam Ltd (resigned 13 Oct 2011) 
Director Civic Building Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 

Christopher Keith Doig 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director New Zealand Rugby Promotions Ltd 
(resigned 13 Oct 2011) 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 July 
2011) 

Director Dowding & Associates Ltd 
Director The Sales Bureau Ltd 
Director Human Intellectual Technologies Ltd 
Director Evolution Technologies Ltd 
Director CPI Ltd 
Director Barry Doody Tours Ltd 
Director Studio Properties (2007) Ltd 
Director Studios of New Zealand  Ltd 
Director Basheba Ltd 
Director Civic Building Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 

Dominique Fiona Dowding 
(resigned 29 July 2011)  

Director NZCU South 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned July 
2011) 

Director Mortlock McCormach Law Ltd 
Director Danne Mora Holdings Ltd 
Senior Partner Mortlock McCormach Law Ltd 
Director Civic Building Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
Director Phantom Bill Stickers Ltd 
Director WFH Properties Ltd 
Director WFH Properties (No 2) Ltd 
Director Westmoreland Nominees Ltd 
Director Worsley Farm Ltd 
Director Franco Farm Ltd 
Director Cashmere Lakes Ltd 
Director Flaxmere Ltd 
Director Stallions Australasia (NZ) Ltd 
Director Timely Knight Stud Ltd 

Simon George Mortlock 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director Gamble Property Trust Ltd 
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Director Mortlock McCormach Insurance Trust 
Co. Ltd 

Director Boyden Hanover Stud Ltd 
Director Spreydon Lodge Ltd 
Director Nevele R Stud Ltd 
Director MML Consultanting Ltd 

 
Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
Director Addington Raceway Ltd 
Director Cavell Leitch Pringle & Boyle Nominees 

Ltd 
Director Cavell Leitch Operations Ltd 
Director New Zealand Metropolitan Properties 

Ltd 
Director Civic Building Ltd (resigned 29 July 

2011) 
Director Sardinero Trustees Ltd 
Director Otakaro Trustees Ltd 
Director Chesterfield Trustees Ltd 
Director Rostock Trustees Ltd 
Director Wroxton Mortgage Company Ltd 
Director Wroxton Nominees Ltd 
Director Pont Trustees Ltd 
Director Euston Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Oxford Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Regent Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Website Law Ltd 
Director Clarendon Trustees Ltd 
Director O’Neill LHD Trustees Ltd 
Director Cashel Trustees Ltd 
Director Camel Trustees Ltd 
Director Turnham Green Trust Ltd 
Director Ninfield Trustee Company Ltd 
Director Bond Street Trustees Ltd 
Director Waimairi Trustees Ltd 
Director Waimairi Trustees 2007 Ltd 
Director New Zealand Metropolitan Properties 

Management Ltd 
Director Patchworx Builders Ltd 
Director Arts Management Ltd 

Arthur James Keegan 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director Cavell Leitch Pringle & Boyle Solicitors 
 

Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 July 
2011) 

Chief Executive Ngāi Tahu Holdings Corporation Ltd 
Trustee GS & NA Campbell Family Trust 
Director Ngāi Tahu Fisheries Investments Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Lobster Quota Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Migratory Quota Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Pāua Quota Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Scampi Quota Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Shellfish Quota Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Wetfish Quota Ltd 
Director Ngāi Tahu Fisheries Settlement Ltd 

Gregory Shane Campbell 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 

Director EcoCentral Ltd 
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Director Jet Engine Facility Ltd (resigned 29 July 
2011) 

Director Civic Building Ltd (Resigned 29 July 
2011) 

Director Verona Fruit Pty Ltd 
Director Fruitology Pty Ltd 
Director LaManna Bananas Pty Ltd 

Thomas Michael Treacy 
(resigned 29 July 2011) 
 
 
 
 
 

 Director Ballina Lodge Ltd 
 
DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE 
The companies have directors’ liability insurance for all directors and indemnified each of the directors 
by agreement in writing. Premiums paid were $20,750 (2011: $23,862). 

 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
Total remuneration and other benefits paid or due and payable to directors for services as a director 
during the year were as follows: 
 
W G Cox (Chairman) $4,166 
C K Doig $2,083 
D F Dowding $2,083 
J T Gough $2,083 
A J Keegan $2,083 
S G Mortlock $2,083 
G S Campbell $2,083 
T M Treacy $2,083 
R Parker $- 
N Button $- 
T Marryatt $- 

 
USE OF COMPANY INFORMATION 
During the year the Board received no notices from members or directors of the parent entity or 
subsidiary company requesting to use company information received in their capacity as members or 
directors which would not otherwise have been available to them. 
 
DONATIONS 
There were no donations made by the company during the year (2011: $11,941). 
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Statement of Comprehensive income 
for the year ended 30 June 2012  
 

2012 2011 2012 2011

 Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue 3(a) 181,449 80,299 181,449 80,299

Other expenses 3(b) 12,621 16,968 12,621 16,968

Employee benefit costs 3(b) 404 8,729 404 8,729

Profit / (loss) before depreciation, finance 

costs and income tax expense 168,424 54,602 168,424 54,602

Depreciation and amortisation 3(b) 7,034 8,868 7,034 8,868

Finance costs 3(b) 3,383 6,954 3,383 6,954
Revaluation of property, plant & equipment 3(b) 64,235 - 64,235 -

Loss on de-recognition of buildings 3(b) - 21,121 - 21,121

Profit / (loss) before income tax expense from 
continuing operations 93,772 17,659 93,772 17,659

Income tax (expense) / income from 

continuing operations 4(a) (9,697) (6,004) (9,697) (6,004)

Net profit / (loss) f rom continuing operations 

for the period 84,075 11,655 84,075 11,655

Net profit / (loss) f rom discontinued operations 3(c) 2,847 - (1,226) 344

Profit / (loss) for the period 86,922 11,655 82,849 11,999

Other comprehensive income 
Net movement on property valuations (19,953) 12,039 (19,953) 12,039

Asset impairment - (57,282) - (57,282)
Deferred tax movement taken to revaluation 

reserve 4,868 14,054 4,868 14,054
Total other comprehensive income from 

continuing operations (15,085) (31,189) (15,085) (31,189)

Total other comprehensive income from 
discontinued operations 3(c) - - 3,107 -

Total other comprehensive income (15,085) (31,189) (11,978) (31,189)

Total Comprehensive income 71,837 (19,534) 70,871 (19,190)

Parent Group

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2012  
 

 
2012 2011 2012 2011

Note $000 $000 $000 $000
 Current assets 

 Cash and cash equivalents 25 19,244 6,961 19,244 9,826
 Trade and other receivables 7 180,952 46,153 180,952 49,860

 Other financial assets 8 35,680 2,025 35,680 2,025
 Inventories 9 225 106 225 106

 Current tax assets 4(b) - 538 - 538
 Other current assets 10 245 280 245 280

 Total current assets 236,346 56,063 236,346 62,635

 Non-current assets 
 Trade and other receivables 11 2,970 3,180 2,970 28,178

 Other financial assets 12 - 11,450 - -
 Property, plant & equipment 13 79,361 165,744 79,361 165,744

 Intangible assets 14 24 136 24 136

 Total non-current assets 82,355 180,510 82,355 194,058

 Total assets 318,701 236,573 318,701 256,693

 Current liabilities 

 Trade and other payables 15 4,821 7,296 4,821 7,696
 Borrowings 16 - 4,500 - 4,500

 Current tax payables 4(b) 14,150 - 14,150 404
 Employee entitlements 17 - 1,391 - 1,391

 Total current liabilities 18,971 13,187 18,971 13,991

 Non-current liabilities 
 Trade and other payables 18 154 187 154 187

 Borrowings 19 45,442 40,046 45,442 52,596
 Deferred tax liabilities 4(c) 22,523 32,379 22,523 38,179

 Total non-current liabilities 68,119 72,612 68,119 90,962

 Total liabilities 87,090 85,799 87,090 104,953
 Net assets 231,611 150,774 231,611 151,740

 Equity 
 Capital and other equity instruments 20 192,819 184,715 192,819 184,715

 Reserves - 15,085 - 15,085
 Retained earnings 38,792 (49,026) 38,792 (48,060)

 Total equity 231,611 150,774 231,611 151,740

Parent Group

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2012  

Parent Capital

Revaluation 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings Total

 Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2010 143,789 55,868 (71,099) 128,558

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss - - 11,655 11,655

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Net movement on property valuations - 12,039 - 12,039

Asset impairment - (57,282) - (57,282)

Deferred tax movement taken to revaluation reserve - 14,054 - 14,054
Transfer of prior revaluation on de-recognised 

assets - (9,594) 9,594 -

Total other comprehensive income - (40,783) 9,594 (31,189)
Total comprehensive income for  the period - (40,783) 21,249 (19,534)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in 

equity

Contributions by and distr ibutions to owners

Share issue - redeemable preference shares 20 12,750 - - 12,750

Share issue - ordinary shares 20 41,000 - - 41,000

Share buy back - redeemable preference shares 20 (12,000) - - (12,000)

Equi ty component of mandatory redeemable 
preference shares 20 (824) - 824 -

Total contributions by and distributions to owners 40,926 - 824 41,750

Balance at 30 June 2011 184,715 15,085 (49,026) 150,774

Balance at 1 July 2011 184,715 15,085 (49,026) 150,774

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss - - 86,922 86,922

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Net movement on property valuations - (19,953) - (19,953)

Deferred tax movement taken to revaluation reserve 4c - 4,868 - 4,868

Total other comprehensive income - (15,085) - (15,085)
Total comprehensive income for  the period - (15,085) 86,922 71,837

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in 

equity

Contributions by and distr ibutions to owners

Share issue - redeemable preference shares 20 9,000 - - 9,000

Equi ty component of mandatory redeemable 
preference shares 20 (896) - 896 -

Total contributions by and distributions to owners 8,104 - 896 9,000

Balance at 30 June 2012 192,819 - 38,792 231,611

 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Group Capital

Revaluation 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings Total

$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2010 143,789 55,868 (70,477) 129,180

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss - - 11,999 11,999

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Net movement on property valuations - 12,039 - 12,039
Asset impairment - (57,282) - (57,282)

Deferred tax movement taken to revaluation reserve - 14,054 - 14,054

Transfer of prior revaluationon de-recognised assets (9,594) 9,594 -
Total other comprehensive income - (40,783) 9,594 (31,189)
Total comprehensive income for  the period - (40,783) 21,593 (19,190)

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in 

equity

Contributions by and distr ibutions to owners

Share issue - redeemable preference shares 20 12,750 - - 12,750

Share issue - ordinary shares 20 41,000 - - 41,000

Share buy back - redeemable preference shares 20 (12,000) - - (12,000)
Equi ty component of mandatory redeemable 

preference shares 20 (824) - 824 -

Total contributions by and distributions to owners 40,926 - 824 41,750

Balance at 30 June 2011 184,715 15,085 (48,060) 151,740

Balance at 1 July 2011 184,715 15,085 (48,060) 151,740

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit or loss - - 82,849 82,849

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Net movement on property valuations - (19,953) - (19,953)

Disposal of JEFL Subsidiary - - 3,107 3,107

Clearing of deferred tax in JEFL 4c - - - -

Deferred tax movement taken to revaluation reserve 4c - 4,868 4,868

Transfer of prior revaluation on de-recognised 
assets - - - -

Total other comprehensive income - (15,085) 3,107 (11,978)
Total comprehensive income for  the period - (15,085) 85,956 70,871

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in 

equity

Contributions by and distr ibutions to owners

Share issue - redeemable preference shares 20 9,000 - - 9,000

Equi ty component of mandatory redeemable 
preference shares 20 (896) - 896 -

Total contributions by and distributions to owners 8,104 - 896 9,000

Balance at 30 June 2012 192,819 - 38,792 231,611

 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2012  

2012 2011 2012 2011

 Note $000 $000 $000 $000

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers  8,537 24,794 12,383 28,662

Subvention received 4,569 2,789 4,197 3,205
Interest received - - 97 41

Insurance proceeds received 5,768 9,634 5,768 9,634
Payments to suppliers and employees (14,188) (25,438) (14,226) (25,472)

Interest and other finance costs paid - - - -
Income tax received (paid) 4 87 4 87

Net GST movement (453) 311 (456) 361
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating 

activ ities 25 4,237 12,177 7,767 16,518

Cash flows from investing activities 
Proceeds from sale of  investments 9,864 - 9,864 -

Payment for property, plant & equipment (5,273) (8,406) (5,273) (8,406)
Proceeds from sale of  property, plant & 

equipment - 6 - 6
Interest received 382 570 382 570
Dividend received 4,433 - -
Maturity of investments 20,306 - 20,306 -
Purchase of investments (27,450) (2,025) (27,450) (2,025)
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing 

activ ities 2,262 (9,855) (2,171) (9,855)

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from issues of equity securities 9,000 12,750 9,000 12,750
Payment for buy back of equity securities - (12,000) - (12,000)
Interest and other finance costs paid (3,216) (6,130) (5,153) (7,787)
Transfer to escrow account - - (25) -
Net cash provided by / (used in) f inancing 

activ ities 5,784 (5,380) 3,822 (7,037)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,283 (3,058) 9,418 (374)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 

year 6,961 10,019 9,826 10,200
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 

year 19,244 6,961 19,244 9,826

Parent Group

 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012  
 
1.Statement of accounting policies 
 
Reporting entity 
  
NCC (New Zealand) Ltd was incorporated on 21 November 1995 under the Companies Act 1993 and 
changed its name to Vbase Venue Management Group Ltd on 13 September 2005.  The subsequent 
change to Vbase Ltd was made on 5 April 2007.  The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Council. 
 
The Vbase Group (the ‘Group’) comprises Vbase Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, JEFL.  The 
Company owns, manages and develops the Christchurch Town Hall for the Performing Arts, the 
Christchurch Convention Centre, CBS Canterbury Arena and AMI Stadium in Christchurch and holds 
the supply and business partnership contracts.  The Company is also the brand name for the 
combined management of the venues.  JEFL’s principal activity is to lease an aero engine test cell 
facility situated at Christchurch International Airport.  VBase sold its 100% share in JEFL to an 
external party on 29 June 2012. Consequently, VBase has separated the JEFL pre-sale results and 
presented these, including comparatives, as ‘discontinued operations’ in accordance with NZ IFRS 5: 
Non-current Assets Held for sale and Discontinued Operations (IFRS5) (refer to note 3c). There has 
been no change to the overall Group reported prior year result. The Company’s operations have been 
significantly affected by the February 2011 earthquake. See note 2 for details. 
 
The Vbase Group has been designated as a public benefit entity for purposes of the New Zealand 
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Act 1993, the Companies Act 1993 and the Local Government Act 2002.  
 
The financial statements of the Group are for the year ended 30 June 2012.  The financial statements 
were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2012. 
 
a.   Basis of financial statement preparation 
 
The financial statements of the Company and Group have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002: Part 6 Section 98 and Section 111, and Part 3 of 
Schedule 10, which includes the requirement to comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
in New Zealand (“NZ GAAP”).  They comply with the New Zealand equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable financial reporting standards, as 
appropriate, for public benefit entities. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation 
of certain non-current assets and financial instruments.   
 
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the 
nearest thousand dollars ($000).  The functional currency of the Group is New Zealand dollars. 
 
Except where specified, the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all 
periods presented in these financial statements. In addition, the comparative income statements have 
been re-presented to reflect JEFL as a discontinued operation. 
 
 
New Standards and Interpretations 

 
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been adopted for the year ended 
30 June 2012: 
 

o NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009) effective for balance dates on or after 1 
January 2011 - This Standard makes amendments to New Zealand Accounting Standard NZ 
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The amendment simplifies the definition of a related party 
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and provides a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-related 
entities. The standard has retrospective application to 1 July 2010 and has resulted in a 
number of transactions between companies with common directors no longer being disclosed 
as related party transactions. 

 
o Improvements to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures effective for balance dates on or 

after 1 January 2011 – The amendments add an explicit statement that qualitative disclosure 
should be made in relation to the quantitative disclosures to better enable users to evaluate an 
entity’s exposure to risks arising from financial instruments. In addition, the IASB amended 
and removed existing disclosure requirements. In addition, the Board deleted the requirement 
to disclose the carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or 
impaired whose terms have been renegotiated. 

 
o Improvements to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective for balance dates on or 

after 1 January 2011 – Clarification was made stating that entities may present the required 
reconciliations for each component of other comprehensive income either in the statement of 
changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.  

 
o Further amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments effective for balance dates on or after 1 

July 2011 – The amendments introduce new disclosure requirements about transfers of 
financial assets including disclosures for:  

 
o    Financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety; and 
o Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but for which the entity retains 

continuing involvement 
 

o FRS 44 – NZ Additional Disclosures effective for balance dates on or after 1 July 2011 – The 
objective of this Standard is to prescribe the New Zealand-specific disclosures such as: 

 
o Where an entity’s financial statements comply with NZ IFRSs, they shall make an 

explicit and unreserved statement of such compliance in the notes; 
o An entity shall disclose in its notes its reporting framework and, for purposes of 

complying with NZ GAAP, whether it is a profit-oriented or public benefit entity; 
o An entity shall disclose fees to each auditor or reviewer, including any network firm, 

separately for an Audit / Review of the Financial Statements and all other services 
during that period; 

o An entity shall disclose the amount of Imputation credits available for use in subsequent 
reporting periods; 

o Where a Statement of Service Performance is presented, the entity must disclose the 
outputs of an entity and information on the effects on the community of the entity’s 
existence and operations. 

 
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been issued but are not yet 
effective for the year ended 30 June 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these 
consolidated financial statements: 

 
o Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective for balance dates on or 

after 1 July 2012  - The amendments require that an entity present separately the items of 
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain 
conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss; do not change 
the existing option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in two 
statements; and a change of title of ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ to ‘Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income’ to emphasise the two components.  
However, an entity is still allowed to use other titles. 

 
o NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – replacing NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 

and Measurement – effective for balance dates on or after 1 January 2013. NZ IAS 39 is being 
replaced through the following three main phases:  
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o Phase 1 Classification and measurement of financial assets. This phase has been 
completed and has been published in the new financial instrument standard NZ IFRS 9. 
NZ IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at 
amortised cost or fair value, replacing many different rules in NZ IAS39. IFRS 9 requires 
entities to classify financial assets on the basis of the objective of the entity’s business 
model for managing the financial assets and the characteristics of the contractual cash 
flows. It points out that the entity’s business model should be considered first, and that the 
contractual cash flow characteristics should be considered only for financial assets that 
are eligible to be measured at amortised cost because of the business model. It states 
that both classification conditions are essential to ensure that amortised cost provides 
useful information. 
 

o Phase 2 Impairment methodology. The new standard will require a single impairment 
method to be used, replacing the many different impairment methods in NZ IAS 39. An 
exposure draft has been issued for comment on the feasibility of an expected loss model 
for the impairment of financial assets.  
 

o Phase 3 Hedge accounting. The IASB has started to consider how to improve and 
simplify the hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 and expects to publish proposals 
shortly. 

 
In the absence of sufficient information about the ongoing development of this new 
standard, the Company is not able to fully assess its impact and therefore is not in a 
position to make a decision to early adopt the standard or not.  

 
o IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements effective for balance dates on or after 1 January 

2013 – IFRS 10 introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be 
consolidated and provides a single model to be applied in the control analysis for all investees. 
An investor controls an investee when: 

 
o it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with that investee; 
o it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that investee; and 
o there is a link between power and returns. 

 
Control is reassessed as facts and circumstances change. 
 

o IFRS 10 supersedes IAS 27 (2008) and SIC-12 Consolidation—Special Purpose Entities. 
 

o IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities effective for balance dates on or after 1 
January 2013 – IFRS 12 contains the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests 
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements (i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or 
unconsolidated structured entities, aiming to provide information to enable users to evaluate: 

 
o the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities; and 
o the effects of those interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows. 
 

o IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement effective for balance dates on or after 1 January 2013 – 
IFRS 13 replaces the fair value measurement guidance contained in individual IFRSs with a 
single source of fair value measurement guidance. It defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value 
measurements. It explains how to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other 
IFRSs. It does not introduce new requirements to measure assets or liabilities at fair value, nor 
does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in 
certain standards. 

 
   Other than for the general descriptions provided above, Vbase has not yet determined the potential 

impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments for those standards not effective at 30 
June 2012. 
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b.    Principles of consolidation 
 

Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries include special purpose entities and those over which the Company has the power to 
govern financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of at least half of 
the voting rights. Potential exercisable or convertible voting rights are considered when assessing 
whether the Company controls another entity. 
 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company 
and de-consolidated from the date control ceases. 
 
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries.   
 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment 
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where necessary, 
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Company. 
 
Minority interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position. 
 
The Company’s investment in its subsidiary is carried at cost in the company’s own ‘parent entity’ 
financial statements. 
 
Discontinued operations 
A discontinued operation (or assets held for distribution) is a component of the Group’s business 
that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations that has been 
disposed of or is held for sale or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. 
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the 
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. For an operation to be held for sale, it must be 
available for sale in its current condition and its sale must be highly probable. When an operation 
is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is re-presented as if 
the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period. 
 

 
c. Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling on the day of 
the transaction.  
 
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the balance date are translated to NZ dollars at 
the rate ruling at that date.  

 
d. Financial Assets 

Term deposits with maturities greater than three months are measured at cost and have been 
designated as loans and receivables. 

 
e. Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment (see 
impairment policy j). 

 
f. Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion 
and selling expenses.  
 
The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred 
in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. 
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g. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits, and other short-term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as 
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and in 
current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

 
h. Property, plant and equipment 

The following assets are shown at fair value based on periodic valuations by external independent 
valuers, less subsequent accumulated depreciation: 
 
o Land 
o Buildings 
 
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.  
Valuations are performed with sufficient regularity, but at least every 3 years, to ensure revalued 
assets are carried at a value that is not materially different from fair value. 
 
Where the Group has elected to account for revaluations of property, plant and equipment on a 
class of asset basis, increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of a class of assets 
are credited directly to equity under the heading revaluation reserve.  However, the net revaluation 
increase shall be recognised in comprehensive income to the extent it reverses a net revaluation 
decrease of the same class of assets previously recognised in comprehensive income.   
 
All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is 
probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 
 
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method 
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful 
lives.   
 
Assets subject to depreciation include: 
  
Operational Assets: 
Site works 18-33 yrs 
Building shell fit-out   3-53 yrs 
Furniture, fittings, plant and equipment   2-15 yrs 
 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
balance date. Because of the scale of earthquake damage, the Group has not complied with this 
requirement for 2012. 
 
Normally an asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount in accordance with the 
requirements of NZ IAS 36 – Impairment of Assets.  However, for 2012, assets with earthquake 
damage have been written-off only when it is certain that they have been destroyed.  Where the 
Group and its insurers have agreed that a building has been damaged beyond economic repair, 
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and insurers have agreed to pay out the indemnity value of the building, the Group has recognised 
the indemnity amount as an impairment to the building.   
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount of the 
asset and are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are 
sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are transferred 
to retained earnings. 
 
Distinction between capital and revenue expenditure 
Capital expenditure is defined as all expenditure incurred in the creation of a new asset and any 
expenditure that results in a significant restoration or increased service potential for existing 
assets.  Constructed assets are included in property, plant and equipment as each becomes 
operational and available for use.  Revenue expenditure is defined as expenditure that is incurred 
in the maintenance and operation of the property, plant and equipment of the Group. 
 

i. Intangible assets 
o Computer software 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire 
and bring to use the specific software.  These costs are amortised over their estimated useful 
lives. 
 
Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their 
estimated useful lives. 

 
o Amortisation 

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period 
of that life.  The asset is reviewed annually for indicators of impairment, and tested for 
impairment if these indicators exist.  The asset is carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Estimated useful life of computer software 
is 1-10 yrs 

 
j. Impairment 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventories (see Inventories policy f) and 
deferred tax assets (see Income Tax policy r), are reviewed at each balance date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  However, assets with earthquake damage have been 
written-off only when it is certain that they have been destroyed.  Where the Group and its insurers 
have agreed that a building has been damaged, and insurers have accepted the claim, the Group 
has recognised the amount it considers is as estimate of the cost of repair as an impairment to the 
building.  No impairment has been recognised for other earthquake damaged assets. 
 
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment are recognised through comprehensive 
income.  Impairment losses on revalued assets offset any balance in the asset revaluation reserve 
for that class of assets, with any remaining impairment loss being posted to comprehensive 
income. 
 
The reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to other comprehensive income 
and increases the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset. However, to the extent that an 
impairment loss for that class of asset was previously recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income, a reversal of the impairment loss is also recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, 
if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
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k. Share capital 

(i) Ordinary share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  
 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a 
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

 
(ii) Preference share capital 

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable and any dividends are 
discretionary, or is redeemable but only at the company’s option. Dividends on preference 
share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity. 
 
Preference share capital is classified as a liability if it provides for mandatory redemption by 
the issuer for a specific amount at a specific date (or gives the holder the right to require such 
redemption from the issuer), or if it gives the holder the right to put it back to the issuer for 
cash or another financial asset.  Dividends are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income as interest expense. 

 
(iii) Dividends 

Dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid. 
 
l. Interest-bearing borrowings 

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any 
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 

 
m. Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of 
expenditures, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle the 
obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

 
n. Employee entitlements 

Provision is made in respect of the Group’s liability for the following short and long-term employee 
entitlements: 
 
(i) Short-term entitlements 

Liabilities for annual leave and time off in lieu are accrued at the full amount owing at the pay 
period ending immediately prior to the balance date.   
 
Liabilities for accumulating short-term compensated absences (e.g., sick leave) are measured 
as the amount of unused entitlement accumulated at the pay period ending immediately prior 
to the balance date that the entity anticipates employees will use in future periods in excess of 
the days that they will be entitled to in each of those periods.  
 

(ii) Long-term entitlements 
The retiring gratuity and long service leave liabilities are assessed on an actuarial basis using 
current rates of pay taking into account years of service, years to entitlement and the 
likelihood staff will reach the point of entitlement.   

 
o. Leases 
 

(i)   Finance leases 
Leases in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset transfer to 
the lessee are classified as finance leases whether or not title is eventually transferred.  At 
inception, finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities on the statement of financial 
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position at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the 
minimum lease payments. Any additional direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount 
recognised as an asset.  Subsequently, assets leased under a finance lease are depreciated 
as if the assets are owned. 
 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables.  Finance lease 
receivables are initially recognised at amounts equal to the present value of minimum lease 
payments recoverable plus the present value of any guaranteed residual value expected to 
accrue at the end of the lease term.  Finance lease payments are allocated between interest 
revenue and reduction of the lease receivable over the term of the lease in order to reflect a 
constant rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 

 
(ii) Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset. 
 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the total lease 
expense. 

 
p. Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. 
 
(i) Services rendered 

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in 
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the statement of financial position 
date.  

 
(ii) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues, using 
the effective interest method. 

 
(iii) Finance lease income 

Finance lease income is allocated over the lease term on a systematic and rational basis.  
This income allocation is based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic return on the 
Company’s net investment in the finance lease. 

 
(iv) Insurance proceeds 

Insurance proceeds are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the 
compensation becomes receivable. 

 
q. Financing costs 

Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate 
method.  
  
The interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognised through the statement 
of comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method.  
 
Interest payable on borrowings is recognised as an expense through the statement of 
comprehensive income as it accrues. 
 

r. Income tax 
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognised through comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable in respect of previous years. 

 
Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are 
not provided for goodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes, and the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit. 

   
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement 
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
balance date. 

 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

 
s.      Goods and Services Tax 

The financial statements are prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and 
payables that are shown inclusive of GST. Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax, it is 
recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 

 
2. Impact of Canterbury earthquakes  
 
The purpose of this note is to disclose the estimated material impacts of the 2010/2011 earthquake 
events on the financial performance and financial position of the Company and Group. 
 
Operational Impacts of Earthquake 
The impact of the earthquake on the operations of the Company continues to be significant.  Only 
CBS Canterbury Arena was able to operate during the 2011/12 financial year as it sustained only 
superficial damage. 
 
The other three venues, AMI Stadium, Christchurch Town Hall for Performing Arts (Town Hall) and 
Christchurch Convention Centre all sustained major structural damage and have been closed since 22 
February 2011. The Convention Centre has since been demolished and work began in May 2012 to 
demolish the Hadlee Stand at AMI Stadium. The Council, in its 2012/13 Annual Plan, has indicated an 
intention to retain the Town Hall and a 30,000 seat stadium. The three venues are likely to be 
impacted by the implementation of the Canterbury Earthquake Recovery Authority (“CERA”) Blueprint 
which was released on 30 July 2012. However, detailed engineering assessments are continuing on 
the damaged venues. Once those assessments are complete, long-term decisions will be made in 
conjunction with the Company’s insurance underwriters. The possible outcomes include: 
 

o Not economic to repair – full replacement to be built to modern standards 
o Economic to repair – in conformance with council planning requirements 
o Negotiated cash settlement with insurance underwriters – with the buildings partly or wholly 

demolished. 
 
The Christchurch Convention Centre and Hadlee Stand buildings were de-recognised in the 2010/11 
financial statements. In the 2011/12 financial statements, the Town Hall building and remaining AMI 
buildings have been revalued to zero as it has been determined that the estimated cost of repairs is 
greater than the book value of the assets.   
 
The Company’s business interruption insurance to cover lost revenues and claims under this policy is 
due to cease in late February 2013. AMI Stadium memberships and naming rights agreements are on 
hold due to force majeure for the period that the stadium is closed.     
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Management and Governance Changes 
Due to the impact of the 2010/11 earthquakes on the Company’s business, the Council resolved, as 
shareholder, on 24 June 2011 to accept a proposal to change the governance and management 
structure of the Company resulting in the Council taking over direct responsibility for the management 
and governance. The key changes were: 
 

o Resignation of non-Council appointed directors effective 29 July 2011; and 

o Implementation of a staffing change proposal resulting in:  

o 44 positions becoming redundant effective 30 June 2011; 

o 6 Leadership Team positions (including the Chief Executive) becoming redundant 

effective 29 July 2011; and 

o Creation of the new position General Manger Vbase Venues to assume responsibility 

for business development and event delivery for the Vbase venues.  

A transition plan to hand over management and governance of the Company to Council was 
developed subsequent to the Council decision and was successfully implemented prior to the 
resignation of the non-Council appointed Directors on Vbase board 29 July 2011.  New directors were 
appointed on 10 June 2011 consisting of Council representatives and management.  
 
 
Financial Impacts recorded in financial statements  
The Company has business interruption insurance covering revenues lost as a result of the 
earthquake for a maximum period of two years from the date of the February 2011 earthquake event. 
  
The Company has insurance cover over its only operational facility, the CBS Arena. The cover could 
only be obtained through paying significantly increased premiums over previous years.  
 
AMI Stadium and the Town Hall were valued at zero in the Financial Statements based on an 
independent valuation report as at 30 June 2012. 
 
The 2012 Financial Statements revenue shows a receivable for the remaining indemnity insurance 
due in relation to its significantly damaged facilities. 
 
The key financial impacts of the Canterbury earthquakes on net profit in the year ended 30 June 2012 
are as follows: 

2012 2011

Impact on net profit $000 $000

Business Interruption Insurance claim in advance - 4,294 *
Material damage insurance claim in advance - 5,000

Material damage insurance claim receivable 166,598 43,736
Redundancy costs - (1,247) *

Earthquake repair / additional costs included in expenses (522) (230) *
Loss on de-recognition of buildings - (21,121)

Impairment of property plant & equipment - (29,980)
Revaluation of property, plant & equipment (64,235) -

Revaluation increment 29,980
101,841 30,432  

Impact on other comprehensive income
Net revaluation of land & buildings as at 30 June (19,953) (45,243) **

Total impact on shareholders funds 81,888 (14,811)

 
 
*   Net of income tax at 30% 
** Net of deferred tax at 28% 

ATTACHMENT 2 TO CLAUSE 3 CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 28. 11. 2012



Vbase Limited Annual Report Year Ended 30 June 2012 
 

Page 23 

 
Estimation uncertainty 
There are two key areas of estimation uncertainly that arise from the 2010/2011 earthquake events.  
They are: 
 

o determining the value of the Group’s assets.  The key assumptions used in the independent 
impairment and valuation assessments are disclosed in note 13; and 

o assessing the carrying value of the insurance proceeds receivable, the details of which are 
discussed below. 

 
Contingent asset in respect of insurance proceeds 
The Group can claim for lost revenue under its business interruption insurance policy for up to a 
maximum of 24 months from the date of the February 2011 earthquake event. 
 
The Company has received payments under the policy but the quantum of the future recoveries 
cannot be reliably measured until all financial data up to February 2013 is made available for the 
insurance assessor to calculate and agree the final payout. 
 
3. Profit from operations 
 
(a) Revenue 

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000
Rendering of services 8,861 24,174 8,861 24,174

8,861 24,174 8,861 24,174
Interest revenue:

Bank deposits 479 614 479 614
Related parties 674 - 674 -

1,153 614 1,153 614

Other revenue:
Management fee income 42 286 42 286

Insurance monies received 166,598 54,867 166,598 54,867
Profit on disposals of assets - 1 - 1

Other income 4,795 357 4,795 357
171,435 55,511 171,435 55,511

Total revenue from continuing operations 181,449 80,299 181,449 80,299

Parent Group
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(b) Expenses and costs 

2012 2011 2012 2011

Note $000 $000 $000 $000
Finance costs:

Interest on related party loans 2,487 6,129 2,487 6,129
Unwinding of discount on RPS 896 825 896 825

3,383 6,954 3,383 6,954

Depreciation and amortisation:
Depreciation of non-current assets 13 6,698 8,337 6,698 8,337

Amortisation of non-current assets 14 126 321 126 321
Amortisation of ground rent 210 210 210 210

Impairment of property, plant & 
equipment - 41,476 - 41,476

Revaluation increment - (41,476) - (41,476)
7,034 8,868 7,034 8,868

Revaluation of property, plant & equipment 64,235 - 64,235 -
Loss on de-recognition - 21,121 - 21,121

64,235 21,121 64,235 21,121

Employee benefit expense:
Salaries and wages 404 8,056 404 8,056

Employer contributions to pension plans - 19 - 19
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit 

liabil ities - 654 - 654

404 8,729 404 8,729

Other expenses:

Operating lease expenses - minimum 
lease payments 282 326 282 326
Directors fees 19 227 19 227
Food and beverage expenses 4,919 8,254 4,919 8,254
Management Fee 2,907 - 2,907 -
Donations - 12 - 12
Other expenses 4,494 8,149 4,494 8,149

12,621 16,968 12,621 16,968

Total expenses from continuing operations 87,677 62,640 87,677 62,640

Parent Group

 
 
On 1 August 2011, all employees of the Company were transferred to the Council which now provides 
these services to the Company. As such, the Company only has employee benefit expense for one 
month of the financial year. The remaining eleven months of salaries and wages expense is included 
in the Management Fee line under Other Expenses. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 TO CLAUSE 3 CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 28. 11. 2012



Vbase Limited Annual Report Year Ended 30 June 2012 
 

Page 25 

 
(c) Discontinued Operations 
 
Comprehensive income from discontinued operations 
 

Revenue

2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000

Rendering of services - - - 83
- - - 83

Interest revenue:
Finance lease interest revenue - - 2,042 2,178

Bank deposits 97 41
- - 2,139 2,219

Other revenue:

Dividend received from subsidiary 4,433 - - -
4,433 - - -

Total revenue 4,433 - 2,139 2,302

Finance costs:

Interest on related party loans - - 1,644 1,644
- - 1,644 1,644

Other expenses:

Operating lease expenses - minimum 
lease payments - - - 36

Other expenses - - 29 65
   Loss on sale of shares 12 1,586 - 1,586 -

1,586 - 1,615 101

Total expenses 1,586 - 3,259 1,745

Profit (loss) before income tax expense 2,847 - (1,120) 557

Income tax (expense)/income - - (106) (213)

Net profit from discontinued operations 2,847 - (1,226) 344

Other comprehensive income 

Disposal of JEFL Subsidiary - - 3,107 -

Total other comprehensive income - - 3,107 -

Total Comprehensive income 2,847 - 1,881 344

Parent Group
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Cash flows from discontinued operations 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating 

activ ities - - 3,530 4,341
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing 

activ ities 2,847 - - -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing 

activ ities - - (6,395) (1,657)
Net cash inflow f rom  disposal 9,864 - 9,864 -

12,711 - 6,999 2,684

Parent Group

 
Impact of disposal on financial position of the group 
 

Trade and other receivables 26,902
GST Liability left in JEFL (93)

Income tax liabil ity left in JEFL (425)
Repayment of Council loan to JEFL (12,550)

Tax (3,790)
Funds in escrow (180)
Net identifiable assets and liabil ities sold 9,864

Consideration received in cash 9,864
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4. Income taxes 
 
(a) Income tax recognised in profit or loss 

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000
Tax expense/(income) comprises:

Current tax expense / (income) 14,150 (535) 14,150 (535)

Adjustments recognised in current year in 
relation to the current tax of prior years 535 (546) 535 (546)

Adjustments recognised in current year in 

relation to the deferred tax of prior years 1,420 - 1,420 -

Adjustments recognised in the current year in 

relation to Deferred tax expense / (income) 
relating to changes in tax rates (95) - (95) -

Deferred tax expense / (income) relating to the 
origination and reversal of temporary 

diff erences (6,313) 7,085 (6,313) 7,085

Total tax expense on continuing operations 9,697 6,004 9,697 6,004

Parent Group

Reconciliation of prima facie income tax:

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000

Profit/(loss) f rom Continuing operations 93,772 17,659 93,772 17,659

Income tax expense calculated at 28% (2011: 
30%) 26,256 5,298 26,256 5,298

Subvention income recognised (1,279) - (1,279) -
Non-deductible expenses 251 252 251 252

Accounting depreciation adjustment (9) - (9) -
Accounting Asset Loss / Cost re Earthquake - 

Revaluation to P&L 290 - 290 -
Tax Depreciation recovered 20,720 - 20,720 -

Non-assessable income - -
 Insurance accrual on Rebuild Assets (38,392) - (38,392) -

 Effect on deferred tax balances due to 
removal of tax depreciation on buildings - 1,000 - 1,000

 Over provision of previous years income tax 1,860 (546) 1,860 (546)

Income tax expense from continuing 
operations 9,697 6,004 9,697 6,004

Parent Group

 
The Government's Budget in May 2010 provided for a reduction in the rate of corporate income tax 
from 30% to 28%, effective for years beginning on or after 1 April 2011.  The same Budget effectively 
removed the ability to claim a deduction for tax depreciation on buildings with a useful life of 50 years 
or more. 
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(b)  Current tax assets and liabilities 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000
Current tax assets:

Subvention Receivable - 538 - 538
- 538 - 538

Current tax payables:

Income tax payable 14,150 - 14,150 404
14,150 - 14,150 404

Parent Group

 
(c)  Deferred tax balances 
 
Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following:  
 

Group

Year ended 30 June 2012

Opening 

balance

Adjustment 

to opening 

balance

Charged to 

income

Charged to 

other 

comprehensive 

income

Disposal of 

Subsidiary

Closing 

balance

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 29,659 - 2,642 (4,868) (5,513) 21,920

Intangible assets (22) - 9 - - (13)

Temporary timing differences - provisions 51 - - - - 51

Temporary timing differences - other 8,491 1,325 (9,251) - - 565

38,179 1,325 (6,600) (4,868) (5,513) 22,523

Deferred tax assets:

Temporary timing differences - provisions - - - - - -

- - - - - -

Net deferred tax balance 38,179 1,325 (6,600) (4,868) (5,513) 22,523
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Parent

Year ended 30 June 2012

Opening 

balance

Adjustment 

to opening 

balance

Charged to 

income

Charged to 

other 

comprehensive 

income

Disposal of 

Subsidiary

Closing 

balance

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 23,859 - 2,929 (4,868) - 21,920

Intangible assets (22) - 9 - - (13)

Temporary timing differences - provisions 51 - - - - 51

Temporary timing differences - other 8,491 1,325 (9,251) - - 565

32,379 1,325 (6,313) (4,868) - 22,523

Deferred tax assets:

Temporary timing differences - provisions - - - - - -

- - - - - -

Net deferred tax balance 32,379 1,325 (6,313) (4,868) - 22,523

 
(d) Imputation credit account balances (Group) 
 

2012 2011
$000 $000

Balance as at 30 June - 18

 
No adjustment has been made for credits associated with tax payable given that any tax payable 
arising from the final Company tax return will be offset by tax losses within the group. 
 
 
5. Key management personnel compensation 
 
The compensation of the directors and executives, being the key management personnel of the entity 
is set out below: 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Short term employee benefits 107 1,182 107 1,182

Post-employment benefits - - - -

Termination payments 158 891 158 891

265 2,073 265 2,073

GroupParent

 
6. Remuneration of auditors 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Auditor of the parent entity:

Audit of the financial statements 85 48 85 57
85 48 85 57

Parent Group

The 2012 audit cost includes $33,000 relating to the audit of the 2011 financial statements. 
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7. Current trade and other receivables 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Trade receivables 1,388 2,246 1,388 2,246

Related party receivables 817 127 817 127
Insurance receivable 178,055 43,736 178,055 43,736

GST receivable 101 - 101 -
Other receivables 614 72 614 72

Provision for impairment (23) (28) (23) (28)
180,952 46,153 180,952 46,153

Finance lease receivable - - - 3,707

180,952 46,153 180,952 49,860

Parent Group

 
 
The status of receivables as at 30 June 2012 and 2011 are detailed below: 
 

Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Parent

Not past due 168,207 - 168,207 45,979 - 45,979
Past due 31 - 60 days 344 - 344 71 - 71

Past due 61 - 120 days 172 - 172 60 (1) 59
Past due > 120 days 12,252 (23) 12,229 71 (27) 44

Total 180,975 (23) 180,952 46,181 (28) 46,153

Group

Not past due 168,207 - 168,207 49,686 - 49,686
Past due 31 - 60 days 344 - 344 71 - 71

Past due 61 - 120 days 172 - 172 60 (1) 59

Past due > 120 days 12,252 (23) 12,229 71 (27) 44
Total 180,975 (23) 180,952 49,888 (28) 49,860

2012 2011

The carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximate their fair value. 
 
The carrying value of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have 
been renegotiated amount to nil (2011: nil). 
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The provision for impairment has been based on a review of significant debtor balances and a 
collective assessment of all debtors.  The collective impairment assessment is estimated on the basis 
of historical loss experience. 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Individual impairment (23) (28) (23) (28)
Total impairment (23) (28) (23) (28)

Movement in provision for impairment

As at 1 July (28) (47) (28) (47)
Additional provisions made during the year (2) (69) (2) (69)

Provisions reversed during the year 7 11 7 11
Receivables written off during the year - 77 - 77

Balance at 30 June (23) (28) (23) (28)

Parent Group

 
8. Other current financial assets 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Deposits held with the Council 26,512 - 26,512 -
Term deposits 9,168 2,025 9,168 2,025

35,680 2,025 35,680 2,025

Parent Group

There were no impairment provisions for other financial assets.  None of the financial assets are either 
past due or impaired. 
 
 
9. Current inventories 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Inventory held for use in the provision of 
services 225 106 225 106

225 106 225 106

Parent Group

 
No inventories are pledged as security for liabilities (2011: nil). 
 
There was no write-down of inventories (2011: nil). 
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10. Other current assets 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Prepayments 245 280 245 280
245 280 245 280

Parent Group

 
11. Non-current trade and other receivables 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Prepayments 2,970 3,180 2,970 3,180
Finance lease receivable - - - 24,998

2,970 3,180 2,970 28,178

Parent Group

The carrying value of finance lease receivable is recorded at the present value of minimum future 
lease payments which is considered to be fair value. With the sale of a 100% share in JEFL to an 
external party on 29 June 2012 there is no longer a finance lease in the Group’s statement of financial 
position. 
 
 
12. Other non-current financial assets 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Shares in subsidary - 11,450 - -
- 11,450 - -

Parent Group

 
 
 
The Company owns 100% of the issued shares in JEFL.  
 
JEFL owned and leased an Aero engine test facility that was situated at Christchurch International 
Airport.  
 
On 29 June 2012 the Company sold 100% of its shareholding in JEFL to Annzes Engines 
Christchurch Limited and Pratt & Whitney Holdings SAS (PWANZ). The sale was reached after an 
agreement was made to exercise a call option where by PWANZ purchase all shares in JEFL from the 
Company for consideration of $9.86 million. 
 
The disposal generated a loss on sale of the shares totalling $1.59 million and this has been 
separately disclosed in note 3c ‘Discontinued Operations’. 
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13. Property, plant and equipment 

Parent  and Group

Freehold 

land (fair 

value)

Buildings 

(fair value)

WIP 

Assets

Finance 

lease 

assets (fair 

value)

Plant & 

equipment 

(cost) Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Gross carrying amount:
Balance at 1 July 2010 14,148 216,051 - 8,277 8,293 246,769

Additions - 3,263 2,213 - 1,684 7,160
Disposals - (15,155) - (5,983) (4,110) (25,248)

Transfers - (2,228) - - 2,228 -
Net revaluation increments / 

(decrements) (5,348) 43,797 - 231 - 38,680
Balance at 30 June 2011 8,800 245,728 2,213 2,525 8,095 267,361

Additions - 539 3,676 - 291 4,506
Disposals - - - - (1) (1)

Net revaluation increments / 
(decrements) (3,600) (84,055) - (2,258) - (89,913)
Balance at 30 June 2012 5,200 162,212 5,889 267 8,385 181,953

Accumulated depreciation, 

amortisation and 

impairment:
Balance at 1 July 2010 - (10,110) - (771) (2,601) (13,482)

Disposals - 1,905 - 742 1,475 4,122
Depreciation expense - (6,391) - (281) (1,665) (8,337)

Impairment losses (98,507) - (250) - (98,757)
Transfers - - - - - -

Reversed on revaluation - 14,544 - 293 - 14,837
Balance at 30 June 2011 - (98,559) - (267) (2,791) (101,617)

Disposals - - - - (1) (1)
Depreciation expense - (5,615) - (113) (970) (6,698)

Reversed on revaluation - 5,611 - 113 - 5,724
Balance at 30 June 2012 - (98,563) - (267) (3,762) (102,592)

Net book value as at 30 June 

2011 8,800 147,169 2,213 2,258 5,304 165,744

Net book value as at 30 June 

2012 5,200 63,649 5,889 - 4,623 79,361

 
As a result of the 2010/11 earthquake events, damage was sustained to all Vbase venues.  The 
Christchurch Convention Centre has already been demolished and work began in May 2012 to 
demolish the Hadlee Stand at AMI Stadium. These two buildings were de-recognised in the 2011 
financial statements. The turf at AMI Stadium was also de-recognised in 2011. 
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Valuation 
The Company has had an independent valuation report on its land and buildings prepared by 
registered valuers Knight Frank Valuation Christchurch with the valuation date being 30 June 2012. 
 
The basis of valuation used is: 
 Land 

- Wilsons Road: Market value based on Comparison with other sites sold. 
- Peterborough Street: The market value has been arrived at on the basis of a 

capitalisation of potential income, with reference to market comparisons. 
- Kilmore Street: The value is based on reference to limited comparative sales of bare 

land, with no specific allowance for any additional foundation costs that may be 
necessary. 

 
 Buildings 

- CBS Canterbury Arena:  The value has been based on estimated replacement cost 
less an allowance for depreciation. 

- Town Hall: The value is based on depreciable replacement cost of the building less 
estimated repair costs to bring the building to 100% of the New Building Standards 
(NBS). 

- AMI Stadium:  The value is based on depreciable replacement cost of the building 
less estimated repair costs to bring the building to 100% of the New Building 
Standards (NBS). 

 
 
The valuation report concluded that the public would only accept these public buildings to be rebuilt to 
100% of NBS standards. 
 
The valuation report concluded that the AMI Stadium and Town Hall Structures were to be valued at 
nil. 
 
The valuation complies with Valuation Standard 3 issued by the Property Institute of New Zealand and 
with the New Zealand equivalent to International Accountant Standard 16 (NZIAS16), issued by the 
External Reporting Board. 
 
14. Intangible assets 
 

Software 2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Gross carrying amount:

Opening balance 772 673 772 673
Additions 14 101 14 101

Disposals - (2) - (2)
Closing balance 786 772 786 772

Accumulated amortisation and 

impairment:
Opening balance (636) (317) (636) (317)

Amortisation expense (126) (321) (126) (321)
Disposals - 2 - 2

Closing balance (762) (636) (762) (636)

24 136 24 136

Parent Group

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 TO CLAUSE 3 CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 28. 11. 2012



Vbase Limited Annual Report Year Ended 30 June 2012 
 

Page 35 

 
15. Current trade and other payables 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Trade payables 2,707 3,742 2,707 3,752
GST payable - 275 - 372

Owing to related parties 863 1,186 863 1,479
Income in advance 1,251 2,093 1,251 2,093

4,821 7,296 4,821 7,696

Parent Group

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximate their fair value. 
 
 
16. Current borrowings 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Unsecured:

Secured:

Loan from related parties - Council - 4,500 - 4,500

- 4,500 - 4,500

Parent Group

17. Employee Entitlements 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Employee benefits

Accrued salaries and wages - (8) - (8)
Annual leave - 250 - 250

Long service leave - 16 - 16
Sick leave - 30 - 30

Service and gratuity - 61 - 61
Redundancy - 1,042 - 1,042

- 1,391 - 1,391

Parent Group

On 1 August 2011 all employees of the Company were transferred to the Council. As such the 
Company has no further liability for employee entitlements. 
 
 
18. Non-current trade and other payables 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Income in advance 154 187 154 187

154 187 154 187

Parent Group

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximate their fair value. 
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19. Non-current borrowings 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Unsecured:

Loan from related party - Council 34,223 29,723 34,223 29,723
Redeemable preference shares 11,219 10,323 11,219 10,323

45,442 40,046 45,442 40,046
Secured:

Loan from related party - Council - - - 12,550

45,442 40,046 45,442 52,596

Parent Group

Interest is payable quarterly on all borrowings. The interest rate is calculated using the Council’s 
borrowing cost plus margin. 
 
JEFL repaid the $12.55 million cash advance with the Council on 29 June 2012 as part of the sale 
agreement for the disposal of JEFL by the Company. The fair value of the borrowing of the Company 
is $58,150,435 (2011: $39,795,264) based on cash flows discounted using the market borrowing rate 
of 3.95%.  The fair value of the borrowing of the Group is $58,150,435 (2011: $57,995,264). 
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20. Capital and other equity instruments 
 
All shares are $1 shares and are fully paid.  There is no uncalled capital.  All shares carry equal voting 
rights.  Redeemable preference shareholders have first call on any surplus on winding up of the 
Company. The A redeemable preference shares may be redeemed by the Company giving the 
shareholder five working days notice of the intention to do so.  None of the shares carry fixed dividend 
rights. 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Fully paid ordinary shares 100,136 100,136 100,136 100,136
Fully paid A redeemable preference shares 89,500 80,500 89,500 80,500

Equity component of  mandatory 
redeemable preference shares 3,183 4,079 3,183 4,079

192,819 184,715 192,819 184,715

Fully paid ordinary shares

Balance at beginning of financial year 100,136 59,136 100,136 59,136
Share issue - 41,000 - 41,000

Balance at end of financial year 100,136 100,136 100,136 100,136

Fully paid A redeemable preference 

shares
Balance at beginning of financial year 80,500 79,750 80,500 79,750

Share issue 9,000 12,750 9,000 12,750
Share buyback - (12,000) - (12,000)

Balance at end of financial year 89,500 80,500 89,500 80,500

Equity component of mandatory 
redeemable preference shares

Balance at beginning of financial year 4,079 4,903 4,079 4,903

Unwinding of discount (896) (824) (896) (824)
Balance at end of financial year 3,183 4,079 3,183 4,079

Parent Group

 
 
Prior to 2009, $14,402,000 of the redeemable preference shares carried a cumulative preferential 
dividend at the rate of 8.5% per annum.  When the shares vested in the Council, they were converted 
to a 0% dividend and therefore have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of 
8.5%. The discounting will be unwound through to the redemption date. The shares are to be 
redeemed in August 2015 although the Company has the right to redeem shares prior to that date. 
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21. Equity 

2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000

 Balance at 1 July 150,774 128,558 151,740 129,180

 Net shares issued 9,000 41,750 9,000 41,750

 Total comprehensive income 71,837 (19,534) 70,871 (19,190)

 Balance at 30 June 231,611 150,774 231,611 151,740

Parent Group

 
 
22. Capital commitments 
 
At balance date, the Company and Group had no specific commitment for capital expenditure. 
 
 
23. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
The Group has an outstanding claim with an insurance provider in relation to the JEFL facility which is 
currently estimated at $180,000. The claim process is in the early stages and there is not enough 
certainty to recognise this as a receivable as at 30 June 2012. As such the claim amount has been 
shown as a contingent asset. The sale of JEFL in June 2012 will not impact the rights of the Company 
to recover the claim. 
 
There is business interruption insurance in place which entitles the Company to recover any lost 
revenues for a maximum 24 month period from the date of an event adversely affecting one or more of 
its venues. The February 2011 earthquake event triggered the claim process under the policy in 
relation to the three closed venues. 
The Company has received payments under the policy but the quantum of the future recoveries 
cannot be reliably measured until all financial data up to February 2013 is made available for the 
insurance assessor to calculate and agree the final payout. 
 
Other than the above the Company and Group had no material contingent assets as at 30 June 2012 
(2011: none). 
 
There are no contingent liabilities for either the Company or the Group (2011 nil).  
 
 
24. Events after balance date 
 
 
On 30 July 2012 CERA released the new Central City Blueprint. This announcement has clarified the 
future direction of the City by indicating the desire for a new convention centre, performing arts 
precinct and stadium. However, no indication has been given at present of the Company’s 
involvement with these projects. 
 
There have been no other material events known to the Directors occurring subsequent to balance 
date that would have a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
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25. Notes to the cash flow statement 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 131 73 131 2,938
Call and term deposits 19,113 6,888 19,113 6,888

19,244 6,961 19,244 9,826

Reconciliation of profit for the period to 

net cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the period from continuing 
operations 84,075 11,655 84,075 11,655

Net profit for the period from discontinued 
operations 2,847 - (1,226) 344

Non cash items

Depreciation and amortisation of non-
current assets 7,034 8,868 7,034 8,868

Loss on disposal of property, plant & 
equipment - 21,122 - 21,122

Finance lease income accrued - - 1,803 1,679
Unwinding of discount on RPS 896 825 896 825

Movement in deferred tax (15,907) 7,085 (16,194) 6,894

Revaluation of property, plant & equipment 64,235 - 64,235 -

Items classified as investing / financing 

activities

Movement in capital creditors 754 1,144 754 1,144
Gain on disposal of  property, plant and 

equipment - (1) - (1)
Dividend received from subsidiary (4,433) - - -
Loss on sale of  shares 1,586 - 1,586 -
Interest revenue received (382) (570) (382) (570)
Finance and interest costs paid 3,216 6,130 5,153 7,787

Movement in working capital
(Decrease) / increase in creditors (3,963) (4,281) (4,246) (4,248)
Decrease / (increase) in receivables (135,602) (40,238) (135,602) (39,419)
(Increase) / decrease in inventory (119) 438 (119) 438

Net cash from operating activities 4,237 12,177 7,767 16,518

Parent Group
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26. Related-party transactions  
 
The Council is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.  The following transactions were carried 
out with related parties during the year: 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

Transactions and balances with 

Christchurch City Council Group companies

Receipts from related parties:
Hire of Rooms and related services to:

Christchurch City Council 137 2,115 137 2,115
City Care Ltd - 2 - 2

Riccarton Bush Trust 1 - 1 -
Lyttleton Port Co Ltd - 20 - 20

Orion Ltd 633 439 633 439
Christchurch City Networks Ltd - 2 - 2

Total receipts from Rooms and Related services 771 2,578 771 2,578

-
Operating costs and salaries charged to Civic

Building Ltd 42 132 42 132
Management fee receivable from Civic Building

Ltd - 165 - 165
Subvention payments received f rom CCC group

entities 4,569 2,790 4,196 3,206
Dividend Received from JEFL - - - -

Sales proceeds from JEFL Disposal 9,864 - - -

Interest received fromChristchurch City Council 15 - 15 -

Total receipts from related parties: 15,261 5,665 5,024 6,081

Payments to related parties:
Lease of Town Hall from the Council 141 60 141 60

Insurance, rates and other services provided by
Council 1,033 879 1,043 882

Interest expense to Council 3,215 6,129 4,859 7,773
Services provided by City Care Ltd 113 - 113 -

Services provided by Connetics Ltd 1 - 1 -
Services provided by Orion Ltd 3 - 3 -

Operating lease charges to Christchurch 
International Airport Ltd - - - 36

Rate payments to  Christchurch International 
Airport Ltd - - - 35

Tax losses offset to Council group entities 11,749 6,508 10,791 6,508
Loan repayments to Council - 41,000 - 41,000

Loan repayments to Council by JEFL - - 12,550 -

Total payments to related parties: 16,255 54,576 29,501 56,294

Parent Group
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2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Year end balances (exclusive of GST):

Accounts Payable to:
Council 410 1 410 1

Accounts payable City Care Ltd 45 - 45 -
Accounts payable to Orion NZ Ltd 1 84 1 84

Accounts payable related parties total: 456 85 456 85

Accounts receivable from:
Council 102 21 102 21

Civic Building Ltd - 190 - 190
Orion NZ Ltd 55 - 55 -

Accounts receivable related parties total: 157 211 157 211

Other balances:
Creditor accrual City Care 18 - 18 -

Creditor accrual Council 411 - 411 -
Loan advances from Council 34,223 34,223 34,223 46,773

Accrued interest payable to Council 457 1,185 457 1,478
Accrued interest receivable from Council (659) - (659) -

Short term deposits held with Council (26,512) - (26,512) -
Subvention payments receivable from group

companies - 1,559 - 1,559

Total other related party year end balances 7,938 36,967 7,938 49,810

Parent Group

 
 
Key Management Personnel 
 
Key management personnel of the Group have interests in other entities that transact with group 
members. Prior to the adoption of NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures from 1 July 2011 with effect 
from 1 July 2010 these transactions were disclosed.  
 
All transactions occurred on normal trading terms and conditions. 
 
No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from 
related parties (2011 $nil). 
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27. Leases 
 
(a) Finance lease receivable 

 
JEFL is party to a long term lease arrangement with a Pratt & Whitney/Air New Zealand joint venture, 
trading as the Christchurch Engine Centre, in respect of the test cell constructed by JEFL.  The lease 
incorporates an initial two year rent ‘holiday’, with future lease payments providing JEFL with a full 
return on its investment.  Lease payments are guaranteed by Pratt & Whitney’s holding company, 
United Technologies.  With the sale of JEFL by the Company on 29 June 2012 there is no longer a 
finance lease on the Group statement of financial position. 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

No later than one year - - - 3,856 - - - 3,707

Later than one year and not 
later than five years - - - 15,425 - - - 12,387

Later than f ive years - - - 21,904 - - - 12,611
Minimum lease payments - - - 41,185 - - - 28,705

Unguaranteed residual - - - - - - - -
Gross finance lease 

receivables - - - 41,185 - - - 28,705

Less unearned finance income - - - (12,480) - - - -
Present value of  minimum 
lease payments - - - 28,705 - - - 28,705

Included in the financial statements as:

Current trade and other receivables - - 3,707
Non-current trade and other receivables - - 24,998

- - - 28,705

Minimum future lease payments

Present value of minimum 

future lease payments
Parent Group Parent Group

 
(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 
 
The company and its subsidiaries lease property, plant and equipment in the normal course of 
business.  The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating 
leases are as follows:  
 

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

2012 2011 2012 2011 
$000 $000 $000 $000

No later than one year 216 218 216 272
Later than one year and not later than five years 772 767 772 984
Later than f ive years 5,051 5,151 5,051 5,638

6,039 6,136 6,039 6,894

Parent Group

 
 
There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.  
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(c) Non-cancellable operating leases as lessor 
 
The Company owns two buildings which it leases for use by other parties.  The future aggregate 
minimum lease receivables under these leases are as follows: 

Non-cancellable operating leases as lessor

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000

No later than one year 151 130 151 130
Later than one year and not later than five years 11 70 11 70

162 200 162 200

Parent Group

As at 30 June there are three leases associated with the two properties.  The first lease is currently 
running on a month to month basis and is expected to end in September 2012. The second lease 
expires in January 2013 however the lessee has a further three year right of renewal period should 
they wish to extend. The third lease expires in August 2013 and the lessee has a further two 6 year 
right of renewal periods should they wish to extend. 
 
28. Financial instruments 
 
Financial instrument risk 
 
The Group has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments. The 
Company is risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its financing activities. 
 
Credit risk management 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a 
financial loss to the Group. 
 
The 2011 accrued balance under the finance lease arrangement with Christchurch Engine Centre was 
the Group’s principal credit risk.  This risk was ameliorated by the fact that Pratt & Whitney’s ultimate 
holding company, United Technologies Ltd, was party to the lease arrangements.  United 
Technologies Ltd is a global listed company, with a market capitalisation of approximately US$67 
billion. 
 
Other than the finance lease, financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to concentrations 
of credit risk consist principally of cash and short term investments and accounts receivables. The 
Group places its cash and short term investments with various high-credit-quality banking institutions, 
and has no deposits with finance companies. 
 
The maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is the same as the carrying value. 
 
Other than already noted in the accounts, the Group has no significant exposure to credit risk. 
 
Liquidity risk management 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
 
The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and 
maintaining adequate reserves with the maturity profile of financial assets being matched to the 
financial liabilities.  The Group maintains reserve borrowing facilities with its parent, the Council, and 
intra-group. 
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Market risk management 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates 
and market prices, will affect the Company’s profit or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. 
 
Interest rates 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.  Borrowings and investments issued at variable interest rates expose 
the Company to interest rate risk. 
 
Redeemable preference shares are now at a rate of 0%.  
 
Interest rates on the Company's borrowing facility with the Council vary, depending on when the 
tranche was drawn down. The majority of rates are fixed with the exception of one tranche which is 
variable.   
 
The Company is not sensitive to movements in interest rates in respect of its borrowing obligations.  
Interest rate movements would, however, affect the amount of interest income received by the Group 
on surplus cash – a 1% movement either way would have the effect of increasing / decreasing the 
Company's profit before tax by $321,518 or $231,493 after tax and the group by $321,518 or $231,493 
before / after tax  (2011: Company $133,326 before tax, $93,328 after tax). 
 
Foreign exchange  
Exchange risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 
foreign exchange rates.  
 
The Group has little exposure to foreign exchange risk.  Any small foreign payments are settled at the 
rate prevalent on the due date.  Should any large foreign currency transactions arise, the company 
would enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk exposure. 
 
Price risk 
Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a 
result of changes in market prices.  The Group is not exposed to price risk on its financial instruments. 
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Credit quality of financial assets 
 
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to Standard and Poor's credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about 
counterparty default rates: 
 

2012 2011 2012 2011 

$000 $000 $000 $000
Counterparties with credit ratings

Cash at bank and bank term deposits

AA- 28,412 - 28,412 -

AA - 8,986 - 11,851
Total cash at bank and term deposits 28,412 8,986 28,412 11,851

Non bank term deposits

AA 26,512 - 26,512 -
26,512 - 26,512 -

Counterparties without credit ratings

Loans to related parties

Existing conterparty with no defaults in the past 817 127 817 127

Total loans to related parties 817 127 817 127

Debtors and other receivables

Existing conterparty with no defaults in the past 180,135 46,026 180,135 74,731

Total debtors and other receivables 180,135 46,026 180,135 74,731

Parent Group
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Classification of financial instruments 
 
The Group and Company have not classified any financial assets or financial liabilities as designated 
at fair value, fair value through other comprehensive income or held to maturity in 2012 or 2011. 
 

Parent 2012

Loans & 

receivables

Other 

amortised 

cost

Total  

carrying 

amount

$000 $000 $000
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19,244 - 19,244
Trade and other receivables 180,135 - 180,135

Other f inancial assets 35,680 - 35,680
Other (related party loans) 817 - 817

235,876 - 235,876

Non current assets

Prepayments 2,970 - 2,970
2,970 - 2,970

Total Financial Assets 238,846 - 238,846

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - 4,821 4,821

- 4,821 4,821

Non current liabilities

Borrowings - 45,442 45,442
Other (income in advance) - 154 154

- 45,596 45,596
Total Financial Liabilities - 50,417 50,417
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Parent 2011

Loans & 

receivables

Other 

amortised 

cost

Total 

carrying 

amount

$000 $000 $000
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,961 - 6,961
Trade and other receivables 46,026 - 46,026

Other f inancial assets 2,025 - 2,025
Other (related party loans) 127 - 127

55,139 - 55,139

Non current assets

- - -
Total Financial Assets 55,139 - 55,139

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - 7,296 7,296

Borrowings - 4,500 4,500
- 11,796 11,796

Non current liabilities
Borrowings - 40,046 40,046

Other (income in advance) - 187 187
- 40,233 40,233

Total Financial Liabilities - 52,029 52,029

.

Group  2012

Loans & 

receivables

Other 

amortised 

cost

Total 

carrying 

amount

$000 $000 $000
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19,244 - 19,244
Trade and other receivables 180,135 - 180,135

Other f inancial assets 35,680 - 35,680
Other (related party) 817 - 817

235,876 - 235,876

Non current assets

Prepayments 2,970 - 2,970
2,970 - 2,970

Total Financial Assets 238,846 - 238,846

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables - 4,821 4,821
- 4,821 4,821

Non current liabilities
Borrowings - 45,442 45,442

Other (income in advance) - 154 154
- 45,596 45,596

Total Financial Liabilities - 50,417 50,417
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Group 2011

Loans & 

receivables

Other 

amortised 

cost

Total 

carrying 

amount

$000 $000 $000
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9,826 - 9,826
Trade and other receivables 46,026 - 46,026

Other f inancial assets 2,025 - 2,025
Other (finance lease receivable) 3,707 3,707

Other (related party loans) 127 - 127
61,711 - 61,711

Non current assets
Trade and other receivables - - -

Other (finance lease receivable) 24,998 - 24,998
24,998 - 24,998

Total Financial Assets 86,709 - 86,709

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables - 7,696 7,696
Borrowings - 4,500 4,500

- 12,196 12,196

Non current liabilities

Borrowings - 52,596 52,596
Other (income in advance) - 187 187

- 52,783 52,783
Total Financial Liabilities - 64,979 64,979
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Contractual Maturity Analysis 

Parent - As at 30 June 2012

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cashflows

Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

3 - 5 

years

More than 

5 years
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 19,244 19,244 19,244 - - -

Trade receivables 180,135 180,135 180,135 - - -
Other f inancial assets 35,680 35,680 35,680 - - -

Other (related party receivables) 817 817 817 - - -
Prepayments 2,970 2,970 210 210 630 1,920

238,846 238,846 236,086 210 630 1,920

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,707 2,707 2,707

Borrowings 45,442 82,083 2,466 2,466 11,900 65,251
Other (income in advance) 1,405 1,405 1,251 50 101 3

Other (related party) 863 863 863 - - -
50,417 87,058 7,287 2,516 12,001 65,254

.

Parent - As at 30 June 2011

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cashflows

Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

3 - 5 

years

More than 

5 years
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 6,961 6,961 6,961 - - -

Trade receivables 46,026 46,026 46,026 - - -
Other f inancial assets 2,025 2,025 2,025 - - -

Other (related party loans) 127 127 127 - - -
55,139 55,139 55,139 - - -

Financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 4,017 4,017 4,017 - - -
Borrowings 44,546 84,172 6,979 2,152 6,458 68,583

Other (income in advance) 2,280 2,280 2,092 64 62 62
Other (related party) 1,186 1,186 1,186 - - -

52,029 91,655 14,274 2,216 6,520 68,645

Group - As at 30 June 2012

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cashflows

Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

3 - 5 

years

More than 

5 years
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 19,244 19,244 19,244 - - -

Trade and other receivables 180,135 180,135 180,135 - - -
Other f inancial assets 35,680 35,680 35,680 - - -

Other - related party 817 817 817 - - -
Prepayments 2,970 2,970 210 210 630 1,920

238,846 238,846 236,086 210 630 1,920

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,707 2,707 2,707 - - -

Borrowings 45,442 82,083 2,466 2,466 11,900 65,251
Other (income in advance) 1,405 1,405 1,251 50 101 3

Other (related party) 863 863 863 - - -
50,417 87,058 7,287 2,516 12,001 65,254
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Group - As at 30 June 2011

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cashflows

Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

3 - 5 

years

More than 

5 years
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,826 9,826 9,826 - - -

Trade and other receivables 46,026 46,026 46,026 - - -
Other f inancial assets 2,025 2,025 2,025 - - -

Other (related party loans) 127 127 127 - - -
Finance lease receivables 28,705 41,185 3,856 3,856 11,569 21,904

86,709 99,189 61,860 3,856 11,569 21,904

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 4,122 4,122 4,122 - - -

Borrowings 57,096 103,947 8,623 3,796 14,589 76,939
Other (income in advance) 2,280 2,280 2,092 64 62 62

Other (related party) 1,479 1,479 1,479 - - -
64,977 111,828 16,316 3,860 14,651 77,001

 
29.  Capital Management 
 
The Group’s capital is its equity, which comprises retained earnings and property valuation and fair 
value through comprehensive income reserves.  Equity is represented by net assets.   
 
The Company is a Council Controlled Organisation as defined by the Local Government Act 2002 
which includes restrictions on how it operates and defines reporting and accountability processes.  
Council has a general security agreement over all Company assets which restricts the ability to 
dispose of certain property and to enter into new borrowing arrangements. During the year, the 
Company issued $9 million redeemable preference shares to Council. 
 
The Group manages its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial 
dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interest of the community.  
The Group's equity is largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, 
liabilities and general financial dealings. 
 
The objective of managing the Group's equity is to ensure that it effectively and efficiently achieves the 
goals and objectives for which it has been established, while remaining a going concern. 

 
30. Statutory reporting declaration     
       
The Local Government Act 2002 requires the Group to submit half year accounts and a Statement of 
Intent to its Board and to its shareholder within specified timeframes. For the 2011/12 financial year 
the Group did not meet the specified timeframes as set out in the legislation for the submission of 
documents to its shareholder. 
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Statement of Service Performance 
 
Reporting against the Statement of Intent 
 

Objective and Strategy Performance Measure Result 

1 - Great Stages – Vbase will tailor a 
great stage for any event  
 
• Establish the technology platform for 
best practice Asset & Facilities 
Management  
 
• Utilise the CBS Canterbury Arena to 
support displaced cultural/community 
business from the Christchurch Town 
Hall.  
 

 
 
 
Implement EBMS asset 
management software by 
June 2012  
 
90% booking for annual 
cultural events displaced 
from the Christchurch Town 
Hall  

 
 
 
Not achieved 

 

 

Reached 70% of target 

2 - Great Hosting – deliver an 
outstanding client and service 
experience  
 
• Implement online client satisfaction 
survey  

 
 
 
 
Achieve greater than 80% 
satisfaction during year  

 
 
 
 
No Survey undertaken 
during the period. 
 

3 - Growth – utilise assets and 
capabilities for growth  
 
• Maximize event days at CBS 
Canterbury Arena  
 
• Support the Council in endeavours to 
increase the available conference 
venues  
 

 
 
 
> 150 event days  
 
 
Business development 
team is part of project team 
for new conference venue 
development initiatives  

 
 
 
171 booked days 
 
 
Negotiations are continuing 
in securing a facility that will 
be used for Convention 
Centre activities for the 
short to medium term from 
February 2013 
  
Vbase has a representative  
on the Convention Centre 
Working Committee 
 

4 - Valuable Partnerships – great to do 
business with and a great place to work  
  
• Secure events that will attract national 
and international visitors to Christchurch 
and generate positive economic impact 
  
• Secure events that will encourage high 
usage of the venues  
 
• Facilitate access to the venues for 
local sporting, charitable and cultural 
organisations  
 

 
 
 
Annual visitor spending 
exceeds $40 million 
 
 
Visitors to venues exceeds 
200,000  
 
Total venue discounts 
exceed $200,000  

 

 

 

Annual visitor spend was 
$23.1 million 
 

 
244,836 visitors per annum 
to Vbase venues 
 
$396,118 venue discounts 
have been provided during 
the year 
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Objective and Strategy Performance Measure Result 

5 - Brand Equity – Vbase will build its 
reputation, profile and influence  

 

• Maintain the recognition level of the 
Vbase brand  

 

 

 

Invest in trade shows, trade 
publications and client 
familiarisations to the value 
of $100,000  

 

 

 

 

Invested  $94,217 for the 
year to 30 June 2012 in this 
area 

 

 

6 - Health and Safety – Vbase will be a 
safe place to work and visit  

 

• Further develop Vbase staff culture 
and fully participate in CCC 
Engagement Survey  

 

• Continue to tune health and safety  
(H&S) systems and processes  

 

 

 

 

• Provide leadership to clients, 
contractors and sub contractors  

 

 

 

 

At least 59% participation in 
Engagement survey 

 

 

Improvement in staff H&S 
performance review scores  

 

 

 

 

100% contractor and client 
compliance  

 

Improvement in contractor 
performance review 
outcomes  

 

100% accreditation of 
contractors 

 

 

 

Participation rate of  50%       

 

 

No formal H&S review 
scorecard was completed 
during the year but Vbase 
management has initiated a 
wellness committee which 
meet on a periodic basis. 

 

All contractors were 100% 
compliant for 2011/12 

 

 

 

JEFL performance targets 
 

Performance Target Performance Measure Result 

The engine test cell continues to be 
provided as per the criteria established 
in the contract documentation 

The Christchurch Engine 
Centre continues to 
operate the engine test cell 
successfully and meet its 
lease payment obligations 

 

Target met during the year. 
JEFL was sold to an external 
party on 29 June 2012. 

The company meets all relevant 
legislative and contractual 
requirements 

No breaches of legislative 
or contractual 
requirements are recorded 

 

Target met during the year, 
other than the lack of 
material damage insurance 
for the test cell from 1 July 
2011 following the 
earthquakes. JEFL was sold 
to an external party on 29 
June 2012. 
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Financial performance targets 
 

2012 2012

Actual Target
$000 $000

Income 183,588 6,486

Less Operating Expenses 13,054 4,455
EBITDA 170,534 2,031

Less  

Interest 5,027 4,523
Depreciation 7,034 9,124

Revaluation of property, plant & equipment 64,235 -
Loss on sale of  shares 1,586 -

Net Surplus (deficit) before tax 92,652 (11,616)

Taxation 9,803 (2,074)
Net Surplus (deficit) after tax 82,849 (9,542)

Group

 
 
The JEFL values have been included in the ‘Actual’ individual line items above and have not 
been separately disclosed on a single line as a discontinued item as was the treatment in the 
statement of comprehensive income. This treatment is consistent with how the ‘Target’ 
numbers were generated. 
 
A total of $167 million in accrued insurance payout receipts have been included in the 2012 
income total under the ‘Actual’ column. During the target setting stage there was insufficient 
information available in relation to the extent of the building damage and as such there were 
no grounds at the time to revalue the buildings or accrue for the entire insurance indemnity 
values. It was not until later in the 2012 financial year that there was certainty around the 
extent of damage which, under the New Zealand Accounting Standards, allowed the 
insurance indemnity to be accrued and also enabled a more accurate asset valuation to be 
performed on 30 June 2012. 
The sale of JEFL was confirmed near the end of the 2012 financial year and it was executed 
on 29

 
June 2012, thus the detailed were not available or considered when the target numbers 

were set.  
 
Ratio of Shareholders funds to total assets 
 
The forecast ratio of Shareholders funds to total assets is: 
 

Target Actual 
64% 73% 

 
The forecast capital structure is: 
 

 Target Actual 
 
Equity 
Debt 
Total Assets 

$m 
169 
  35 
256 

$m 
232 
  45 
319 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the readers of 
Vbase Limited and group’s 

financial statements and statement of service performance 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 

The Auditor General is the auditor of Vbase Limited (the company) and group. The Auditor 
General has appointed me, Ian Lothian, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to 
carry out the audit of the financial statements and statement of service performance of the 
company and group on her behalf.  

We have audited: 

 the financial statements of the company and group on pages 8 to 50, that comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the 
year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements that include 
accounting policies and other explanatory information; and 

 the statement of service performance of the company and group on pages 51 to 53. 

Disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements – we were unable to form 
an opinion because the impact of the Christchurch earthquakes on the 
carrying value of land and buildings, and the associated current and deferred 
tax balances, could not be determined  

Reason for our disclaimer of opinion 

The company owns land at one venue, and buildings at four venues in Christchurch City which 
are carried at their fair value. The land and buildings are shown at their 30 June 2012 
revaluation estimates, less amounts relating to derecognition and impairment due to 
earthquake damage. The assumptions underlying the revaluations and impairments to land and 
buildings are subject to significant uncertainty and there is insufficient market evidence to 
support a reliable fair value for the land and buildings as at 30 June 2012. 

Land and buildings are included in the statement of financial position at their estimated fair 
value at 30 June 2012 of $68,848,494 which represents 87% of total property, plant and 
equipment as at 30 June 2012. 

In accordance with NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes, the tax treatment of land and buildings is 
dependent on their future use. The extent of earthquake damage means that the future use of 
a significant proportion of the company’s land and buildings is not known. Accordingly, current 
and deferred tax balances in the statement of financial position associated with land and 
buildings cannot be reliably determined.   

As a result of the above matters, the scope of our audit was limited and we were unable to 
determine whether the carrying values of land and buildings and the associated current and 
deferred tax balances are fairly stated. 
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Disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements, other than the cash flow statement 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the “Reason for our disclaimer of 
opinion” paragraph above, we have been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements, other than the cash flow 
statement, of the company and group on pages 8 to 50: 

 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; 

 give a true and fair view of the company and group’s: 

 financial position as at 30 June 2012; and 

 financial performance for the year ended on that date. 

Opinion on the cash flow statement 

In our opinion, the cash flow statement on page 12 complies with generally accepted 
accounting practice in New Zealand and gives a true and fair view of the company and 
group’s cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2012. 

Qualified opinion on the statement of service performance 

Reason for our qualified opinion 

As stated above, the scope of our audit of the financial statements was limited and we were 
unable to determine whether the carrying values of land and buildings and the associated 
current and deferred tax balances are fairly stated.  Any adjustments to the carrying values 
of those items may affect the company and group’s reported achievements against the 
financial performance targets included in the statement of service performance. 

Qualified opinion on the statement of service performance  

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Reason for our qualified 
opinion” paragraph above, the statement of service performance of the company and group 
on pages 51 to 53: 

 complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

 gives a true and fair view of the company and group’s service performance 
achievements measured against the performance targets adopted for the year ended 
30 June 2012. 

Opinion on other legal requirements 

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 we report that, in our opinion, proper 
accounting records have been kept by the company and group as far as appears from an 
examination of those records. 

Our audit was completed on 25 September 2012. This is the date at which our opinions are 
expressed. 

The basis of our opinions is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the 
Board of Directors and our responsibilities, and explain our independence. 
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Basis of opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and statement of service 
performance are free from material misstatement.  

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would 
affect a reader’s overall understanding of the financial statements and statement of service 
performance. We are unable to determine whether there are material misstatements in the 
financial statements and statement of service performance because the scope of our work was 
limited, as we referred to in our disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements other than the   
cash flow statement and our qualified opinion on the statement of service performance.  

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service performance. The procedures 
selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements and statement of service performance whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the company’s 
preparation of the financial statements and statement of service performance that give a true 
and fair view of the matters to which they relate. We consider internal control in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. 

An audit also involves evaluating: 

 the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been 
consistently applied; 

 the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by 
the Board of Directors; 

 the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service 
performance; and 

 the overall presentation of the financial statements and statement of service 
performance. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the 
financial statements and statement of service performance. In accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Act 1993, we report that we have not obtained all the information and explanations 
we have required with the consequence that we have issued a disclaimer of opinion on the 
financial statements other than the cash flow statement and a qualified opinion on the 
statement of service performance.  

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing financial statements and a statement of 
service performance that: 

 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;  
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 give a true and fair view of the company’s financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows; and 

 give a true and fair view of its service performance. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements and a statement of service performance that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the Local Government Act 2002 and the 
Financial Reporting Act 1993. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We are responsible for expressing independent opinions on the financial statements and 
statement of service performance and reporting those opinions to you based on our audit. Our 
responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 69 of the Local 
Government Act 2002.  
 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-
General, which incorporate the independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute of 
Chartered Accountants. 

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the company or any of its 
subsidiaries. 

 

 

Ian Lothian 
Audit New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Christchurch, New Zealand 
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0BSTATUTORY DISCLOSURES 
1BFOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012 

 
State of Affairs 
 
On 28 June 2006, the Company changed its name to Tuam Limited.  On 30 June 2006, Tuam Limited 
purchased the Civic offices and associated buildings from Christchurch City Council.  
 
The financial statements of Tuam Limited are for the year ended 30 June 2012. For the year ended 30 
June 2012, Tuam Limited made a Net Surplus of $196,268 (2011:  ($531,561).   
 
Tuam  Ltd  has  no  employees  and  the  Company  is managed  by  Christchurch  City  Council  under  a 
management contract. 
 
 

Directors 
 

The persons holding office as Directors of the Company for the year and at 30 June 2012 were: 
 

P J Anderson       
A J Marryatt        

 
The  following Directors have made general disclosures of  interest with  respect  to any  transaction 
that may be entered  into with certain organisations on the basis of their being a Director, Partner, 
Trustee or Officer of those organisations during the year: 
 

P J Anderson  General Manager – Corporate 
Services 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
 
Director 
Director – resigned 1 July 2012 

Christchurch City Council 
 
CCC One Limited 
Creative Licence Limited 
EcoCentral Limited 
New Zealand Local Government 
Funding Agency Limited 
Ellerslie International Flower Show Ltd 
Canterbury Development Corporation 
Holdings Limited (formerly CCC Four 
Limited) 
 

A J Marryatt  Chief Executive Officer 
Director 
 
Director 
Director 
 
Director – resigned 1 July 2012 

Christchurch City Council 
Local Government Mutual Funds 
Trustee Limited 
Vbase Limited 
New Zealand Local Government 
Insurance Corporation Limited 
Canterbury Development Corporation 
Holdings Limited (formerly CCC Four 
Limited) 
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2BStatement of Comprehensive Income 
3Bfor the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
 

2012 2011

Note $000 $000

Revenue from operations 2(a) 120 549            
Other income 2(a) 823 1,384        

943 1,933         

Finance costs 2(b) 342 982            
Depreciation and Impairment -             -                
Other expenses 2(b) 553 1,241         

895 2,223         

Profit (loss) before income tax expense 48 (290)           

Income tax expense/(Income) 3 (149) 242           

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for period 197 (532)          

Other Comprehensive Income -             -                

Total Comprehensive Income 197 (532)          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4BThe accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.  
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5BStatement of Changes in Equity 
6Bfor the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
 

Capital Retained Total

Reserves earnings equity
$000 $000 $000

Balance as at 30 June 2010 9,135     (12,101) (2,966)        

Total comprehensive income for the year -             (532) (532)           
Share capital issued 9,000     -                  9,000         

Balance as at 30 June 2011 18,135 (12,634) 5,501        

Total comprehensive income for the year -             197 197            
Share capital issued -           -                 -                

Balance as at 30 June 2012 18,135 (12,437) 5,698        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7BThe accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.  
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11BCash Flow Statement 
12Bfor the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
 

2012 2011

Note $000 $000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating Revenue 598 758           
Subvention payment received / (paid) 267 2                
Payments to suppliers (712) (1,120)        
RWT tax received / (paid) 23 33             
Net GST movement 121 4                
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 10(b) 297 (323)           

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 32 37              
Sale of Investment Property 925 -                 

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities 957 37              

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest and other finance costs paid (342) (982)           
Proceeds from issue of equity securities -             9,000        
Repayment of borrowings -              (9,000)        
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (342) (982)           

Net inflow/ (outflow) of cash 912 (1,268)        
Opening bank and short term investments 10(a) 470 1,738         

Represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,382 470           

 

 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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13BNotes to the Accounts 
 
1. 14BStatement of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
a) 31BReporting Entity 

 
These are the financial statements of Tuam Limited (“the Company”). 
 
The Company is registered under the Companies Act 1993 and is domiciled in New Zealand.  The 
company  is  a  Council  Controlled  Trading  Organisation  as  defined  by  Section  6  of  the  Local 
Government Act 2002. 
 
The  primary  objective  of  the  company  is  to  manage  the  Christchurch  City  Council  Civic 
Buildings/Offices  and  car  park.    Accordingly,  the  company  has  designated  itself  as  a  profit 
oriented entity for the purposes of New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards (NZ IFRS). 
 
The  financial  statements of  the  company  are  for  the  year ended 30  June 2012.   The  financial 
statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2012. 
 

b) 15BStatement of Compliance 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared  in accordance with New Zealand 
generally  accepted  accounting  practice.    They  comply  with  the  New  Zealand  equivalents  to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). 

 
c) 16BBasis of financial statement preparation 

 
The  financial statements are prepared under  the historical cost convention, as modified by the 
revaluation of  investment properties.   However, as the Company has been unable to determine 
the  cost  of  repair  of  the  buildings  as  a  result  of  earthquake  damage  the  Company  has  been 
unable to revalue the investment properties for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
The functional and presentation currency  is New Zealand dollars, and all values are rounded to 
the nearest thousand dollars ($000).  
 
In  preparing  these  financial  statements  the  Company  has  made  estimates  and  assumptions 
concerning the future.  These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual 
results.    Estimates  and  assumptions  are  continually  evaluated  and  are  based  on  historical 
experience  and  other  factors,  including  expectations  or  future  events  that  are  believed  to be 
reasonable  under  the  circumstances.    In  the  process  of  applying  these  accounting  policies, 
management has made the following judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the most 
significant impact on the amounts recognised in these financial statements; 
 

 The  valuation  of  the  Company’s  investment  property  at market  value  has  a material 
impact on the amounts recognised in these financial statements and involves a significant 
amount of judgement.  An independent valuer is commissioned to perform the valuation 
annually to ensure the market value is appropriate.  For the year ended 30 June 2012 an 
independent  valuer was  commissioned  to  perform  the  valuation however, due  to  the 
high level of uncertainty as to the value of the damage suffered by the buildings a market 
value could not be determined.  Management are required to exercise judgement when 
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determining whether insurance payments are virtually certain and should be recognised 
as revenue in the current year.  In making this assessment they make judgements about 
the likelihood of payment by insurers based on the agreements in place.  

 
17BThe following new standards,  interpretations and amendments have been adopted for the year 
ended 30 June 2012: 

 
 NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009) effective 1 January 2011 ‐ This Standard 

makes  amendments  to  New  Zealand  Accounting  Standard  NZ  IAS  24  Related  Party 
Disclosures.  The amendments simplify the definition of a related party and provide a partial 
exemption from the disclosure requirements for government‐related entities. 

 

 Improvements to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures effective 1 January 2011 – The 
amendments  add  an  explicit  statement  that  qualitative  disclosure  should  be made  in  the 
context  of  the  quantitative  disclosures  to  better  enable  users  to  evaluate  an  entity’s 
exposure  to  risks arising  from  financial  instruments.   The  IASB also amended and  removed 
existing disclosure requirements  including deleting the requirement to disclose the carrying 
amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have 
been renegotiated. 

 

 Improvements  to NZ  IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective 1  January 2011 – 
Clarification was provided  in that entities may present the required reconciliations for each 
component of other comprehensive income either in the statement of changes in equity or in 
the notes to the financial statements.  

 

 Improvements  to  NZ  IAS  34  Interim  Financial  Reporting  effective  1  January  2011  –  The 
amendments add examples to the list of events or transactions that require disclosure under 
IAS  34  and  remove  references  to  materiality  in  IAS  34  that  describes  other  minimum 
disclosures. 

 

 Amendments  to NZ  IFRS 7  Financial  Instruments  effective 1  July 2011 – The  amendments 
introduce  new  disclosure  requirements  about  transfers  of  financial  assets  including 
disclosures for:  

o Financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety; and 
o Financial  assets  that  are  derecognised  in  their  entirety  but  for  which  the  entity 

retains continuing involvement 
 

 NZ FRS 44 – NZ Additional Disclosures effective 1 July 2011 – The objective of this Standard is 
to prescribe the New Zealand‐specific disclosures such as: 

o Where  an  entity’s  financial  statements  comply with  NZ  IFRSs  they  shall make  an 
explicit and unreserved statement of such compliance in the notes; 

o An entity shall disclose  in  its notes  its reporting framework and for the purposes of 
complying with NZ GAAP whether it is a profit‐oriented or public benefit entity; 

o An entity shall disclose fees to each auditor or reviewer, including any network firm, 
separately  for  an Audit/Review  of  the  Financial  Statements  and  all Other  services 
during that period; 

o An  entity  shall  disclose  the  amount  of  Imputation  credits  available  for  use  in 
subsequent reporting periods; 

o Where a Statement of Service Performance is presented the entity must disclose the 
outputs of an entity and information on the effects on the community of the entity’s 
existence and operations. 
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18BThe following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been issued but are not yet 
effective  for  the  year  ended  30  June  2012,  and  have  not  been  applied  in  preparing  these 
consolidated financial statements: 

 

 Amendments  to NZ  IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective 1  July 2012  ‐ The 
amendments  require  that  an  entity  present  separately  the  items  of  other  comprehensive 
income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met 
from  those  that would  never  be  reclassified  to  profit  or  loss;  do  not  change  the  existing 
option to present profit or  loss and other comprehensive  income  in two statements; and a 
change of title of ‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ to ‘Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income’ to emphasise the two components.  However, an entity is still 
allowed to use other titles. 

 

 Amendments to NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes effective for period beginning after 1 January 2012 – 
The amendments  introduce an exception  to  the general measurement  requirements of NZ 
IAS  12  Income  Taxes  in  respect  of  investment  properties  measured  at  fair  value.    The 
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities, in this limited circumstance, is based on a 
rebuttable  presumption  that  the  carrying  amount  of  the  investment  property  will  be 
recovered entirely  through  sale.   The presumption  can be  rebutted only  if  the  investment 
property  is  depreciable  and  held within  a  business model whose  objective  is  to  consume 
substantially all of the asset’s economic benefits over the life of the asset. 

 

 NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – replacing NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement – effective 1  January 2015.   NZ  IFRS 9 uses a  single approach  to determine 
whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value.  Entities are required to 
classify financial assets based on the objectives of the entity’s business model for managing 
the financial assets.  Where the financial assets are eligible to be measured at amortised cost 
due  to  the business model,  the entity  shall use  the  characteristics of  the  contractual  cash 
flows to measure cost. 

 

 NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement effective 1 January 2013 – IFRS 13 replaces the fair value 
measurement  guidance  contained  in  individual  IFRSs  with  a  single  source  of  fair  value 
measurement  guidance.    It  defines  fair  value,  establishes  a  framework  for measuring  fair 
value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value measurements.  It explains how to 
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other IFRSs.  It does not introduce new 
requirements  to  measure  assets  or  liabilities  at  fair  value,  nor  does  it  eliminate  the 
practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain standards. 

 
Other  than  for  the  general  descriptions  provided  above,  the  Company  has  not  yet 
determined the potential impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments for 
those standards not effective at 30 June 2012. 
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d) 19BRevenue 
 
Rental  income  from  investment  property  is  recognised  in  the  Statement  of  Comprehensive 
Income  on  a  straight‐line  basis  over  the  term  of  the  lease.    Lease  incentives  granted  are 
recognised as an integral part of the total rental income. 
 
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 
 
Insurance recoveries are recognised when the claim can be reliability measured and where there 
is virtual certainty of receiving the amount. 

 
e) 20BBorrowing Costs 

 
Borrowing  costs are  recognised as an expense  in  the period  in which  they are  incurred unless 
they meet the conditions for capitalised interest. 
 

f) 21BIncome tax 
 
Income tax on the profit or  loss comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax  is recognised  in 
the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous years. 
 
Deferred  tax  is  provided  using  the  balance  sheet  liability  method,  providing  for  temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
 
The  amount  of  deferred  tax  provided  is  based  on  the  expected  manner  of  realisation  or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the asset can be utilised.   Deferred tax assets are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
 

 

g) 22BCash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits, and other short‐term highly 
liquid  investments with maturities of three months or  less.   Bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on  demand  and  form  an  integral  part  of  the  Company's  cash management  are  included  as  a 
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows, and in 
current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position. 

 
 

h) 23BTrade and other receivables 
 

Trade and other  receivables are  initially measured at  fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost less impairment provision. 
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i) 24BInvestment Property 
 

The  Tuam  Street  car  park  and  associated  buildings  are  classified  as  investment  property.  
Investment  property  is measured  initially  at  its  cost,  including  transaction  costs.   After  initial 
recognition,  the  investment  property  is measured  at  fair  value  as  determined  annually  by  an 
independent  valuer.    Gains  or  losses  arising  from  a  change  in  the  fair  value  of  investment 
property are recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

 
j) 25BImpairment 

 

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  If any such 
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.  An impairment loss is recognised 
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds  its recoverable amount.    Impairment  losses 
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
k) 26BTrade and other payables 
 

Creditors and other payables are  initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. 
 

l) 27BInterest‐bearing borrowings 
 

Interest‐bearing  borrowings  are  recognised  initially  at  fair  value  less  attributable  transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest‐bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost 
with any difference between  cost and  redemption value being  recognised  in  the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 

 
m) 28BOperating Lease 
 

Operating  lease  receipts  are  recognised  as  revenue  and  amounts  due  are  recognised  as 
receivables. 

 
n) 29BEquity 
 

Share capital – ordinary shares and redeemable preference shares are classified as equity. 
 

o) 30BGoods and Services Tax 
 
The  financial  statements  are prepared  exclusive of GST with  the  exception of  receivables  and 
payables  that  are  shown  inclusive of GST.   Where GST  is not  recoverable as an  input  tax  it  is 
recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is 
included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.   
 
The  net  GST  paid  to,  or  received  from  the  IRD,  including  the  GST  relating  to  investing  and 
financing activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows.   
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 
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2. Profit from operations 
 
a) Revenue 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Revenue from operations

Rental revenue 120       549         
120         549         

Other Income

Interest received 32           36           
Insurance recoveries 414         903         
Gain on disposal of Investment Property 400       -              
Subvention Receipt (23)          445         

823         1,384      

Total revenue 943       1,933      

 
 
 
b) Expenses 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Finance Costs
Interest on loans 342         982         

Other expenses
Insurance 9           35           
Rates 90           151         
Building Maintenance 10           87           
Earthquake costs 424       915         
Consultancy fees 7             46           
Auditors remuneration Note 4 13           7             

Total Expenses 895         2,223      
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3. Income Taxes 
 

Tuam  Limited  has  prepared  its  current  and  deferred  tax  on  the  basis  that  the  value  of  the 
investment property, including the Civic Offices, will be recovered through future use.  Given the 
impact of the earthquake on the Civic Offices (see note 17), there is a lot of uncertainty that this 
basis is correct. 
 

a) Income tax recognised in profit or loss 
2012 2011

$000 $000

Deferred tax expense/(income) (149)        242         
Total tax expense/(income) (149)      242         

0 0  
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Profit/(loss) before tax 48         (290)        

Income tax expense calculated at 28% (30% prior year) 13           (86)          

Correction to prior year tax expense (162)      -              
Effect of buildings no longer held for sale -              (934)        
Effect of tax rate change -              (17)          
Effect of removal of building depreciation -            1,183      
Effect of tax offsets to group companies 112         311         
Change in deferred tax not recognised in previous year -              (214)        

Effect of removal of Gain on sale of Investment Land (112)        -              
(149)        242         

 
 

b) Current tax assets and liabilities 
2012 2011

$000 $000
Current tax assets:
Current tax receivable
Tax refund receivable - RWT 6             29           

6           29           
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c) Deferred tax liabilities (assets) 
 
Year ended 30 June 2012 OpeningRecognised Impact of Closing

balance in P&L tax rate change Balance
$000 $000 $000 $000

Investment property 80        (149)      -              (69)     
Accruals 162        (162)        -              -           

242      (311)      -   -              (69)     

Year ended 30 June 2011 OpeningRecognised Impact of Closing
balance in P&L tax rate change Balance

$000 $000 $000 $000

Investment property -           86         (6)            80      
Accruals -             174         (12)          162      

-             260         -     (18)          242      

 
 
 

d) Imputation credit account balances 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Credits available for subsequent use 6           44           

 
 
 

4. Remuneration of Auditors 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000
Audit New Zealand:
Additional fee relating to Earthquake matters 5             -              
Audit of financial statements 8           7             

13           7             
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5. Current trade and other receivables 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Debtors and Accruals 637         700         
Subvention Receivable 155       445         

792         1,145      

 
 
The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.  
 
 

6. Investment properties 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Balance at beginning of financial year 9,061      5,220      
Disposal of property (525)      -              
Assets transferred from held for sale -              3,841      
Balance at end of financial year 8,536    9,061      

 
The Company’s  investment properties were  last valued by  independent registered valuer Mr M 
Tohill of Colliers International as at 30 June 2010 based on open market value.  An independent 
valuation of  the  investment property was commissioned at 30  June 2012 however, as  there  is 
currently insufficient information available regarding the extent of the earthquake damage to the 
buildings and the estimated cost of repair of the buildings, the valuer was unable to complete a 
residual development valuation  to determine  the potential value  the buildings may add  to  the 
land.   The Company engaged a valuer to complete a valuation of the  land.   However,  it has not 
been  recognised  in  the  financial  statements.    The  valuer  was  physically  unable  to  inspect 
significant parts of the land, as it was in the Red Zone.  Given the location of the land, the limited 
market data available was not sufficiently robust  to support a proper valuation.   The valuation 
also assumed that the land was clear of all buildings.  Such an assumption was considered by the 
Company  to  be  unrealistic  as  several  buildings  have  heritage  status  and  currently  there  is no 
evidence they will be demolished. 
 
On 4 May 2012 the Company sold 925 square metres of land to the Christchurch City Council for 
a total consideration of $925,000 resulting in a gain on sale of $400,000.  The land is to be used 
by the Christchurch City Council to extend Peter Scoular Reserve. 
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7. Current trade and other payables 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Trade payables 41           40           
GST payable 131       9             
Related Party Payables 3             162         

175       211         

 
 

8. Non‐current borrowings 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000
Secured:
Loans from:

Parent Entity 4,750      4,750      
4,750    4,750     

 
The Company entered  into a cash advance  facility agreement with Christchurch City Council  in 
June  2006 with  repayment  due  in  2016.    Interest  is  payable  at  7.18%  every  6 months.    The 
borrowing  is secured by way of mortgage over the  investment property at Tuam Street.   On 28 
June  2011,  Christchurch  City  Council  agreed  to  convert  $9  million  of  the  debt  to  equity, 
recognising the reduction in the Company’s revenue.  
 

9. Capital and other equity instruments 
 

2012 2011
$000 $000

Fully paid ordinary shares 17,635  17,635   
Fully paid redeemable preference shares (A) 500       500        

18,135  18,135   

 
 
a) Fully paid ordinary shares 

2012 2012 2011 2011

No. (000) $000 No. (000) $000

Balance at beginning of financial year 24,635    24,635    15,635    15,635    
Issue of shares -            -            9,000      9,000    
Less: uncalled portion of shares issued (7,000)     (7,000)     (7,000)     (7,000)     
Balance at end of financial year 17,635  17,635  17,635    17,635  
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b) Fully paid redeemable preference shares (A) 
 

2012 2012 2011 2011

No. $000 No. $000

Balance at beginning of financial year 500         500         500         500         
Issue of shares -            -            -             -            
Share issue costs -              -              -              -              
Balance at end of financial year 500       500       500         500       

 
c) Retained Earnings 

 
2012 2011

$000 $000

Balance at beginning of financial year (12,633)   (12,101)   
Surplus/(deficit) 197       (532)        
Balance at end of financial year (12,436)   (12,633)   

 
 

10. Notes to the cash flow statement 
 

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents  
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,382       470          
1,382     470         
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b) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash flows from operating activities  
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Net surplus/ (deficit) 197          (532)         

Add/(Less) Non cash items

Gain on Sale on Investment Property (400)       -              
Movement in deferred tax balance (149)         242          

Add/(Less) Items classed as financing
or investing activities

Interest received classed as investing (32)         (36)          
Interest paid classed as financing 342          982          

Add/(Less) Movement in working capital items

Current trade and other receivables 353        (1,139)     
Current payables & provisions (37)           127          
Increase/(decrease) in current tax balances -               -               
Increase/(decrease) in RWT receivable 23          33           

100          209          

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities 297          (323)         
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11. Related party transactions 
2012 2011

$000 $000

Receipts from related parties

Rent received from CCC -               430          
Rates charged back to CCC 7              -               

Subvention payment received from City Care Limited 267          2              
Issue of additional share capital to CCC -               9,000       
Sale of land to CCC 925          -               

Payments to related parties

Interest Paid to CCC 342          985          
Rate payments to CCC 97            151          
Operating costs charged by CCC 180        110         
Repayment of loan from CCC -               9,000       

Year end balances (excl GST)
Loan advances from CCC 4,750       4,750       
Accrued interest to CCC 3            3             
Accrued receivables from CCC 139          -               
Accrued payables to CCC -               159          

 
The Company  expects  to  transfer  tax  losses of $399,058  to other members of  the CCC  group 
(2011: $622,866) and  it expects to receive a subvention payment of $155,189 (2011: $266,942) 
which has been accrued. 
 
Key management personnel of  the Company have  interests  in other entities  that  transact with 
the Company.  Prior to the adoption of IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures from 1 July 2011 with 
effect from 1 July 2010 these transactions were disclosed. 
 

 

12. Financial Instruments 
 
Credit quality of financial instruments 
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor  impaired can be assessed by 
reference  to  Standard  and Poor’s  credit  rating  (if  available) or  to historical  information  about 
counterparty default rates: 
 

2012 2011

$000 $000

Counterparties with Credit Ratings

AA-
Cash at bank and term deposits 1,382       470          
Total Cash and cash equivalents 1,382     470         
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Classification of financial instruments 
 

 Loans & 
Receivables 

Other 
amortised 

cost 

Total 
carrying 
amount

As at 30 June 2012 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets:

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,382           -                  1,382          
Trade and other receivables 792               -                    792               

2,174            -                    2,174            
Financial liabilities:

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables -                  175             175             

-                  
Non-current liabilities -                    
Borrowings -                   4,750            4,750            

-                  4,925          4,925          

 
 

 Loans & 
Receivables 

Other 
amortised 

cost 

Total 
carrying 
amount

As at 30 June 2011 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets:

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 470              -                  470             
Trade and other receivables 1,145            -                    1,145            

1,615            -                    1,615            
Financial liabilities:

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables -                  211             211             

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings -                   4,750            4,750            

-                  4,961          4,961          
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Maturity profile of financial instruments 
 

Carrying Contractual Less than 1 - 2 3 - 5

Amount Cash Flows 1 year years years
As at 30 June 2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,382           1,382          1,382          
Trade receivables 792               792               792               

2,174           2,174          2,174          -            -           

Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 175              175             175             
Related party loans 4,750            6,114            341               341        5,432     

4,925            6,289            516               341        5,432     

 
 

Carrying Contractual Less than 1 - 2 3 - 5

Amount Cash Flows 1 year years years
As at 30 June 2011 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 470              470             470             
Trade receivables 1,145            1,145            1,145            

1,615           1,615          1,615          -            -           

Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 211              211             211             
Related party loans 4,750            6,455            341               341        5,773     

4,961            6,666            552               341        5,773     

 
Financial Instrument Risk 
Tuam Ltd has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments.  Tuam 
Limited is risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its financing activities. 
 
Credit Risk Management 
Credit risk  is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a 
financial loss to the Company.  
 
Financial  instruments  that  potentially  subject  the  Company  to  concentrations  of  credit  risk 
consist principally of cash and short term  investments and accounts receivable.  The Company's 
maximum  exposure  in  respect of  these  financial  instruments  are  the  amounts  as discussed  in 
notes 5 and 10.   The Company places  its cash and term deposits with banking  institutions that 
have a Standard and Poor's rating of AA‐. 
 
Liquidity Risk Management 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due.    The Company manages  liquidity  risk by  continuously monitoring  forecast  and  actual 
cash flows and maintaining adequate reserves. 
 
Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange 
rates, will affect the Company's profit or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. 
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Interest Rates 
The Company's borrowing liability with the Council is at fixed interest rate of 7.18% for the terms 
of the loan.  Before the end of each fixed interest rate term, the Company and the Council enter 
into discussions to re‐fix the interest rates before the expiry date, in order to keep the risk due to 
interest rate fluctuations to a minimum. 
 
For  the  reasons noted above,  the Company  is not  sensitive  to movements  in  interest  rates  in 
respect  of  its  borrowing  obligations.    Interest  rate  movements  would,  however,  affect  the 
amount of interest income received by the Company on surplus cash.  
 
Foreign exchange 
The Company has no exposure to foreign exchange risk. 
 
Capital management 
The Company's capital comprises share capital and retained earnings.  The Company manages its 
revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings prudently and in 
a manner that promotes current and future interests of the community. 
 

13. Commitments for expenditure 
 
There are no lease or other expenditure commitments (2011:Nil) 
 
There are no capital expenditure commitments (2011:Nil) 
 

 
14. Post balance date events 

 
On  30  July  2012  the  Canterbury  Earthquake  Recovery  Authority  (“CERA”)  released  the  new 
Central City blueprint.  This announcement has clarified the future direction of the City but does 
not change  the Company’s  intentions  regarding  its  investment property.   There were no other 
events known to the directors occurring subsequent to balance date that would have a significant 
impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 

 

15. Contingencies 
 
Due  to  the uncertainty  surrounding  the  cost  to  repair  the damage  to  the  former Civic Offices 
(refer note 17(a)) the Company  is unable to reliably measure the cost of repairs and associated 
insurance recoveries.   
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16. Statement of Service Performance 
 

Performance Target  Result 

Ensure Tuam meets the financial targets contained within the 

Statement of Intent 

Partly achieved 

(see below) 

The Company meets all relevant legislative and contractual 

requirements. 

Not Achieved – see ( c ) below 

 
 

a) Financial Performance Targets 
 

2012 2012

Actual Target Variance
$000 $000 $000

Income
Rental Income 120        125          (5)            
Other income 823          964          (141)         

943          1,089       (146)         
Expenditure
Interest 342          341          1              
Other expenses 553        301          252         
Depreciation and impairment -               -               -               

895          642          253          
Net surplus (deficit) before tax 48          447          (399)        
Tax (Expense) / Income 149          (125)         274          

Net surplus (deficit) after tax 197        322          (125)        

Increase in expenditure to target due to greater than expected earthquake costs. 
 

b) Ratio of Shareholders’ Funds to Total Assets 
2012 2012

Actual Target Variance
$000 $000 $000

Ratio of Shareholders' Funds to Total Assets 53% 51% 2%

Equity 18,135   18,135     -              
Retained Earnings (12,437)  (12,954)    517         

Debt 4,750     4,750       -              
Total Assets 10,716   10,183     533         

 
The decrease  in retained earnings and  increase  in total assets to target  is due to differences  in 
the value of the land sold and the expected profit on the sale. 
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c) Legislative requirements 
 
The  Local  Government  Act  2002  requires  the  Company  to  submit  half  year  accounts  and  a 
Statement  of  Intent  to  its Board  and  to  its  shareholder within  specified  timeframes.    For  the 
2011/12  financial  year  the  Company  did  not  meet  the  specified  timeframes  set  out  in  the 
legislation. 
 

17. Earthquake impact 
 

a) Asset damage 
 
The former Civic Offices and Annex at 163 Tuam Street suffered damage in the September 2010 
earthquake.   The majority of this damage had been repaired by February 2011 and tenants had 
been  signed  up  for  both  the  Annex  building  and  the  lower  floors  of  the  main  building.  
Unfortunately  the 22 February 2011 earthquake undid  this work and caused significant  further 
damage,  including  the  loss of most of  the  external  glazing on  the main building.    It has been 
necessary  to undertake all  structural  reporting and  insurance processes again, a  task  that was 
made even more difficult by the further earthquake events in June and December 2011.  
 
Considerable  invasive  inspections  have  been  undertaken  during  2011/2012  to  determine  the 
level of structural damage the buildings have suffered.  The level of structural damage has been 
determined however, at 30 June 2012 the final costs to repair the damage and make the building 
ready for tenants has yet to be quantified and agreed with the insurance companies. 
 
The level of damage and the position of the CBD Red Zone cordon mean it is unlikely that these 
buildings will be able to be  leased  in the short term.   However, the Company has been able to 
lease the majority of the Tuam Street carpark site to Team Hutchinson Ford to assist them with 
resuming their normal operations. 
 
A number of the smaller buildings owned by the Company on the south side of Tuam Street have 
not  yet  had  any  structural  assessments  undertaken  as  they  are  situated  in  the  fall  zone  of 
another building (not owned by the Company) and therefore deemed too unsafe for engineers to 
complete a full inspection.   
 
Given  that a  complete assessment of all  the buildings has yet  to be  completed and  there has 
been no agreement as  to  the cost of  repair of  the  former Civic Offices and Annex no external 
valuation was  able  to  be  provided  for  the  buildings.    As  there  has  been  no  agreement with 
insurers  as  to  the  cost of  repair  the Company has not been able  to determine with  sufficient 
certainty  the  level  of  impairment  suffered  by  the  assets  nor  the  insurance  recovery  to  be 
recognised at 30 June 2012. 

 
b) Insurance 

 
A partial payment of $611,000 (2011: 224,000) has been received from the Company’s insurers in 
the year  to 30  June 2012, and a  further $388,000 accrued  (2011: $679,000)  for  the  remaining 
earthquake cost recoveries.  Until the full cost of repair to the buildings has been agreed with the 
insurers the Company has not accrued for full insurance recoveries. 
Under the terms of the Company’s  insurance policy, the cost of repairs to 34% of new building 
standards can be  recovered. The net  impact  to  the Company will be  the cost of  the  insurance 
excess which will be 2.5% of the repair costs together with the incremental costs which will bring 
the building up to 100% of new building standards and any additional costs to make it ready for 
tenants. 
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The Company was fully covered for damage to its assets up to and including 30 June 2011.  There 
is  no  cover  currently  available  for  earthquake  or  fire  risk.    The  Company  has  photographic 
evidence of damage  incurred prior to 30 June 2011 which  is covered by  insurance and protects 
the Company’s position in the event of further earthquakes after this date.  
 
Should  the buildings be  repaired,  the Company would approach  the London market  for cover.  
Our  brokers  have  indicated  that  some  earthquake  cover would  be  available  in  the  future  at 
increased cost once the building is repaired.  

 
c) Going concern 

 
Once  Council moved  to  the  new  Civic Offices  it was  intended  to  dispose  of  the  former  Civic 
Offices and property as part of the renewal of the central city, and hold the Tuam Street car park 
for  future  opportunities  under  the  Central  City  South  development  plan.    Negotiations were 
underway with  a  potential  purchaser  for  the  former  Civic Offices  but  these  ceased  after  the 
September 2010 earthquake.   Currently  it  is the Company’s  intention to hold the properties on 
the north side of Tuam Street until the repair options for the building can be fully quantified and 
the impact of the release of CERA’s new Central City Plan assessed.  
 
The majority of the car park on the southern side of Tuam Street continues to be leased out, with 
further  areas  to be  leased  as  cordon  reductions  allow.   Development of  these properties has 
been  delayed  while  awaiting  the  release  of  CERA’s  new  Central  City  Plan,  however  there  is 
nothing  that  suggests  the  going  concern  basis  is  not  appropriate  for  preparing  the  financial 
statements. 
 
On 30 July 2012 CERA released the new Central City blueprint.  This indicates that the Company’s 
investment property has been earmarked as the site for the new bus exchange and part of the 
southern frame.  It is expected that the blueprint will take a number of years to implement and it 
continues to be the Company’s intention to hold the investment property. 
 

d) Asset classification and valuation 
 
The Company’s  investment properties were  last valued at 30 June 2010 based on open market 
value  (refer  note  6).    The  Company  engaged  a  valuer  to  complete  a  valuation  of  the  land.  
However,  it  has  not  been  recognised  in  the  financial  statements.    The  valuer was  physically 
unable to inspect significant parts of the land, as it was in the Red Zone.  Given the location of the 
land, the limited market data available was not sufficiently robust to support a proper valuation.  
The  valuation also assumed  that  the  land was  clear of all buildings.   Such an assumption was 
considered  by  the  Company  to  be  unrealistic  as  several  buildings  have  heritage  status  and 
currently there is no evidence they will be demolished. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

for the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011
Note $ $

Revenue from operations 2(a) 1,002,500   1,043,125    
Other income 2(a) 27,316        8,765           

1,029,816   1,051,890    

Finance costs -                  -                  
Depreciation and Impairment -                  -                  
Other expenses 2(b) 1,006,122   147,245       

1,006,122   147,245       

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 23,694      904,645       

Other Comprehensive Income -                  -                  

Total Comprehensive Income 23,694      904,645       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Balance as at 01 July 904,645      -                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 23,693        904,645       

Balance as at 30 June 928,338    904,645       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of Objectives and Performance 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
Financial Performance Targets 

2012 2012
Actual Target

$ $

Revenue 1,029,816 862,500      
Committed expenditure 1,006,122 1,118,300   
Discretionary Expenditure -             623,600      
Surplus (Deficit) 23,694      (879,400)     

 
Revenue  was  greater  than  planned  due  to  $75,000  of  2012/13  appointer  contributions  being 
received prior to 30 June 2012 and additional project funding received from the Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Authority.  
 
Committed expenditure  is  lower  than planned due  to delays  in programme delivery  resulting  from 
the September 2010 and February 2011 Canterbury earthquakes.   Discretionary expenditure  is  the 
utilisation of prior years retained earnings.   However, with  lower than planned project delivery, the 
discretionary expenditure planned did not need to be utilised. 
 
Key Performance Targets 

2012 2012
Target: Performance Measure Actual

Public Awareness Carry out an annual survey of public
awareness on energy efficiency and
renewable energy issues.

Focus group and field surveys
completed.

Feasibility study Completion of a District Energy
feasibility study.

Three feasibility studies completed
and made available to public via
media and website.

Advisory Scheme 
implementation

Development and implementation of
an Energy Design Advisory Scheme
for major buildings.

Program developed and completed.
Launched and initial applications
received.

Submissions or suggested 
changes to legislation 
and/or regulations

CAfE considers and as it feels
appropriate, makes submissions on, or
suggests changes to, legislation and/or
regulatory changes impacting on
energy efficiency and the use of
renewable energy, particularly as it
relates to Christchurch.

CAfE made submissions as follows:
- Christchurch City Council on Draft
central City Plan
- Christchurch Earthquake Recovery
Authority on the Draft Central City
Recovery Plan

Report on new initiatives Report on new initiatives identified
during the year, for current or future
action by café.

As part of the Energy Awareness
Program CAfE carried out a series
of Energy Dialogues with the public.
A review of the suggestions is
included as a performance measure
in the 2012/13 Statement of Intent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

a. Reporting Entity 
 
These  are  the  financial  statements  of  the  Christchurch Agency  For  Energy  Trust  (CAFE),  a 
Charitable  Trust  created  by  the  Christchurch  City  Council  on  13  July  2010.    The  primary 
purpose of  the  Trust  is  to promote  energy  efficiency  initiatives  and  the use of  renewable 
energy in Christchurch. 
 
The  financial  statements of  the Trust  are  for  the  year ended 30  June 2012.   The  financial 
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Trustees on 18 September 2012. 
 

b. Basis of financial statement preparation 
 
The financial statements of the Christchurch Agency For Energy Trust have been prepared in 
accordance with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice.  They comply with the 
New  Zealand  equivalents  to  International  Financial  Reporting  Standards  (NZ  IFRS)  as 
appropriate for public benefit entities. 
 
Differential Reporting 
The  Trust  is  a  qualifying  entity  within  the  Framework  for  Differential  Reporting.    The 
differential reporting option  is available to the Trust as  it  is not  large within the meaning of 
this term as set out  in the Framework and  is not publicly accountable.   The Trust has taken 
advantage of all differential reporting concessions available to it. 

 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.   
 
The functional and presentation currency is New Zealand dollars, and all values are rounded 
to the nearest dollar.   

 
c. Revenue 

 
Grants/Contributions/Donations 
Grants/Contributions/Donations  received  from  the  Christchurch  City  Council  and  other 
appointer organisations are the primary source of funding to the Trust and are restricted for 
the purpose of the Trust meeting its objectives as specified in the Trust Deed.  These receipts 
are  recognised  as  revenue when  they  become  receivable  unless  there  is  an  obligation  to 
return the funds if conditions of the payment are not met.  If there is such an obligation, the 
receipts  are  initially  recorded  as  income  received  in  advance,  and  recognised  as  revenue 
when conditions are satisfied. 
 
Other Revenue 
Revenue  is  measured  at  the  fair  value  of  consideration  received.    Interest  income  is 
recognised using the effective interest method. 
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d. Borrowing Costs 
 
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred unless 
they meet the conditions for capitalised interest. 
 

e. Income tax 
 
The Inland Revenue Department (IRD) has confirmed that the Trust has charitable status for 
tax purposes and is therefore not liable for income tax. 

 

f. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and  cash equivalents  comprise  cash balances and  call deposits, and other  short‐term 
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.   

 

g. Trade and other receivables 
 
Trade and other receivables are  initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost less impairment provision. 
 

h. Trade and other payables 
 

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. 

 
i. Interest‐bearing borrowings 

 
Interest‐bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest‐bearing borrowings are stated at amortised 
cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income 
statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 

 

j. Goods and Services Tax 
 
The financial statements are prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and 
payables that are shown inclusive of GST.  Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax it is 
recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 
 
The  net  amount of GST  recoverable  from, or payable  to,  the  Inland Revenue Department 
(IRD) is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.   

 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

 
k. Provisions 

 
A  provision  is  recognised  in  the  balance  sheet  when  the  Trust  has  a  present  legal  or 
constructive  obligation  as  a  result  of  a  past  event,  and  it  is  probable  that  an  outflow  of 
economic benefits, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle 
the  obligation.    If  the  effect  is  material,  provisions  are  determined  by  discounting  the 
expected future cash flows at a pre‐tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation. 
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l. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
 

In  preparing  these  financial  statements  the  Trust  has  made  estimates  and  assumptions 
concerning  the  future  and  its  continued  income  sources.    Under  the  terms  of  the  Trust 
appointer  contributions  will  be  reviewed  in  June  2013,  the  Trust  believes  it  will  have 
continued  revenue  sources.    These  estimates  and  assumptions  may  differ  from  the 
subsequent  actual  results.    Estimates  and  assumptions  are  continually  evaluated  and  are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
 

2. Profit from operations 
 

a. Revenue 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Revenue from operations

Appointer Contributions 435,000       425,000    
CCC - Project Contributions 432,500       618,125    
EECA Subsidy 135,000       -               

1,002,500    1,043,125 

Other Income

Interest received 24,526         8,765       
Sundry income 2,790           -               

27,316         8,765       

Total revenue 1,029,816  1,051,890 
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b. Expenses 

 
2012 2011

Note $ $

Other Expenses:
Trustee Costs 370              261          
Contractor Costs 140,731       74,570      
Communications & Relations  104,989       4,050       
Financial & Legal Costs 24,216         2,540       
Office Administration 18,310         6,951       
Marketing 29,787         34,073      
Project costs 159,330       22,300      
Consultancy Costs 127,093       -               
Grants 25,000         -               
District Energy Feasibility - Consultancy Costs 373,295       -               
Auditors remuneration 3 3,000           2,500       

1,006,122    147,245    

Total expenses 1,006,122  147,245    

 
 

3. Remuneration of Auditors 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Audit Services
Audit New Zealand:
Audit of financial statements 3,000           2,500       

3,000         2,500       

 
 

4. Current trade and other receivables 
 

2012 2011
$ $

RWT receivable 7,767           -             
GST receivable 8,900           13,458   
Related party receivables 166,750       60,000   

183,417     73,458   

 
The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.   
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5. Current trade and other payables 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Trade payables 25,971     57,812  
GST payable -               -           
Related Party Payables -             -           

25,971   57,812  

 
 

 

6. Retained Earnings 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Balance at beginning of financial year 904,645      -               
Surplus/(deficit) 23,694        904,645    
Balance at end of financial year 928,339      904,645    

 
 

7. Financial Instruments 
 
Financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Risk 
Christchurch  City  Council  (CCC) manages  the  Trust’s  financial  instruments  in  accordance with 
CCC’s  policies.    Both  the  Trust  and  CCC  are  risk  averse  and  seek  to minimise  exposure  from 
treasury activities. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The Trust  is exposed  to  interest  rate  risk on  funds  invested at both  fixed and  floating  interest 
rates.  The risk is managed by restricting investment to quality investment grade issues, pursuant 
to Christchurch City Council’s investment policy. 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit  risk  refers  to  the  risk  that a  third party will default on  its contractual obligations  to  the 
Trust, causing the Trust to incur a loss.  Financial instruments which potentially subject the Trust 
to credit risk consist principally of cash and short term investments, and accounts receivable. 
 
The Trust banks solely with Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) and therefore credit risk is concentrated 
with BNZ.  BNZ has a AA‐ credit rating with Standard and Poor’s (Australia) Pty limited. 

 
8. Post balance date events 

 
There were no events known to the Trustees occurring subsequent to balance date that would 
have a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
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9. Contingencies 
 
The Christchurch Agency  For Energy Trust has no  contingent assets or  liabilities as at 30  June 
2012. (2011 Nil) 

 
 

10. Related Party and Appointer Organisation Transactions 
 

2012 2011

$ $

Revenue from related parties and appointer organisations
Project & administration funding from CCC 532,500    793,125      
Project contributions and donations from Solid Energy NZ Ltd 70,000      10,000        
Project contributions and donations from Orion NZ Ltd 100,000    100,000      
Project contributions and donations from Meridian Energy Ltd 101,260    100,000      
Project contributions and donations from Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Authority 160,630    -                 
Project contributions and donations from Canterbury 
Regional Council 40,000      40,000        

1,004,390 1,043,125   

Payments to related parties
Purchases from CCC 468          261             

468          261             

Year end balances (excl GST)
Funding due from CCC -               60,000        
Funding due from Energy Efficiency and Conservation Authority 166,750    -                 

 
 

In  addition  to  project  and  administration  funding,  the  Christchurch  City  Council  provides 
administrative and financial support to the Trust at no cost. 

 

11. Legislative Requirement 
 
The Local Government Act 2002 requires the Trust to submit half year accounts and a statement 
of Intent to Christchurch City Council within specified timeframes. For the 2011/12 financial year, 
the Trust did not meet the specified timeframes as set out in the legislation for the submission of 
documents to its stakeholder. 
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Lophomyrtus obcordata in Riccarton Bush. 

New Zealand Myrtle. Rohutu 
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OUR VISION 
That Riccarton Bush, House and Gardens is the Premier Natural and Cultural Heritage site in 

Christchurch and Canterbury. 
 

KEY OBJECTIVES 
 

 To protect and enhance the indigenous flora, fauna and ecology of Riccarton Bush. 
 

 To conserve Deans Cottage, Riccarton House and their grounds with Riccarton Bush and 

the Deans family history. 
 

 To encourage public use and participation of the reserve and to inform visitors about the 

natural, Maori, and colonial heritage of Christchurch. 
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Tilia petiolaris. 

Silver Pendant Lime 

Planted in the house grounds in 1855 
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RICCARTON BUSH TRUST 

Report from the Chairman & the Manager 
 

The Board’s main focus during the YE June 2012 has been to work with the earthquake recovery 
Project Manager, John Radburn of Insight-Unlimited to make Riccarton House secure and to 
prepare for the repair process. 
 
Following a structural engineering review of damaged Riccarton House and some temporary fixing 
and bracing, the Manager has had continued access to his office whilst Taste Catering have also 
enjoyed continued access to the commercial kitchen and to their office.  This has helped both 
parties enormously giving Taste Catering the confidence to purchase and erect a semi-permanent 
15m x 10m Marquee adjacent to Riccarton House and the rose garden, and to continue trading 
almost “as normal” over the spring/summer/autumn months. 
 
Over the past 12 months, Taste have, in addition to their successful and well established Saturday 
Farmers Market at Riccarton House, operated with the blessing of the Trust, a Sunday Artisans 
Craft Market at Riccarton House. 
 
Collette Vacations out of the United States have remained committed and loyal with inbound tour 
groups, with the Trust giving a History Talk and mini Eco Tour of the grounds around Riccarton 
House followed by dinner in the Taste Marquee.  The Trust is very grateful of the Collette support. 
 
With continuing aftershocks of magnitude 6.0 on 23 December 2011; magnitude 5.48 on 2 January 
2012; magnitude 5.28 on 7 January 2012; and magnitude 5.23 on 25 May 2012, damage to 
buildings and infrastructure throughout Christchurch has continued, including significant additional 
damage to the Riccarton Bush Trust Ranger house in Kauri Street, adjacent to Riccarton Bush.  
Apart from some additional minor damage to lathe and plaster surfaces, Riccarton House and the 
Deans Cottage have not incurred further damage. 
 
From the outside Riccarton House looks remarkably good.  Suffice to say that the internal damage 
to walls and ceilings is all somewhat depressing, albeit fixable! 
 
Riccarton House has been closed to the public since the devastating 22 February 2011 
earthquake, whilst fortuitously Deans Cottage, the oldest building on the Canterbury plains, has 
with the exception of a split chimney, been undamaged by all the seismic events. 
 
During the latter part of 2011 Simon Construction, ably guided by earthquake repair Project 
Manager John Radburn and his team from Insight-Unlimited, have secured chimney masonry and 
constructed ply protection linings over all heritage timber surfaces including the wonderful oak 
panelled entry hall and foyer, in readiness for repairs to start. 
 
Regrettably, the on-going and sizeable seismic aftershocks have tempered the confidence of 
insurers, resulting in Contracts Works Insurance only becoming available in late June. This will 
enable the Trust to carry out the earthquake repairs on Riccarton House which is currently classed 
as an earthquake prone building (less than 34% N.B.S.) in accordance with the revised building 
code of 2011. 
 
New buildings at 100% NBS are currently being built in the city as these are a lesser insurance risk 
during construction and are more robust once completed. 
 
The Trust has taken professional advice on the costs and benefits of carrying out the earthquake 
repairs at a level of 67% NBS (and above) or to go to 100% NBS, and has resolved to comply with 
the minimum legal requirement of 67% through the installation of structural ply panels to many of 
the downstairs walls.  The ply will be covered by gib board replacing the failed lath and plaster.  
Under the 67% structural strengthening regime the wonderful entry hall/foyer oak panelling will not 
be removed or affected.  
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The Resource Consent for carrying out the earthquake repairs was lodged with the Christchurch 
City Council in May 2012.  Project Managers Insight-Unlimited are working closely with the Council 
and Heritage Advisers so that the building code compliance issues including disability access; 
smoke stop doors (fire compartments); emergency lighting etc., triggered by the Resource 
Consent, are sympathetically dealt with.   
 

Our Governance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Back Row Standing:  
P. Laloli; B. Shearing; J. Moore (Ranger); M. Mora (Vice Chairman); T. Gemmill; J. Ren (Accountant)  
Front Row Seated:  
B.Molloy; R. Dally (Manager); C. Deans (Chairman); P. Wilson. 
Absent:  
J. Chen; G. Phillipson 
 

 
The main governance issues for the Board during the year have included: 
 

 Progressing the first floor heating and commercial kitchen refurbishment projects to the 
stage of having secured Resource Consent for both projects. 

 Working closely with the earthquake recovery Project Managers, Insight-Unlimited to 
ensure that repairs are undertaken expeditiously, and in sympathy with the Category 1 
heritage fabric of the buildings. 

 Fine tuning budgets and the Statement of Intent (SOI) so that the Trust continues to 
operate as efficiently and effectively as the changed circumstance permit. 

 Commencing work on the Management Plan, a requirement of the Amendment to the 
Riccarton Bush Act which is currently at the Parliamentary Select Committee stage. 

Riccarton Bush Trust Board June 2012 
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Our Visitors 
 
Sadly with Riccarton House closed during the period under review, the daily (except Saturday) 
guided Heritage House Tours have fallen by the wayside along with the majority of inbound tour 
groups with the exception of Collette Vacations as previously mentioned. 
 
School parties have regrouped and are now making regular visits to Deans Cottage and Riccarton 
Bush either with the trust Ranger or with Canterbury Museum Educators. 
 
The Ranger has also done the occasional Eco tour with a number of other interested groups. 
 
The bush track counter is recording between 3000 and 5000 visitors to the Bush monthly with the 
higher numbers corresponding with the summer months. 
 
The Saturday Christchurch Farmers Market at Riccarton House continues to attract a strong and 
regular following with seasonal summer peaks whilst the Sunday Artisans Craft Market at 
Riccarton House is growing slowly. 
 
The semi-permanent Taste Marquee at Riccarton House has been popular over the 
spring/summer/autumn months with functions and dinner’s etc. winding down over the colder 
winter months. 
 
The Annual Scottish Cultural festival and Community board sponsored Garden Gala Event had fine 
days and good attendances.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Christchurch Farmers Market at Riccarton House A Wee Dram. 

Canterbury Scottish Cultural Festival 

Taste Marquee at Riccarton House Highland Dancing 

Canterbury Scottish Cultural Festival 
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Our Heritage Houses 
 

The Annual Report 2011 stated that “repairs should be completed by late 2012.” Because of the 
difficulty securing Contract Works Insurance along with the other plethora of work in dotting “i’s” 
and crossing “t’s” with regard to chimney reconstruction design; structural strengthening design; 
disability access; fire safety; emergency lighting etc. triggered by the Resource Consent process, 
no actual repair work has been undertaken. 
 
Simon Construction was on site during the latter months of 2011 installing protection works in 
preparation for repairs to commence.  The protection works primarily comprised the ply lining of all 
timber panelling, architraves, wardrobes etc.  
 
Because of all these works and the fact that Riccarton House was yellow stickered by CERA (the 
earthquake recovery authority) allowing limited business access only, and no public access, the 
house has been closed during the period under review. 
 
Whilst Deans Cottage has a fractured chimney (temporarily secured) it has suffered no further 
damage and has remained open daily throughout the period. 
 
At the time of writing this report, Insight-Unlimited have advised that the Resource Consent and 
Building Consent for repairs to Riccarton House were due in early July 2012. 
 
With Contract Works Insurance now available and with the consenting process almost completed, 
the Board is looking forward to repairs being completed during the 2012/2013 financial year. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The annual houses wash down and touch up paint as part of the Trust’s 8 year house painting 
Contract has again been deferred this year pending earthquake repairs. 
 
Whilst the Rangers house at 21 Kauri Street suffered some moderate damage from the September 
2010 and February 2011 earthquakes, the most significant damage was caused by the 23 
December 2011 earthquake when the southern double brick wall was significantly structurally 
compromised. 
 
The Ranger house (as a residential dwelling) enjoys continued insurance cover but it is worrying to 
note that both Riccarton House and Deans Cottage remain uninsured for material damage, despite 
much effort to secure cover. 
 

Pre Earthquake Repair Protection Works 

in Riccarton House Entry Hall. 

Deans Cottage May 2012 

ATTACHMENT 5 CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 28. 11. 2012



 

7 

 

Our Bush and Our House Grounds 
 
The long awaited Plan Change 44 giving better protection from building encroachment on the 
Bush boundaries has finally been approved by the Council on the recommendation of 
Commissioner Ken Lawn.  This was wonderful news for the Trustees who have fought long and 
hard to achieve this outcome.  We also thank the council and Council Planners for their support 
with these new planning rules. 
 
The perimeter fence was continued to provide a heightened level of security to the site with the 
added bonus of desire line elimination.  The desire line tracks had previously caused root zone 
compaction around several protected trees and pugged up areas of turf during wet periods.  
The Trust has only received two complaints during the period under review, that grounds access 
had been compromised through the lack of gates at the northern and southern road boundaries.  
The fact that there has been much on-going complimentary feedback on the boundary fence 
and its positive attributes has heavily outweighed any negativity.  
 
Ranger John Moore and Ranger’s Assistant Shane Dunnings have worked tirelessly to have the 
Bush predator free as at 30 June 2012.  There were a small number of unexplained rat 
outbreaks during the year, brought under control through targeted baiting.  Well done team. 
 
In May 2012 the wanton actions of vandals almost caused a major conflagration in the south 
west corner of the bush.  Quick action by two young women in alerting Ranger John Moore who 
called the emergency 111 number averted a major bush fire.  As it was, a portion of the timber 
boardwalk that was badly damaged needed replacement and a 200 year old Kahikatea was 
badly scorched and may die.  Police have video footage of the suspects. 
 
In partnership with DOC and the New Zealand Conservation Trust, five kiwis were crèched in 
the Bush during the period, and were released back to the wild in February 2012.  No kiwi are 
over-wintering in the Bush as at 30 June 2012. 
 
Our gardener Alan Bowles continues to do a fantastic job in the gardens of the house grounds, 
with incremental improvement in most areas. Thanks Alan. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The August 2011 and June 2012 snowfalls created significant damage to the ground trees and 
shrubs and to the bush trees with a hefty bill for arboriculture work to make safe. 
 
The track counter in Riccarton Bush tells us that some 43,978 people visited the Bush during the 
period under review and that is truly remarkable.   
 

It is a haven away from the noises and worries of the world and offers natural respite to many of 
our earthquake weary residents. 
 

 

Curly Root Kahikatea &  

Bush Visitors 

 

Riccarton House Grounds 
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Our People 
 
We wish to sincerely acknowledge and thank the Riccarton Bush Trustees and the staff of 
Riccarton House and Bush for their collective commitment and contributions from governance to 
leaf blowing; from advocacy to passion for the site. 
 
During the year there were a number of Trustee changes, as follows:  
 

 Greg Phillipson spent his first full year on the Trust Board following appointment in late 
June 2011. 

 Trustee Ishwar Ganda passed away unexpectedly in March 2012. 

 New trustee Peter Laloli, a long time Riccarton/Wigram Community Board Member, was 
appointed by the Community Board in June 2012 to fill the vacancy on the Riccarton Bush 
Trust Board caused by the passing of Ishwar Ganda. We wish Peter all the best for his 
term on the Trust Board. 

 
There have been no changes to the staff team at Riccarton House and Bush during the period 
under review.   
 
The Trust continues to be blessed with good practical support from the staff team of Christchurch 
City Council.  Special thanks to Diane Brandish, Jamie Ren and Adrian Seagar (financial); Robert 
O’Connor and Vivienne Wilson (Legal); Peter Wills (Property). 
 
Special thanks to Loranne Bayford for her word processing / graphics skills in the production of 
Board and Annual Reports, and to Jan Dally for her photography skills. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Shane Dunnings, Trust Ranger’s Assistant 

 

Alan Bowles, Trust Gardener  
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Our Supporters 
 
The Christchurch City Council is the statutory and primary funder of the Riccarton Bush Trust.  
The Trust wishes to acknowledge the on-going support of the Council throughout what can 
only be described as an extraordinary and tumultuous year for the Council post-earthquake. 
 
Special thanks also go to the following supporters of the Riccarton Bush Trust: 
 

 John Radburn and Alan Brown at Insight-Unlimited for their tenacity to get the earthquake 
repair process under way. 

 Carolyn McKenzie from Aon Insurance Brokers who fought against all odds to secure 
Contract Works Insurance for the Trust. 

 Tim Stephenson of Cunningham Lindsey, Loss Adjuster for the Trust. 

 Jamie Bennett and Sam Marchant Directors of Taste Catering, who just keep “hanging in”. 

 All those people, known and unknown who share our love of the site and who donate 
antique memorabilia to the Trust; who act as unofficial honorary Rangers; who donate 
goods / services, who put much needed contributions in the donation boxes. 

 

Our Finances 
 

The Trust has recorded a net surplus (after depreciation and projects) of $209,215 for the YE 30 
June 2012 compared with a forecast of $189,399 and the earthquake recovery inflated actual of 
$1,012,680 for the previous year.  This year’s surplus is positively affected by a one off gain of 
$250,000 on the revaluation of land and buildings. Without the non-cash revaluation gain, the Trust 
would have incurred a deficit of (-$40,785) for the YE 30 June 2012. 
 
As a guide to the nature and scope of operational income and expenditure, the pie charts below 
detail the various ratios. 
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The Riccarton Bush Trust was registered as a charitable entity in accordance with the Charities Act 
2005, on 26 May 2008. 

 
 

Looking Forward 
With the local seismic activity diminishing and with Contracts Works Insurance and consents in place for 
earthquake repairs to commence in July 2012, the Trust can look forward more positively to the 2012/13 
year.  There will still be challenges ahead in prioritising elements of the repairs so as to minimise the impact 
on Taste Events, and to maximise a return to business as usual for both Taste and the Trust.  There will also 
be challenges in securing affordable “all risks” insurance cover. 
 
The Trust’s main focus will be to get Riccarton House reopened just as soon as we can, albeit likely on a 
progressive basis, complete with under floor heating and a refurbished commercial kitchen, in time for the 
centennial celebration of the Trust in 2014. 
 
Other tasks remain including: 
 

 The Bus turn/park and upgrading of the driveway. 

 Development of a site Management Plan. 

 Updated Conservation Plans  

 A review of visitor experiences. 

 The planning of a function to celebrate the rebuild and the centenary of the Trust in 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Rob Dally 

Manager 

 

Charles Deans 

Chairman 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011
Note $ $

Revenue from operations 2 74,979         71,965      
Other income 2 584,716       2,021,147 

659,695       2,093,112 

Employee benefits expense 3 200,019       201,483    
Depreciation and Impairment 3 134,695       763,021    
Other expenses 3 115,765       115,928    

450,479       1,080,432 

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for period 209,216       1,012,680 

Property, Plant and Equipment impairment loss -                  452,163    
Property, Plant and Equipment revaluation gain 270,000       -               

Total Comprehensive Income 479,216       560,517    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 

 

20/09/2012 
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
For the year ended 30 June 2012 
 
 
 

Retained Other Total
earnings reserves equity

$ $ $

Balance at 30 June 2010 919,511       5,629,000  6,548,511 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,012,680    -                 1,012,680 
Transfer to/(from) Retained Earnings (10,000)       10,000       -               
Impairment losses charged to revaluation reserve (452,163)    (452,163)  
Balance at 30 June 2011 1,922,191    5,186,837  7,109,028 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 209,216       -                 209,216    
Gain/(loss) on property revaluation 270,000     270,000    
Balance at 30 June 2012 2,131,407    5,456,837  7,588,244 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011

Note $ $

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 499,267       587,415    

Trade and other receivables 7 1,746,818    1,714,673 

Inventories 6 946             560          
Total current assets 2,247,031    2,302,648 

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 5,416,900    4,964,736 

Total non-current assets 5,416,900    4,964,736 

Total assets 7,663,931    7,267,384 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9 42,054         131,155    

Provisions 10 33,633         27,201      

Total current l iabilities 75,687         158,356    

Total liabilities 75,687         158,356    

Net assets 7,588,244    7,109,028 

Equity

Reserves 11 5,456,837    5,186,837 

Retained earnings 12 2,131,407    1,922,191 

Total equity 7,588,244    7,109,028 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Objectives and Performance 

For the year ending 30 June 2012 

 
The following summarises the Trust’s performance against the objectives for the year. 
 

Financial Performance Targets 
 

Actual Target

$'000s $'000s

Revenue 660 610              

Operating Expenses 450 423              

Operating surplus (deficit)  before depreciation 209 189              

 
 
Actual Revenue includes a $250,000 gain from the year end revaluation for Riccarton House and Dean’s Cottage 
reversing a portion of the impairment charge incurred in the 2010-11 financial year.  The Trust expected to receive 
$262,000 in Grants Revenue from Christchurch City Council which did not occur because of delay on capital projects due 
to the 2010-11 earthquakes.   
 
As a result of the year end revaluation, there is a $96,000 impairment loss on Ranger’s House increasing the total 
operating expenses to $450,000. 
 
 
Project Performance Targets 
 

 
 
 
Environmental and Social Performance Targets 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
1.  Statement of Accounting Policies 

 
Reporting entity 

 
Riccarton Bush Trust operates under the Riccarton Bush Act 1914 and is a Council Controlled Organisation under the 
Local Government Act 2002.  The Trust manages property in Riccarton.  The property consists of Riccarton historic 
house, cottage and grounds, a residential house and conservation bush. 
 
The major source of income is from an operating levy and an additional grant received annually from Christchurch City 
Council, and from grants and donations and rents from use of the properties. 

 
The financial statements of the Trust are for the year ended 30 June 2012.  The financial statements were approved for 
issue by the Board of Trustees on 20 September 2012. 
 
(a) Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements of Riccarton Bush Trust have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practice in New Zealand (‘NZ GAAP’).  They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards (‘NZ IFRS’), and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities. 
 
Differential Reporting 
Riccarton Bush Trust is a qualifying entity within the Framework for Differential Reporting.  The differential reporting 
option is available to the Trust as it is not large within the meaning of this term as set out in the Framework and is not 
publicly accountable.  The Trust has taken advantage of all differential reporting concessions available to it. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain non 
current assets. 
 
The reporting currency used in the preparation of these financial statements is New Zealand dollars, rounded to the 
nearest dollar. 
 
The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods that the financial statements cover. 
 
(b) Revenue 
 
Grants/Levies 
Grants received from the Christchurch City Council are the primary source of funding to the Trust and are restricted for 
the purpose of the Trust meeting its objectives as specified in the Riccarton Bush Act.  The Trust also receives other 
government assistance for specific purposes, and these grants usually contain restrictions on their use. 
 
Council, Government and non-government grants are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there 
is an obligation to return the funds if conditions of the grant are not met.  If there is such an obligation, the grants are 
initially recorded as grant received in advance, and recognised as revenue when conditions of the grant are satisfied. 
 
Other Revenue 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. 
 
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 
 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Land, site improvements and buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic (every three years) valuations by an 
external independent valuer less subsequent depreciation and impairment. 
 
All other property, plant and equipment are shown at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
 
Additions 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Trust and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. 
 
In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost.  Where an asset is acquired at no 
cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value when control over the asset is obtained. 
 
Disposals 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.  These are included in the 
surplus or deficit.  When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other reserves in respect of those assets are 
transferred to retained earnings. 
 
Subsequent costs 
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Trust and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the surplus or deficit during the financial 
period in which they are incurred. 
 
Depreciation 
Land and Antique furniture are not depreciated.  Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method 
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives.   
 
The useful lives of major classes of assets are as follows: 

  

• Buildings 30-100 yrs 

• Furniture and fittings 10 yrs 

• Plant and equipment 3-30 yrs 

• Land improvements 5-100 yrs  
 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
(d) Trade and other receivables 
 
Trade and other receivables are stated at their expected realised value after writing off of any known bad debts and 
making a provision for doubtful debts which may prove irrecoverable in subsequent accounting periods. 
 
(e) Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.   
 
The cost of other inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.   
 
(f) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short-term deposits with original maturities 
of 3 months or less. 
 
(g) Impairment 
 
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable.   
 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
 
(h) Provisions 
 
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, will 
be required to settle the obligation.  If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the obligation. 

 
(i) Employee entitlements 
 
Provision is made in respect of the Trust’s liability for the short-term employee entitlements. 
 
Liabilities for annual leave and time off in lieu are accrued at the full amount owing at the pay period ending immediately 
prior to the balance sheet date.   
 
Liabilities for accumulating short-term compensated absences are measured as the amount of unused entitlement 
accumulated at the pay period ending immediately prior to the balance sheet date, that the entity anticipates employees 
will use in future periods, in excess of the days that they will be entitled to in each of those periods.   
 
Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 month are measured as 
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Trust in respect of services provided up to 
balance date. 
 
(j) Income tax 
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The Inland Revenue Department (IRD) has confirmed that the Riccarton Bush Trust has charitable status for tax 
purposes and therefore, is not liable for income tax. 
 
(k) Goods and Services Tax 
 
The financial statements are prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and payables that are shown 
inclusive of GST.  Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 
 
(l) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
 
In preparing these financial statements the Trust has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  These 
estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results.  Estimates and assumptions are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below: 
 
Property, plant and equipment useful lives and residual values 
At each balance date the Trust reviews the useful lives and residual values of its property, plant and equipment.  
Assessing the appropriateness of useful life and residual value estimates of property, plant and equipment requires the 
Trust to consider a number of factors such as the physical condition of the asset, expected period of use of the asset by 
the Trust, and expected disposal proceeds from the future sale of the asset. 
 
An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will impact on the depreciable amount of an asset, therefore 
impacting on the depreciation expense recognised in the surplus or deficit, and the carrying amount of the asset in the 
statement of financial position.  The Trust minimises the risk of this estimation uncertainty by: 
 
- Physical inspection of assets; 
- Asset replacement programmes; 
- Review of second hand market prices for similar assets; and 
- Analysis of prior asset sales; 
 
The Trust has not made significant changes to the past assumptions concerning useful lives and residual values.  The 
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 8. 
 
(m) Critical judgement in applying the Trust’s accounting policies 
 
The Trustees must exercise their judgement when recognising grant income to determine if conditions of the grant 
contract have been satisfied.  This judgement will be based on the facts and circumstances that are evident for each 
grant contract. 
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2.  Revenue and other income 

2012 2011
$ $

Revenue from operations

Rents and commission - Riccarton House 67,468       51,008      
Heritage income - Riccarton House 4,749         17,610      
Sale of plants 1,024         1,505        
Book sales 1,738         1,842        

74,979       71,965      

Other Income

Rents - dwelling 9,360         9,362        
Donations and sundry income 29,329       21,493      
Levy - Christchurch City Council 108,310     108,310    
Grants - Christchurch City Council 167,520     159,490    
Reversal of Impairment 250,000     -               
Interest received 11,719       9,222        
Insurance Recoveries 8,478         1,713,270 

584,716     2,021,147 

Total revenue 659,695     2,093,112 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 5 TO CLAUSE 3 CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 28. 11. 2012



 

22 

 

3.  Expenses 

2012 2011
Note $ $

Employee benefits expense:
       Administration 62,921       65,406      
       Riccarton House 838            6,087        
       Bush and Grounds 128,068     121,950    
       Trustee 8,192         8,040        

200,019     201,483    

Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets: 8
       Land improvement 4,919         4,919        
       Buildings 3,897         26,749      
       Furniture & fittings 6,161         6,553        
       Plant & equipment 23,942       28,865      
       Impairment of property, plant & equipment 95,776       695,935    

134,695     763,021    

Other Expenses:
       Administration:
       ACC levy 1,136         1,293        
       Administration charge 14,000       14,000      
       Board, legal and other expenses 1,242         2,551        
       Miscellaneous expenses 9,908         8,746        
       Promotions 880            9,842        
       Rates 2,412         2,354        
       Stationery 2,845         1,786        

32,423       40,572      

       Riccarton House:
       Electricity 8,868         9,703        
       Insurance 458            (8,328)       
       Maintenance - building 19,525       25,788      
       Maintenance - equipment and furniture 610            3,736        
       Miscellaneous expenses 411            707           

29,872       31,606      
       Bush and Grounds:
       Maintenance 26,686       19,898      
       Miscellaneous expenses 6,351         5,989        
       Security 5,889         5,889        
       Telephone 953            849           

39,879       32,625      

       Dwelling:
       Insurance 758            204           

758            204           

       Miscellaneous expenses:
       Merchandise cost of sales 528            1,272        

    Write-down of inventory to net realisable value 25              149           
       Auditors' remuneration 4 12,280       9,500        

12,833       10,921      

       Total Other expenses 115,765     115,928    

Total expenses 450,479     1,080,432 
 

ATTACHMENT 5 TO CLAUSE 3 CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE 28. 11. 2012



 

23 

 

4.  Remuneration of auditors 

2012 2011

$ $

Audit New Zealand

Audit of financial statements 12,280       9,500        

12,280       9,500        

 
 
 
The auditor of Riccarton Bush Trust is the Auditor-General.  The Auditor-General has appointed Audit New Zealand to 
undertake the audit.   
 
The 2012 expense includes additional 2011 audit costs of $1,950.  The increase in the 2011 audit fee was a result of the 
additional work required as a result of the Canterbury earthquakes. 

 
 
5.  Cash and cash equivalents 

2012 2011
$ $

Cash at bank and in hand 126,716      210,263      
Deposit on call 372,551      377,152      

499,267      587,415      

 
 
 
6.  Inventories 

2012 2011
$ $

Book Stock on hand
- at net real isable value 946               560            

946               560            

 
 
 
7.  Current trade and other receivables 

2012 2011
$ $

Debtors and Accruals 22,885          1,403         
Insurance recoveries 

receivable 1,723,933     1,713,270   

1,746,818     1,714,673   

 
 
 
(a) Bad and doubtful trade receivables 
There is no loss (2011: Nil) recognised in respect of bad and doubtful trade receivables during the year ended 30 June 
2012.  The allowance for doubtful debts has been calculated based on expected losses for the Trust’s pool of debtors.  
Expected losses have been determined based on an analysis of the Trust’s losses in previous periods, and review of 
specific debtors. 
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8.  Property, plant and equipment 

Land &

Land Improvement Buildings Furniture & Plant & Antique Movement

 at at fair fittings equipment furniture in 

fair value value at cost at cost at cost W IP Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Gross carrying amount:

Balance at 01 July 2010 4,387,177    1,318,865        109,885      593,863       182,079       36,105           6,627,974             

Additions -                  -                       -                  13,310         -                   -                     13,310                  

Movement in WIP -                  -                       -                  -                  -                   15,764           15,764                  

Balance at 30 June 2011 4,387,177    1,318,865        109,885      607,173       182,079       51,869           6,657,048             

Additions -                  -                       -                  273              -                   -                     273                       

Movement in WIP -                  -                       -                  -                  -                   66,586           66,586                  
Balance at 30 June 2012 4,387,177    1,318,865        109,885      607,446       182,079       118,455         6,723,907             

Accumulated depreciation, 

amortisation and impairment:

Balance at 01 July 2010 (2,522)         (53,422)            (85,456)       (335,728)     -                   -                     (477,128)               

Depreciation expense (4,919)         (26,749)            (6,553)         (28,865)       -                   -                     (67,086)                 

Impairment losses charged to prof it -                  (685,501)          (3,106)         (7,328)         -                   (695,935)               

Impairment losses charged to 

revaluation reserve -                  (452,163)          -                   (452,163)               

Balance at 30 June 2011 (7,441)         (1,217,835)       (95,115)       (371,921)     -                   -                     (1,692,312)            

Revaluation gain charged to other 

income -                  250,000           -                  -                  -                   -                     250,000                

Depreciation expense (4,919)         (3,897)              (6,161)         (23,942)       -                   -                     (38,919)                 

Impairment losses charged to prof it -                  (95,776)            -                  -                  -                   -                     (95,776)                 

Revaluation gain charged to 

revaluation reserve 270,000       -                       -                  -                  -                   -                     270,000                

Balance at 30 June 2012 257,640       (1,067,508)       (101,276)     (395,863)     -                   -                     (1,307,007)            

Net book value as at 30 June 2011 4,379,736    101,030           14,770        235,252       182,079       51,869           4,964,736             

Net book value as at 30 June 2012 4,644,817    251,357           8,609          211,583       182,079       118,455         5,416,900             

 
 
Land, site improvements and buildings were revalued at fair value at 30 June 2012 by an external independent valuer 
(Knight Frank Valuation & Consultancy).   
 

 

9.  Current trade and other payables 

2012 2011
$ $

Trade payables 26,779   134,717    
GST payable 4,365     (13,062)     
Audit Fee 10,330   9,500        
Revenue in advance 580        -               

42,054   131,155    
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10.  Current provisions 

2012 2011
$ $

Employee benefits 21,724   16,262      
Provision for Retirement gratuity 11,909   10,939      

33,633   27,201      

 
 
 
11.  Reserves 

 
Gawith Deans Family Trust donated $16,100 during the 2011/12 financial year to be used for a replacement switchboard 
for Riccarton House. 
 

Special Asset Capital
funds revaln reserve Total

$ $ $ $

Balance at 01 July 2010 50,015     4,497,819 1,081,166 5,629,000 
Gain/(loss) on property revaluation -               -               -               -                
Transfer from retained earnings 10,000     -               10,000      
Impairment losses charged to revaluation reserve -               (452,163)  -               (452,163)   

Balance at 30 June 2011 60,015     4,045,656 1,081,166 5,186,837 
Gain/(loss) on property revaluation -               270,000    -               270,000    
Transfer from retained earnings -               -               -               -                
Impairment losses charged to revaluation reserve -               -               -               -                

Balance at 30 June 2012 60,015     4,315,656 1,081,166 5,456,837 

 
 

 
 
12.  Retained earnings 

2012 2011
$ $

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,922,191 919,511    
Surplus/(deficit) 209,216    1,012,680 
Transfer to/(from) special funds reserve -               (10,000)     
Balance at end of financial year 2,131,407 1,922,191 

 
 
 

13.  Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are Cash and cash equivalents (see Note 5).   
 
Risk 
The Trust has policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments.  The Trust is risk averse and seeks to 
minimise exposure from its treasury activities. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on funds invested at both fixed and floating interest rates.  The risk is managed 
by restricting investment to quality investment grade issues, pursuant to Christchurch City Council’s investment policy. 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a third party will default on its contractual obligations to the Trust, causing the Trust to 
incur a loss.  Financial instruments which potentially subject the Trust to credit risk consist principally of cash , short term 
investments and accounts receivable. 
 
The Trust banks solely with Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) and therefore credit risk is concentrated with BNZ.  BNZ has a 
AA- (2011: AA) credit rating with Standard and Poor’s (Australia) Pty limited.   
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14.  Commitments for expenditure  

2012 2011
$ $

Lease commitments:
Not later than one year 1,128         1,128          
Later than one year and not later than five years 282            2,538          

1,410         3,666          

Other expenditure commitments:
Not later than one year 16,108        16,108        
Later than one year and not later than five years 16,108        32,216        
Later than f ive years -                 -                 

32,216        48,324        

 
 
 
The total non-cancellable operating lease amount relates to the lease of a digital copier.  The lease expires in September 
2013.   
 
The Trust has entered into a 7 - years maintenance contract with Programmed Maintenance Services Ltd. , starting 
2008.   
 
15.  Contingencies 

Riccarton Bush Trust has no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil).  There are no contingent assets as at 
30 June 2012 (2011: Nil). 

 
 
16.  Related party transactions 

Christchurch City Council 
The Trust receives a significant amount of operating grants from the Christchurch City Council to deliver its objectives as 
specified in the Riccarton Bush Act, refer Note 2.   
 
During 2011/12, the Trust purchased services including insurance, accounting services, telephone/fax charges, rates and 
resource consent fees worth $28,192 (2011: $113,228) from the Council. 
 
 
Vbase Ltd. 
The Trust purchased catering services from Vbase Ltd a company owned by Christchurch City Council.  During 2011/12, 
the Trust purchased services worth $888 (2011: Nil) from Vbase Ltd. 

 
 
17.  Post balance date events 

 
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date. 

 
18.  Capital management 

The Trust’s capital is its equity, which comprises Trust capital and retained surpluses.  Equity is represented by net 
assets. 
 
The Riccarton Bush Act requires the Board of Trustees to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, 
investments, and general financial dealings prudently.  The Trust’s equity is largely managed as a by-product of 
managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings. 
 
 

19.  Legislative requirements 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the Trust to submit half year accounts and a Statement of Intent to its 
shareholder within specified timeframes.  For the 2011/12 financial year the Trust did not meet the specified timeframes 
as set out in the legislation for the submission of documents to its shareholder. 
 
 
20.  Impact of Canterbury Earthquakes 

In the 2011 financial statements the Trust impaired its assets by $1,148,098 as a result of earthquake damage to the 
assets.  One year on the Trust as described below has been able to revalue its land and buildings in accordance with NZ 
GAAP and its accounting policies. 
 
Asset Impairment 
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As at 30 June 2012 the Trust had its assets revalued by Mr William Blake of Knight Frank Valuation & Consultancy for 
the purposes of its financial statements.  This valuation provided The Trust with the current market value for its assets.   
 
The impact of the valuation is outlined below: 

Book Value 

(pre 

valuation)

Estimated 

(Depreciated) 

Replacement 

Cost

 Cost of 

Repair 

 Gain on 

Revaluation Impairment Book Value

30 Jun 12 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 12

Riccarton House -                  2,000,000        1,760,000   -                  240,000       240,000         

Historic Cottage -                  100,000           90,000        -                  10,000         10,000           

Dwellings 95,776         60,000             110,000      -                  (95,776)        -                     

Garage 1,357           -                       -                  -                  -                   1,357             

Furniture & Fitt ings - Riccarton House 8,609           -                       -                  -                  -                   8,609             

Antique Furniture & Fittings 182,079       -                       -                  -                  -                   182,079         

Plant & Equipment - Bush 189,976       -                       -                  -                  -                   189,976         

Plant & Equipment - Riccarton House 21,608         -                       -                  -                  -                   21,608           

Land 4,374,816    4,644,816        -                  270,000       -                   4,644,816      

WIP 118,455       -                       -                  -                  -                   118,455         

4,992,676    6,804,816        1,960,000   270,000       154,224       5,416,900       
 
The estimated cost of repair to the Trust’s assets has been calculated by the project manager (John Radburn of Insight 
Unlimited) who is a joint appointment by the insurers and Christchurch City Council.  He has completed detailed site 
inspections and recording of damage and has compiled preliminary estimates of repairs against the known damage and 
projected specifications and scopes of repair.   
 
Council’s loss adjuster Cunningham Lindsey has advised the insurers that the project manager is, in their view, the most 
informed and competent party to provide estimates and therefore the Trust is using these as the basis for recording asset 
impairment and expected recoveries. 
 
The table above shows the assets that $250,000 of the 2011 impairment charge in relation to the House and Cottage has 
been reversed while an additional impairment charge of $95,776 was required for the Rangers Cottage.  The impairment 
charge taken in 2011 eliminated the revaluation reserve relating to buildings and an expense was recognised surplus of 
$695,935.  The net effect of the 2012 revaluation on buildings is an impairment recovery of $154,224.  A further 
$541,711 impairment recoveries will be required before a revaluation reserve in relation to buildings can be recognised. 
 
 
Insurance Recoveries 

 
Insurance recoveries can be recognised when they are considered receivable rather than when actually received.  An 
insurance recovery should be considered receivable when the insurer has confirmed acceptance of the claim.  As 
Cunningham Lindsey has advised that the claim has been accepted, the Trust has recorded the expected insurance 
recovery as revenue in the 2010/2011 financial year.   

 
The current estimated cost to repair is $1,834,940 based on information provided by Insight Unlimited and accepted by 
Cunningham Lindsey (refer above) remained unchanged from the 2011 estimate.  However this includes an estimate of 
$77,740 for strengthening requirements that is yet to be confirmed by structural engineers and which has not yet been 
agreed to by the insurers and, thereby has been removed from the calculation.  As the Trust’s insurance excess is 2.5% 
of the claim amount this means that $1,713,270  has been recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as 
revenue and in the Statement of Financial Position as a receivable. 

 $ 

Estimated cost of repair 1,834,940  

less strengthening not covered 77,740  

Covered by insurers 1,757,200  

Insurance excess @ 2.5% 43,930  

  

Recovery to recognise 1,713,270  

 
 
As the table above shows, the Trust will be liable for a total of $121,670 for strengthening works and the excess on the 
insurance claim and consideration needs to be given as to how this will be funded. 
 
Despite the damage to the Trust’s assets and additional costs faced, the Trust remains committed to the restoration and 
on-going operation of the heritage buildings of Riccarton House and Deans Cottage and their grounds, as well as the 
conservation of Riccarton Bush. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the readers of 
Riccarton Bush Trust’s 

financial statements and statement of objectives and performance 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Riccarton Bush Trust (the Trust). The Auditor-General has 
appointed me, John Mackey, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the 
audit of the financial statements and statement of objectives and performance of the Trust on her 
behalf.  

We have audited: 

• the financial statements of the Trust on pages 14 to 16 and 18 to 27, that comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statement of comprehensive income 
and statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date and the notes to the 
financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and 

• the statement of objectives and performance of the Trust on page 17. 

Opinion 

In our opinion: 

• the financial statements of the Trust on pages 14 to 16 and 18 to 27: 

� comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

� fairly reflect the Trust’s: 

• financial position as at 30 June 2012; and 

• financial performance for the year ended on that date; and 

• the statement of objectives and performance of the Trust on page 17: 

� complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

� fairly reflects the Trust’s objectives and performance achievements measured against 
the performance targets adopted for the year ended 30 June 2012. 

Our audit was completed on 20 September 2012. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board 
of Trustees and our responsibilities, and we explain our independence. 

Basis of opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements and statement of objectives and performance are free from 
material misstatement.  
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Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a 
reader’s overall understanding of the financial statements and statement of objectives and 
performance. If we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have 
referred to them in our opinion. 

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements and statement of objectives and performance. The procedures 
selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements and statement of objectives and performance, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the preparation of the Trust’s 
financial statements and statement of objectives and performance that fairly reflect the matters to 
which they relate. We consider internal control in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control. 

An audit also involves evaluating: 

• the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently 
applied; 

• the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the 
Board of Trustees; 

• the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements and statement of objectives and 
performance; and 

• the overall presentation of the financial statements and statement of objectives and 
performance. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial 
statements and statement of objectives and performance. We have obtained all the information and 
explanations we have required and we believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit 
evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Trustees 

The Trustees are responsible for preparing financial statements and a statement of objectives and 
performance that: 

• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;  

• fairly reflect the Trust’s financial position and financial performance; and 

• fairly reflect its objectives and performance achievements. 

The Trustees are also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements and a statement of objectives and performance that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Trustees’ responsibilities arise from the Local Government Act 2002. 
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Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and 
statement of objectives and performance and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. Our 
responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 69 of the Local 
Government Act 2002. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, 
which incorporate the independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered 
Accountants. 

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the Trust. 
 

 
 

John Mackey 
Audit New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Christchurch, New Zealand 
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RICCARTON HOUSE & BUSH 
ORGANISATION CHART 

As at 30 June 2012 
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GOVERNANCE AND STAFFING 
AT 30 JUNE 2012 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Mr Charles Deans 

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 

 

Mr Mike Mora 

TRUSTEES Cr Jimmy Chen  *  

Mr Tony Gemmill  * 

Dr Brian Molloy 

Mr. Bob Shearing  * 

Mr P. Laloli  

Mrs Pamela Wilson * 

Mr Greg Phillipson  

* Christchurch City Council Appointees 

MANAGER Rob Dally 

 

RANGER John Moore 

 

RANGERS ASSISTANT Shane Dunnings 

 

GARDENER Alan Bowles 

 

HEAD HERITAGE GUIDE Anne Robertson 

HERITAGE GUIDE Lynda Acton-Adams 

HERITAGE GUIDE Jan Dally 

HERITAGE GUIDE Ruth Deans 

HERITAGE GUIDE Betty Leggat 

HERITAGE GUIDE John Hoskin 

 

Passiflora tetrandra. Kohia in Riccarton Bush 

New Zealand Native Passion Fruit 
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MAJOR DONATIONS AND GRANTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

30 JUNE 2012 
 

CHRISTCHURCH CITY COUNCIL (Grant) 
 

$167,520 

Gawith Deans Family Trust $16,100 (new switchboard for 
Riccarton House 

JAN DALLY PHOTOGRAPHY 

 
The Riccarton Bush Trust sincerely thanks the above individuals / groups for their 

generous grants/donations. 

   

 

Pests in Riccarton Bush; 

Feral Pigeons 

Pigeon Poo on the Bush 

Boardwalk 
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Riccarton Bush Trust 

16 Kahu Road 

PO Box 8276 

CHRISTCHURCH 

 

PHONE:  (03) 341-1018 

FAX:  (03) 341-6839 

EMAIL:  mail@riccartonhouse.co.nz 

WEB:  www.riccartonhouse.co.nz 
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Annual Progress Report 

 

Financial Year June 
2011‐12 

 

Introduction 
 

The first part of the financial year was an extremely difficult one for the Trust due to the aftermath 
of the 22 February 2011 earthquake. The Trustees had met on the morning of 22 February in 
Cathedral Square, but were not able to meet again until August.  By then the Trust had started to 
regain its momentum and it made considerable progress during the remainder of the year, 
including setting up its own secretariat, conducting a stocktake of the environmental work in 
progress on the Peninsula, setting clear strategic goals and initiating action for those goals with 
specific projects. 

 

Secretariat 
 

The Trust was pleased to contract Suky Thompson as its secretary from July 2011 after 
considerable search for a suitable person. In addition to providing administrative skills and 
office facilities, Suky Thompson brings an empathy with the objectives of the Trust and an 
indepth knowledge of the Peninsula built up over twenty years of work on its heritage and 
environmental projects. 

 

With its secretary engaged, the Trustees were able to begin meeting regularly and the secretariat 
was gradually established, retrieving essential documents as they became accessible from Council 
staff who had serviced the Trust’s administrative needs since its inception but post‐earthquake 
were busy with more pressing matters. The Trust appreciates the support it has had from the 
Council Corporate Finance staff and they continue to provide accountancy and banking services. 
The secretary has recently been working with these staff to establish roles and a timely flow of 
information necessary to meet statutory reporting deadlines. 

 

At the end of the year Suky Thompson was contracted for a further year and given the additional 
responsibility of managing the Trust’s projects. She is contracted to work on a part time as needed 
basis with a guideline of approximately 2 days per week. 

 

Initial Stocktake 
 

From the outset, the Trust had established that it would best achieve its objectives for 
sustainable management and conservation of the Peninsula’s natural environment and 
associated recreation by acting as a facilitator, conduit and connector assisting existing groups 
with projects that aligned to the Trust’s objectives and taking a lead role only where gaps in the 
existing mix were identified. The initial step was therefore to conduct a stocktake to pull together 
a list of organisations involved with such work, learn of their projects, the issues they face and 
how the Trust could be of most assistance.  The stocktake process identified 89 organisations 
(and parts of organisations) involved with these types of projects and included indepth 
qualitative interviews with representatives from government organisations (DOC, CCC, Ecan) 
working on the Peninsula environment, the two Community Boards, the five runanga, 
environmental scientists from both Lincoln and Canterbury universities and a wide range of 
community groups involved with conservation, eco‐tourism, walking and cycling recreation.  The 
interviews were then systematically analysed to determine how the Trust could position itself 
through a mix of direct funding of projects, initiating new projects, plugging environmental gaps 
in the current mix of work, and overcoming some of the systemic issues that hamper progress.  
The following themes emerged from the interviews indicating how the Trust could be of most 
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assistance: 
 

 Kotahitanga – providing an  umbrella co‐ordination role linking together the work of many 
groups and organisations to achieve collectiveness, cohesion, oneness and unity. 

 Recreation leadership – to get people, particularly young people, engaged with and 
appreciating the environment through walking, cycling and affordable camping. Co‐
ordinating and facilitating a network of  long distance walking  and  cycling  routes was 
identified  as  a  gap  that  the  Trust would be in a good position to fill. 

 Provision of public education ‐ through its website, and interpretation at places such as 
walking tracks, campgrounds and along the lakes. 

 Supporting biodiversity ‐ through direct funding to existing organisations, particularly the 
Banks Peninsula Conservation Trust whose success at co‐ordinating the biodiversity 
efforts of government and community organisations was recognised as bringing wide 
ranging benefits. 

 Supporting sustainable community development ‐ through direct funding projects such 
as the management improvements to Te Roto o Wairewa and/or facilitating a 
sustainable living and knowledge centre. 

 

Strategic Goals 
 

Upon receipt of the initial stocktake report, the Trust held a strategic planning workshop to 
determine whether to continue stocktaking, what mix it should adopt between leading projects 
and supporting others, how to allocate its funds and the relationships envisaged with other 
organisations.  This workshop determined that sufficient stocktaking work had been completed to 
enable the Trust to make an effective start as the mix of projects underway had been categorised 
and the main environmental gaps and systemic issues groups face had been identified. From this 
the Trust then re‐affirmed and extended its strategic goals and determined the following key 
pillars to underpin the delivery of its vision over the next three years: 

 

 Access ‐  encompassing people accessing the Peninsula environment through the 
provision of walkways, camping grounds and eco‐tourism etc. 

 Knowledge ‐  encompassing a leadership role in knowledge sharing on environmental 
issues, provision of a knowledge centre, connecting people and communities, effective 
investments. 

 Partnership ‐ encompassing working with others on practical projects that they have initiated. 
 

The Trust also made some key determinations about the use of its capital, and developed its 
investment policy.  The key determinations were: 

 

 Capital funds would be expended over approximately a 20 year period. 

 Up to 40% would be used in the next 5 years. 

 Capital would be used for projects that left an enduring legacy. 

 The Trust would aim to partner with others on projects at a ratio of 1:5 (20% funder). 

 Interest would fund annual operating expenditure, minor projects and grants. 

 Prior to expenditure, the capital fund would be invested ethically and locally but the Trust 
would be able to respond rapidly if appropriate opportunities arose. 

 

The decision to invest locally and ethically, seeking to build relationships with a range of New 
Zealand based financial institutions while meeting objectives of security, liquidity and income has 
meant that the Trust’s investment policy includes making some limited investments in organisations 
(such as ethical investor Prometheus Finance) which fall outside the Christchurch City Council 
investment policy (which restricts fixed income investment to  AAA‐ credit rated organisations 
only).    This has involved Trustees in prolonged dialogue with Council staff and the Investment 
policy is awaiting approval by the Council. 
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Projects 
 

During the 2011‐12 year, the Trust determined to fund three projects being carried out by partners 
which met both its objectives and strategic goals.  It has also initiated a number of projects to 
further establish its presence and to progress areas where it may later take a leadership role. 

 

Publication of “Plant life of Banks Peninsula” 
The Trust is the lead sponsor assisting with the publication of the book “Plant life of Banks 
Peninsula” by eminent Peninsula botanist Hugh Wilson.  The stocktake established that Hugh 
Wilson’s botanical guidance and his experience as the manager of the very successful Hinewai 
Reserve had been both innovative and inspirational to others across all the organisations working 
toward the sustainable management and conservation of the Peninsula.    After a lightning strike 
had sparked a major fire through part of the upper regenerating area of the Hinewai reserve, the 
Trust contacted Hugh to offer its assistance.    Sponsorship of the book though loan funding 
emerged as the optimal way to both assist and further the Trust’s Knowledge pillar.  With the 
funding secured, Hugh Wilson has been able to progress the book to the publication stage while 
also working on fire recovery at Hinewai.  Final proofs are now in preparation for this definitive A4 
size reference book which will include all the native and most exotic plants found on the Peninsula 
complete with colour illustrations.  The loan will be made using the Trust’s capital funds channelled 
through Prometheus finance, building relations with this ethical investor.  The funds will be repaid 
as revenue accrues from the book sales.  This will be the first loan for the Trust and work is in 
progress to formalise the loan mechanism. 

 

Purchase of a strategic reserve property 
The Trust is working in partnership with the DOC Nature Heritage Fund and the Joseph Langer 
Trust to purchase a strategic property falling with a Primary area of interest identified in the 
Council’s Open Space Strategy and to facilitate a Primary recreation route segment.    The project 
involves the Trust putting in a capital stake, and then assisting with local community involvement 
to develop and nurture the reserve.  DOC would own and manage the reserve which has botanical 
as well as recreational value and take responsibility for installing the walking track.  Capital funds 
are earmarked for this project which will create an enduring legacy for both conservation and 
recreation on the Peninsula. 

 

Funding for Banks Peninsula Conservation Trust 
The stocktake identified that funding for the Banks Peninsula Conservation Trust (BPCT) would 
provide the best way for the Trust to start on its biodiversity support for the Peninsula 
environment.  A number of organisations expressed recognition for the excellent job the BPCT had 
been doing in co‐ordinating biodiversity efforts and identified the difficulty community groups 
have in sourcing funding for their core administrative staff as a systemic issue.   When the BPCT 
found itself in just this position and approached the Trust for assistance with continued funding 
for its co‐ordinator position or face a crisis, the Trust determined to assist with a three year grant 
to provide the BPCT with some stability, and also to work to assist it to improve its long term 
sustainability and funding.  In doing so the Trust is achieving its own conservation objectives and 
building a key partnership.  A memorandum of understanding is in progress to formalise the grant 
and the mechanisms guiding a partnership between the two organisations to achieve their shared 
objectives.  Funds derived from annual interest income are earmarked for this grant. 

 

Website development 
The Trust has contracted Tai Tapu based design company Kopara Creative to develop clear and 
attractive branding to assist it with communications.  Once the branding is in place, the Trust will 
work to design and develop its website to both promote its own news and  to act as its 
communication forum and provide an umbrella function for groups with shared and overlapping 
objectives.    The Trust is working now to contact all the groups identified in its stocktake to build 
relationships with them and to garner information on how an umbrella website can best serve them.  
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It is anticipated that this will strengthen relationships, guide knowledge sharing and help build 
partnerships.  Again, funds from annual interest income are earmarked for this project. 

 

Walkway strategy 
The Trust has explored its interest in recreational walking on the Peninsula in a number of ways 
during the year. Initially effort was put into a plan to purchase property in Le Bons Bay  in 
conjunction with the DOC Nature Heritage fund but unfortunately, the bid was not successful and 
the project then ceased. 

 

The Trust has also developed a relationship with the Walking Access Commission and made 
a presentation to their Board at which it was commended for its concept of using walking 
tracks to connect communities. 

 

Now the Trust is working in‐house to further define its walkway strategy teasing out its objectives 
for walking on the Peninsula as a precursor to holding discussion forums, forming partnerships with 
other organisations and working in conjunction with communities and landowners to further its 
goal of increased recreational walking access on the Peninsula.  Costs of the strategy development 
and liaison with partners will be funded from annual interest income, but any land purchases, long 
term easements or other capital investments resulting from the strategy and community 
consultation are expected to draw on  capital funds.  The walkway strategy is being developed as a 
precursor to investigating the provision of affordable camping and the provision of educational 
interpretation.  The Trust appreciates the support of Council GIS and planning staff in supplying it 
with the Geomedia software and GIS data necessary to inform its strategy development. 

 

Environmental education and Alternative Energy Centre 
The Trust is also at the early stages of working in‐house to crystallise its ideas for an environmental 
and alternative energy centre and examining various other community initiatives in the category of 
fostering sustainable living. 
 

Trust Board 
 

The initial trustees were selected for the breadth of their perspectives on the Peninsula and the 
depth of their knowledge of its diverse communities.  They have worked cohesively to first 
develop the Trust’s objectives and its deed, and then its statement of intent.  The initial 
appointments were for terms of between one and three years with the terms staggered by ballot 
to ensure continuity. There are seven initial Trustees, and the Trust deed provides for a maximum 
of 9 Trustees with the Board having the power to co‐opt.  The current Board still consists of the 
initial Trustees and secretary,  these being: 
 

 

Garry Moore 
Chairperson 

Garry Moore served Christchurch City as its mayor for three terms.  
During his final term the neighbouring Banks Peninsula District City was 
abolished and the City Council took over as the territorial authority. 
Garry was instrumental in initiating the Trust and securing its funding as
a way to perpetually remember the contribution of parliamentarian 
Rod Donald to environmental projects and for the city to embrace 
Banks Peninsula.  As a city resident, he has enjoyed many happy years 
of family recreation on Banks Peninsula and has a 100 year vision for its
restoration as an environmental jewel.  Garry Moore is appointed as 
Trustee until June 2014. 
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Nicola Shirlaw 
Trustee 

Nicola Shirlaw has worked variously for community organisations and 
government departments, and served on management committees and
school boards.  Currently she works on the Peninsula at the Little River 
Gallery as well as for the community organisation Social Development 
Partners, and is completing a degree in Political Science at the 
University of Canterbury.  Nicola is a representative of Rod Donald’s 
family and provides the Trust with a sounding board for the application 
of his values to its work.  Nicola Shirlaw is appointed as Trustee until 
June 2014.

Stuart Wright‐stow 
Trustee 

Stuart Wright‐stow is a Peninsula entrepreneur, businessman, 
resident and was a close friend of Rod Donald.  He and his wife own 
the Little River Gallery and formerly owned the adjacent store.  The 
development of these were instrumental in changing the township 
from a drive through on the main highway to a “must stop” 
destination.  His latest project is to provide a unique form of 
accommodation to cyclists on the Little River Rail Trail in converted 
silos.  Stuart Wright‐stow is appointed Trustee until June 2014. 

Simon Mortlock 
Trustee 

Simon Mortlock is a founding partner of Christchurch‐based law firm 
Mortlock McCormack Law and brings to the Board his skills and 
experience in business startup and strategy, contracts, governance, 
joint ventures, property development, local government and trusts. 
Simon also serves as a trustee and director on several other trusts 
involved with youth development and environmental protection.  
Simon Mortlock lives in Governor’s Bay on Banks Peninsula and has a 
deep love of the Peninsula and a strong interest in recreational 
walking and the coastline.  Simon Mortlock is appointed Trustee until 
June 2013. 

Stewart Miller 
Trustee 
 

Stewart Miller has extensive knowledge of the Peninsula built up 
during many years operating his family dairy farm in McQueens Valley 
combined with a wide range of public service, including as Chairman 
of the Akaroa/Wairewa community board and chairing the 
development of the Banks Peninsula District Plan. Although he has 
now retired from active farming he continues to serve as a member of 
the Community Board.  Stewart Miller is appointed Trustee until June 
2013. 

Claudia Reid 
Trustee 
 

Claudia Reid is serving the Peninsula community in her second term as 
a Christchurch City Councillor.  She describes herself as quietly and 
effectively carrying the Peninsula's voice directly to the Council table.  
She lives in Diamond Harbour and is passionate about the arts and the 
environment and also serves as a director of Christchurch and 
Canterbury Tourism and a board member of Canterbury Museum.  
Claudia Reid is appointed Trustee until June 2012 and has offered to 
serve for a further three year term. 

Tutehounuku Korako 
Trustee 

 

Tutehounuku (Nuk) Korako has lengthy experience at a senior level in 
the tourism industry and is the owner and director of Christchurch‐
based International Inbound Tourism Services Ltd.    He is a member of 
the Te Runanga o Ngai Tahu board and very actively engaged in with 
the Banks Peninsula Maori community, particularly at Rapaki where 
he resides with his family and has been instrumental in the 
development of its beautiful new whare whakairo.  Tutehounuku 
Korako is appointed Trustee until June 2012 and has offered to serve 
for a further three year term. 
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Suky Thompson 
Secretary/Project 
Manager 

Suky Thompson has been involved with projects to protect the 
heritage and environment of the Peninsula during her 20 years as a 
resident of Robinsons Bay near Akaroa.  She operates a small business 
conducting heritage tours in Akaroa and a consultancy specialising in 
Peninsula projects. She is currently studying part time for a Master of 
Applied Science at Lincoln University with a focus on recreational 
walking.  Suky Thompson has been appointed as Secretary/Project 
manager for the Trust until June 2013. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

for the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011
Note $ $

Grants and Donations 2(a) -                    3,503,883    
Interest income 2(a) 157,569         64,989         
Total revenue 157,569         3,568,872    

  Auditors remuneration 3 3,375             2,500          
Other expenses 2(b) 20,010           1,362          
Total expenses 23,385           3,862          

Profit before income tax expense 134,184         3,565,010    

Income tax expense -                    -                  

Net Surplus for the year 134,184     3,565,010    

Other Comprehensive Income -                    -                  

Total Comprehensive Income 134,184       3,565,010    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
 

2012 2011

$ $

Balance as at 1 July 3,565,010      -                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 134,184         3,565,010    

Balance as at 30 June 3,699,194    3,565,010    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Objectives and Performance 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
Financial Performance Targets 

2012 2012
Actual Target Variance

$ $ $

Ratio of Trust Funds to Total Assets 100% 100% 0%

 
Key Performance Targets 

2012 2012
Target: Actual Performance Measure

Inform the public and 
relevant interest groups of 
the existence and purpose 
of the RDBPT.

• Information about the RDBPT settlement and its 
purpose was published in local newspapers. 
• A draft communications policy has been developed.
• A URL of www.roddonaldtrust.co.nz has been 
purchased by the Trust and an interim web page 
uploaded

Develop and implement a 
communications and advertising policy 
for the RDBPT.

Develop relationships with 
existing interest groups on 
Banks Peninsula with 
similar aims, along with 
relevant government 
agencies and territorial 
authorities.

• As part of its “Stocktake” project a list of relevant 
interest groups has been compiled
• The Trust has contacted and held discussions with key 
contacts within 26 groups deemed most relevant. 
Discussions have included their projects and areas where 
the groups feel assistance from the Trust is most needed
• This has included discussions with the Chairs of both of 
the Peninsula Community 

Develop a list of key interest groups that 
the RDBPT would like to work with.

Meet with key contacts within the groups 
to discuss their projects and the manner 
in which the RDBPT can work with them.

Explore options for growing 
the trust fund.

• An investment policy has been developed.  This is 
awaiting approval by Council
• A relationship has been developed with Department of 
Conservations Nature Heritage Fund
• A relationship has been developed with the Walking 
Access Commission

Develop an investment policy for the 
RDBPT.  

Identify other bodies which have funds 
available for projects aligned with the 
objectives of the RDBPT, develop 
strategic relationships with these bodies.

Identify key projects the 
Trust is to be involved in 
over the 2011/12 to 
2012/13 financial years.

• The Stocktake report has been completed to enable the 
Trust to begin the process of identifying projects
• Three key areas have been identified as pillars of the 
Trust’s project work –these are Access, Knowledge and 
Partnerships
• Three key projects with partners have been identified 
and work is in progress. These include the DoC Nature 
Heritage Fund, publication of the book “Plantlife of Banks 
Peninsula”, and 3 year funding grant to the Banks 
Peninsula Conservation Trust.
• A loan policy is under formulation and investigation

In conjunction with Indicator 2, establish 
a list of the projects which will be the key 
focus of the RDBPT in the short to 
medium term, and the assistance that the 
RDBPT will provide in respect to these 
projects.

Develop a distributions policy in respect 
to the distributions to be made to any 
projects identified.

Provide tangible support 
for the key projects 
identified above.

• The project to publish a book by Hugh Wilson, entitled 
“Plant Life of Banks Peninsula” is in progress as a result 
of support from the Trust.  This will support Pillar 2 – 
Knowledge and Pillar 3 - Partnerships
• A project to purchase a property is in progress in 
conjunction with the Nature Heritage Fund. This will 
support Pillar 1 Access and Pillar 3 – Partnerships.
• A three year grant commitment has been made to the 
Banks Peninsula Conservation Trust, for which a 
memorandum of understanding is being drafted.  This will 
support Pillar 3 Partnerships and help achieve the Trust’s 
biodiversity and sustainable conservation management 
goals.
• The Trust has a current project to develop its branding 
and then website. This will enable it to further its goals of 
Pillar 2 Knowledge sharing and Pillar 3 partnerships.
• The Trust has a current project to develop a walking 
strategy which will further its Pillar 1 Access.

Evidence of projects that are either in 
progress or completed due to support 
from the RDBPT.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

a. Reporting Entity 
 
These  are  the  financial  statements of  the Rod Donald Banks  Peninsula  Trust,  a Charitable 
Trust created by the Christchurch City Council on 12 July 2010.  The Trust was established to 
honour  the memory of Rod Donald and his commitment  to Banks Peninsula and  the Trust 
exists for the benefit of the present and future inhabitants of the Banks Peninsula and visitors 
to the region. 
 
The Trust’s  long  term vision  is  to restore  the Banks Peninsula  to  its  traditional status as Te 
Pataka  o  Rakaihautu  –  the  storehouse  that  nourishes.    In  pursuit  of  this  vision  the  Trust 
promotes the sustainable management and conservation of the natural environment of the 
Banks Peninsula. 
 
The  financial  statements of  the Trust  are  for  the  year ended 30  June 2012.   The  financial 
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Trustees on 21 September 2012. 

 
b. Basis of financial statement preparation 

 
The  financial  statements of  the Rod Donald Banks  Peninsula  Trust have been prepared  in 
accordance with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice.  They comply with the 
New  Zealand  equivalents  to  International  Financial  Reporting  Standards  (NZ  IFRS)  as 
appropriate for public benefit entities. 
 
Differential Reporting 
The  Trust  is  a  qualifying  entity  within  the  Framework  for  Differential  Reporting.    The 
differential reporting option  is available to the Trust as  it  is not  large within the meaning of 
this term as set out  in the Framework and  is not publicly accountable.   The Trust has taken 
advantage of all differential reporting concessions available to it. 

 
The  financial statements are prepared under  the historical cost convention, as modified by 
the revaluation of investment properties.  
 
The functional and presentation currency is New Zealand dollars, and all values are rounded 
to the nearest dollar.  

 
c. Revenue 

 
Revenue  is  measured  at  the  fair  value  of  consideration  received.    Interest  income  is 
recognised using the effective interest method. 
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d. Borrowing Costs 
 
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 

e. Income tax 
 
The Inland Revenue Department (IRD) has confirmed that the Trust has charitable status for 
tax purposes and is therefore not liable for income tax. 

 

f. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and  cash equivalents  comprise  cash balances and  call deposits, and other  short‐term 
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.  

 

g. Trade and other receivables 
 
Trade and other receivables are  initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost less impairment provision. 
 

h. Trade and other payables 
 

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. 

 
i. Interest‐bearing borrowings 

 
Interest‐bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest‐bearing borrowings are stated at amortised 
cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income 
statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. 

 

j. Goods and Services Tax 
 
The  Rod Donald  Banks  Peninsula  Trust  is  not  registered  for GST.   All  amounts  stated  are 
inclusive of GST where applicable. 
 

k. Provisions 
 

A  provision  is  recognised  in  the  balance  sheet  when  the  Trust  has  a  present  legal  or 
constructive  obligation  as  a  result  of  a  past  event,  and  it  is  probable  that  an  outflow  of 
economic benefits, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle 
the  obligation.    If  the  effect  is  material,  provisions  are  determined  by  discounting  the 
expected future cash flows at a pre‐tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation. 
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l. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
 

In  preparing  these  financial  statements  the  Trust  has  made  estimates  and  assumptions 
concerning  the  future.   These estimates and assumptions may differ  from  the  subsequent 
actual  results.    Estimates  and  assumptions  are  continually  evaluated  and  are  based  on 
historical  experience  and  other  factors,  including  expectations  or  future  events  that  are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 

2. Profit from operations 
 

a. Revenue 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Revenue from operations

Grants & Donations -                3,503,883        
-                3,503,883        

Other Income

Interest received 157,569     64,989             
157,569     64,989             

Total revenue 157,569   3,568,872       

 
 

b. Expenses 
 

2012 2011
Note $ $

Other Expenses:
Professional Fees 14,009       1,323               
Trustees Insurance 5,520         -                      
Marketing & Publicity 211            -                      
General 239            -                      
Bank Charges 31             39                   

20,010       1,362               

Total expenses 20,010     1,362              

 
 

3. Remuneration of Auditors 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Audit New Zealand:
Audit of financial statements 3,375         2,500               

3,375       2,500              
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4. Current trade and other receivables 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Debtors and Accruals -             -           
RWT Receivable 996        -           
Interest Receivable 69,391    40,435  

70,387  40,435

 
The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.  

 
 

5. Current trade and other payables 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Trade payables -               2,500    
General accruals 3,000        -           

3,000      2,500    

 
 
 

6. Retained Earnings 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Balance at beginning of financial year 3,565,010      -                  
Surplus/(deficit) 134,184         3,565,010   
Balance at end of financial year 3,699,194    3,565,010   
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7. Financial Instruments 
 
Financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents and term deposits as set out below. 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Current Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Current account - Bank of New Zealand 172,807      377,075    
Kiwibank term deposits 809,000      -               
Total cash and cash equivalents 981,807      377,075    

Short - term deposits
CBS term deposit -                  250,000    
Kiwibank term deposits 1,500,000   1,500,000 
Total short - term deposits 1,500,000   1,750,000 

2,481,807   2,127,075 

Non-Current Financial Assets

CBS term deposit 250,000      -               
Kiwibank term deposits 900,000      1,400,000 

1,150,000   1,400,000 

3,631,807   3,527,075 

 
 
Risk 
The Trust has policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments.  The Trust is risk 
averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. 
 
Interest rate risk 
The Trust  is exposed  to  interest  rate  risk on  funds  invested at both  fixed and  floating  interest 
rates.  The risk is managed by restricting investment to quality investment grade issues, pursuant 
to Christchurch City Council’s investment policy. 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit  risk  refers  to  the  risk  that a  third party will default on  its contractual obligations  to  the 
Trust, causing the Trust to incur a loss.  Financial instruments which potentially subject the Trust 
to credit risk consist principally of cash and short term investments, and accounts receivable. 
 
The  Trust  banks with  Bank  of New  Zealand  (BNZ),  Kiwibank,  and  CBS  Canterbury.  The  credit 
ratings for each of these organisations from Standard and Poor’s (Australia) Pty Ltd are: 
 
Bank of New Zealand     AA–  (2011: AA) 
Kiwibank        AA–  (2011: AA‐) 
CBS Canterbury      BBB–  (2011: BBB‐) 
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8. Post balance date events 
 
There were no events known to the directors occurring subsequent to balance date that would 
have a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
 

9. Contingencies 
 
The Rod Donald Banks Peninsula Trust had no contingent assets or  liabilities as at 30 June 2012 
(2011: none). 
 
 

10. Related party transactions 
 

There  were  no  related  party  transactions  during  the  year  ending  June  2012.    However,  the 
Christchurch City Council provides administrative and financial support to the Trust at no cost. 
 
 

11. Legislative Requirements 
 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the Trust to submit half year accounts and a Statement 
of  Intent  to  its  Board  and  to  its  shareholder  within  specified  timeframes.    For  the  2011/12 
financial year the Trust did not meet the specified timeframes as set out in the legislation for the 
submission of documents to its shareholder. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 

for the year ended 30 June 2012 
 

2012 2011
Note $ $

Revenue from operations 2(a) 1,966,341  1,259,039 
Other income 1                -               

1,966,342  1,259,040 

Depreciation 2(b) 586            -               
Other expenses 2(b) 1,880,273  1,257,860 

1,880,859  1,257,860 

Profit before income tax expense 85,483       1,179        

Income tax expense -                -               

Net Surplus for the year 85,483       1,179        

Total Comprehensive Income 85,483       1,179        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 

2012 2011
$ $

Balance as at 01 July 1,179         -               

Total comprehensive income for the year 85,483       1,179        

Balance as at 30 June 86,662       1,179        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Objectives and Performance 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 

 
A Statement of Intent for the 2011/2012 financial year has been prepared and adopted by the 
Trustees. 
 
Operational Performance targets and measures were set as follows. All targets were met for the 
2012 year. 
 

Performance Measure Performance Target Actual Results 

Visitor attendance 

• Attract at least 300,000 visits 
 
 
 
• 75% of Dome shows sold out 

• Achieved – Estimated 
attendance of 300,000. Estimates 
are based on ticket sales and 
approximation of open air events. 

 
• Not Measured - Likely to have 

been achieved but no 
measurement procedure was in 
place for 2012. 

 

Customer satisfaction • 90% of visitors are satisfied 

• Achieved – “More than 92% of 
respondents said that they were 
satisfied or very satisfied with the 
delivery of the WBF. Furthermore, 
93% of respondents said that they 
were satisfied or very satisfied with 
the content of the WBF”. 

Festival development 

• Deliver programme at least the same 
size as the 2011 programme 

• Introduce children’s educational 
component to festival 

• Generate surplus for future festival 
development (refer financial targets 
below)  

• Achieved – 60 performers in 
2012 compared to 55 in 2011. 

 

• Achieved – “Be a Busker” was 
introduced. 

 
• Achieved – Net Surplus $85,483 
 

A City-wide festival 

• Deliver Buskers @ Brighton 
programme 

• Introduce free transport from 
disadvantaged suburbs to the festival 

• Achieved 

 
• Achieved 

 
 
Financial performance targets variance analysis can be found in Note 13. 
 
A Statement of Intent for the 2012/2013 financial year has been prepared and adopted by the 
Trustees. 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

a. Reporting Entity 
 
These are the financial statements of the World Buskers Festival Trust, a Charitable Trust 
created by the Christchurch City Council on 1 July 2010. The primary purpose of the Trust 
is to hold an annual international buskers festival in Christchurch and apply surplus funds 
generated by the festival towards promoting street theatre as a performing art in New 
Zealand. 
 
The financial statements of the Trust are for the year ended 30 June 2012. The financial 
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Trustees on 24 September 2012. 
 

b. Basis of financial statement preparation 
 
The financial statements of the World Buskers Festival Trust have been prepared in 
accordance with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice. They comply with 
the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) as 
appropriate for public benefit entities. 
 
Differential Reporting 
The Trust  is a qualifying entity within the Framework for Differential Reporting. The 
differential reporting option is available to the Trust as it is not large within the meaning of 
this term as set out in the Framework and is not publicly accountable. The Trust has taken 
advantage of all differential reporting concessions available to it. 

 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.  
 
The functional and presentation currency is New Zealand dollars, and all values are 
rounded to the nearest dollar.  

 
c. Revenue 

 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. Interest income is 
recognised using the effective interest method. 
 
Goods and services received in kind are recognised as revenue and expenditure in the 
financial statements at their fair value. 

 
d. Income tax 

 
The Inland Revenue Department (IRD) has confirmed that the Trust has charitable status 
for tax purposes and is therefore not liable for income tax. 

 

e. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits, and other short-term 
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.  
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f.  Trade and other receivables 
 
Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured 
at amortised cost less impairment provision. 
 

g. Trade and other payables 
 

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. 

 
h. Goods and Services Tax 

 
The financial statements are prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables 
and payables that are shown inclusive of GST. Where GST is not recoverable as an input 
tax it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department 
(IRD) is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.  
 
The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and 
financing activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows.  
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 
 

i.   Provisions 
 

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Trust has a present legal or  
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of  
economic benefits, the amount of which can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle   
the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation. 
 

j. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
 

In preparing these financial statements the Trust has made estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent 
actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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2. Profit from operations 
 

a. Revenue 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Revenue from operations

Strategic Partners 575,000         462,992         
Sponsorship 197,100         71,000           
Grants & Donations 242,020         96,862           
Contra & in-kind sponsors 620,898         434,850         
Door donations / Food & Beverage sales 289,210         193,335         
Misc Revenue from operations 42,113           -                    

1,966,341      1,259,039      

Other Income

Interest received 1                   -                    

Total revenue 1,966,342      1,259,039      

 
 

b. Expenses 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets: 5 586               -                    
586               -                    

Other Expenses:
Office & Administrative Costs 62,034           45,045           
Artists Costs 242,259         197,896         
Marketing & Publicity 562,393         458,102         
Production / Technician costs 641,448         289,000         
Food & Beverage costs 122,287         72,417           
Management & Contractors 240,352         185,900         
Auditors remuneration 3 9,500            9,500             

1,880,273      1,257,860      

       Total Other expenses 1,880,273      1,257,860      

Total expenses 1,880,859      1,257,860      
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3. Remuneration of Auditors 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Audit New Zealand:
Audit of financial statements 9,500            9,500             

9,500            9,500             

 
 

4. Current trade and other receivables 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Debtors and Accruals 2,700     70,141      
GST receivable 22,486    34,799      
Related party receivables -             37,992      
Prepayments 30,000    -                

55,186    142,932    

 
 
The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.  
 

 

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
 

Land &
Land Im provem ent Buildings Furni ture & Plant &

land at at fair fi ttings equipm ent
fai r v alue v alue at cost at cost Total

$ $ $ $ $
Gross carrying amount:
Balance at 30 June 2011 -           -             -              -                -           
Addi tions 1,563        1,563    
M ov em ent in W IP
Balance at 30 June 2012 -           -             -              1,563        1,563    

Accumulated depreciation, 
am ortisation and im pairment:
Balance at 30 June 2011 -           -             -              -                -           
D epreciation expense (586)          (586)     
Balance at 30 June 2012 -           -             -              (586)          (586)     

N et book v alue as at 30 June 2011 -           -             -              -                -           

N et book v alue as at 30 June 2012 -           -             -              977           977       
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6. Current trade and other payables 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Trade payables 14,551      65,549      
GST payable -               -               
Related Party Payables 3,473        280,170    

18,024      345,719    

 
 

7. Retained Earnings  
 

2012 2011
$ $

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,179     -               
Surplus 85,483    1,179       
Balance at end of financial year 86,662    1,179       

 
 
 

8. Financial Instruments 
 
Financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents as below. 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Cash at bank and in hand 48,523       203,966       

48,523       203,966       

 
 
Risk 
The Trust has policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments. The Trust is 
risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. 

 
Interest rate risk 
The Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on funds invested at both fixed and floating interest 
rates. The risk is managed by restricting investment to quality investment grade issues, 
pursuant to Christchurch City Council’s investment policy. 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a third party will default on its contractual obligations to the 
Trust, causing the Trust to incur a loss. Financial instruments which potentially subject the 
Trust to credit risk consist principally of cash and short term investments, and accounts 
receivable. The Trust banks solely with Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) and therefore credit risk is 
concentrated with BNZ. BNZ has a AA- credit rating with Standard and Poor’s (Australia) Pty 
limited. 
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9. Post balance date events 
 
There were no events known to the Trustees occurring subsequent to balance date that would 
have a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012. 

 
 

10.  Contingencies 
 
The Trust had no contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2012. 

 
 

11.  Related Party Transactions 
 

2012 2011
$ $

Receipts from related parties
Funding & sponsorship 246,000     279,992       
Sundry sales to CCC 584            5,480           

246,584     285,472       

Purchases from related parties
Management / contractor costs 116,419     185,900       
Other goods and serv ices 29,756       94,270         

146,176     280,170       

Year end balances
CCC - receivables -                 37,992         
CCC - trade & other payables 3,473         280,170       

 
 

12. Legislative Requirements 

 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the Trust to submit half year accounts and a 
Statement of Intent to its Board and to its stakeholder within specified timeframes.  For the 
2011/12 financial year the Trust did not meet the specified timeframes as set out in the 
legislation for the submission of documents to its stakeholder. 
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13. Statement of Service Performance 
 

2012 2012
Actual Target Variance

$ $ $

Income
Revenue from Operations 1,966,341  1,813,892  (152,449)      
Other income 1                -                (1)                

1,966,342  1,813,892  (152,450)      
Expenditure
Interest -                 -                -                  

Other expenses (1,880,273) (1,788,760) 91,513         
Depreciation (586)           -                586              

(1,880,859) (1,788,760) 92,099         
Net surplus (deficit) before tax 85,483       25,132       (60,351)        

Subvention receipt (payment) -                 -                -                  

Net surplus (deficit) after tax 85,483       25,132       (60,351)        

 
 
Revenue Variance 
A conservative approach was taken in the setting of operational revenue targets due to 
uncertainties surrounding the use of new facilities as the February 2011 earthquakes meant a 
number of previous venues could not be used. In addition bar revenues exceeded expectations. 
 
Expenses Variance 
The use of new venues resulted in additional costs to those planned. 
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